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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

{Dollars in thousands except per share and current ratio data)

Year Ended December 31,

Revenues

Operating income

Income from continuing operations

@gt income i

Capital expenditures

Total assets

I5r0pem/, plant and e}ﬁipment, net

Total debt

Stockholders’ equity

Current ratio -

Per common share data
Diluted earnings from
continuing operations

Book value

Number of shares of common

stock outstanding: (12/31/07)

Number ofTegistered holders

of commaon stock: {12/31/07)

Number of employees: {(12/31/07)

U.S. Gulf of Mexico Barge Rigs

Workover ...,
Intermediate

1,076,987

111,915,773

2007

$654,573

190,983

104,078

104,078

242,098

585,888

373,721

534,724

2.6:1

% Increase/(Decrease) 2006 2005
12% $ 566,435 $ 531,662
33% 143,326 115,123
8% 81,026 98,812
8% 81,026 98,883
24% 195,022 69,492
9% 901,301 801,620

- 35% 435473 355,397
3% 329,368 380,015
16% 459,099 259,829
_ %) 311 19:1
25% 075 1.02
14% 421 2.66

1,947

3,087

LT T Latin America.........

Total U.S. Rigs ccoeevecvrvieecec e

*Rig 208 was sold early 2008
**Four are in a2 50% owned joint venture in Saudi Arabia

5-YEAR STOCK PERFQRMANCE GRAPH {value of $100 invested)

CIs..

Total International Barge Rigs

Total Rig Count..............vveeenne

$600

$500

$400

$300

5200

5100 g
2002 2003

2004

® Parker Orilling . Philadelphia Oil Service Index

2005

20086 2007

A S&P Midcap 400 Stock Index




K
CORPORATE
PROFILE

Parker Drilling Company provides high-performance
contract drilling solutions, rental tools and project
management services to the worldwide energy
industry.

Parker's primary business segment is drilling
services with 34 rigs in international locations and
16 barge rigs in the United States Gulf of Mexico. The
Company's international operations span 14 countries
and consist of land rigs, related operations and project
management contracts, as well as barge rigs and
related operations in the Caspian Sea and Mexico.

Founded in 1934, Parker has set numerous world
racords for deep and extended-reach drilling and
is an industry leader in safety performance and
developing innovative drilling technology for remote
s and arctic environments. Customers include major,

y independent and national oil and gas companies.
‘ Parkér's- Quail Tools division rents specialized
equipment for drilling -and workover_applications
to operators in active land and offshore markets in
North America. B

_Share_s—in Parker Drilling are traded on the New York
Stock Exchange under the symbol PKD. For more

informatjon;-go to-http://www.parkerdrilling.com.

CoverRehotay?, 000 horsepower
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LETTER TO
SHAREHOLDERS

| am pleased to report that in 2007 Parker Drilling 2007 HIGHLIGHTS

achieved record results in financial performance, L ,
operations and safety. Execution of our strategic growth Some of the highlights for 2007 include:
plan continues to generate high levels of performance
driven by the innovation of our people and application

of new technologies and solutions to our customers’

* Increased company revenues for the fourth
consecutive year to a record $654.6 million;

chalienges. » Improved earnings before interest, taxes,

depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) to

As the search for oil and natural gas reserves _—
g arecord $261.8 million;

increasingly leads into remote operating environments
and international locations, demand is increasing for
Parker Drilling’s global drilling solutions. Parker Drilling is
the drilling contractor of choice for large independents,

* Grew netincome to a record $104.1 million,
a 28 percent increase over the prior year;

majors and national oil companies. Excellence in * Issued $125 million in convertible notes to
performance, technology, training and safety result pay off higher interest rate debt, reducing
in higher asset returns for our customers and form the annual cash interest expense by $7.4 million;

foundation of our competitive advantage.
* Invested $242 million in fleet enhancements

Parker Drilling provides integrated drilling solutions, and upgrades, including new high-performance
including rigs, rental tools, logistics, rig design {FEED, rigs and the expansion of the U.S. footprint of
or Front End Engineering and Design) and construction Quail Tools;

services (EPCI, or Engineering, Procurement, Construction

and Installation), training, technology and operation and * Achieved a company-best safety record of
maintenance of customer-owned rigs. Qurcomprehensive, 0.81 Total Recordable Incident Rate (TRIR),
global capabilities and proven track record separate us beating last year's record of 0.86.

from our peers and establish a preference for our solutions
regardless of the business cycle.

INNOVATION FOR
HIGHER RETURNS

At Parker, innovation is targeted to improving performance,

which ultimately leads to higher returns for our customers,
Our design and engineering group is in constant contact
with customers, analyzing data from our globat operations to
deveiop new ideas and technologies for increasing efficiency,
quality, safety and lowering the total weli cost.

Wail control system components and pipe handfing equipment are among
the large inventory of rental equipment provided by Quail Tools,
l. Quail opened a new location in Texarkana, Texas in 2007,

o
02




NEW HIGH-EFFICIENCY)

RIG DESIGN ‘\

Digitally contralled - better
control for rea'ic[hin;g tolugh
objectives |

+ Safety-consc

Innovation strengthens our com etitive advantage by helpin i .
9 P ge by nelping _ reduces envin

our customers unlock the value of large oil and gas reserves
that are increasingly difficult to develop because of geologic,
technical, and environmental factors. Our new high-efficiency
rig design, leadership in extended reach drilling and unrivalled
safety record are examples of how Parker has applied creative
thinking, sound engineering and leading technology to solve
customer dritling problems for over 74 years.

Over the last 18 months, we have expanded our fleet to 50 rigs - deereastg dg-up east, Gne
with nine new builds, including four 2 000 horsepower rigs, and S dfeissions

one ultra-deep drilling barge.

Our two new high-efficiency class rigs {rigs 269 and 270)
represent the latest innovation in drilling technology. and
will enter the fleet in 2008. These rigs incorporate the most
advanced features and technology available on the market,
including a hydraulic cylinder system for raising the mast and
substructure without the use of engines and drawworks, a
plug-and-play adaptability allowing the operator to quickly and
easily customize the equipment pa ckage to fit the needs of the
drilling program, and fully automated drilling systems featuring
efficient AC technology and variable drive frequency. These
innovations will result in faster rig deployments, better quality
well bores and safer operation — all reducing the total cost of

drilling for our customers.
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OPERATIONS ~

REVIEW

INTERNATIONAL
DRILLTNG

Demand for our drilling services from national oil
companies, majors and independents outside of the
United States continues to grow. In March of 2008,
68 percent of our fleet (32 land rigs and 2 barge rigs) was
positioned in 11 countries. We focus on penetrating and
then expanding our presence in international markets
offering long-term work commitments where our value of
towering the total cost of drilling makes a significant, long-
term difference. Over the last 18 months, 22 of our rigs
commenced initial operations or received new contracts

2,000 horsepawer Rig 264, drilling in Algeria.

with higher dayrates and profitabitity. The average contract
term of these newly contracted rigs was 2.6 years, providing
long-term revenue visibility. Here are a few examples of
our leadership in international markets, positioning us for
further growth and profitability:

* Mexico. In March 2007, we were awarded a three-rig,
three-year drilling contract in southern Mexico which
was expanded to five {and rigs. Two of our new 2,000
horsepower rigs are part of this project.

* Algeria. in July we placed two of our four new-build
2,000 horsepower rigs to work in this active drilling
market under contracts extending to 2010.

Kazakhstan. We have been operating successfully
in Kazakhstan for 15 yeérs. At the end of 2007, we
were operating five land rigs and one barge rig in
the northern Caspian Sea. In 2008, we will deploy an
additional 2,000 horsepower land rig and one of our new
high-efficiency land rigs to this market.

In 2008 we expect to benefit from a full year of rigs operating
under new long-term contracts at significantly higher
dayrates and margins and higher utilization of a farger fleet.
Combined, these factors provide us with long-term revenue
visibility and growth in cash flow and profits.




At the Sakhalin-1 project, we designed, built and are currently
operating the Yastreb land rig, and commissioned and currently
operate the Orlan offshore platform as part of our long-term
project management contract with ExxonMobil Neftegas Ltd.
In April 2007, the Yastreb, the world’s largest land rig, set an
extended reach drilling (ERD) world record by drilling 37,016 feet
beneath the sea floor offshore Sakhalin Island from its onshore
pad. The well was drilled in only 61 days, under budget and
20 percent ahead of schedule. Then, in February 2008, the Yastreb
beat its own record by drilling another well at Sakhalin to 38,322
feet, or over seven miles offshore. We believe demand for ERD
wells will continue to grow as our customers increasingly take
their search for cil and gas into deeper and environmentally
sensitive areas. Parker Drilling has drilled 63 percent of the
24 longest reach ERD wells in the world and is one of only a
handful of companies capable of successfully delivering this
innovative solution.

U.S. DRILLING MARKETS

We are completing our FEED study for BP to develop a land-based
ERD rig capable of reaching offshore reserves for BP's Liberty
Project in the Alaskan Beaufort Sea. We have ordered long-
lead items for constructing the “Liberty Extended Reach Drilling
Rig”, which will be larger and more capable than the Yastreb
rig. BP Alaska has announced that the company will present
the project to its corporate board for sanctioning in April.
The Liberty prospect is located offshore and is expected to
hold 100 millign barrels of recoverable oil, which would make
it the largest known light il reservoir yet to be developed on
the Alaskan North Slope. Given our expertise drilling ERD wells,
Parker Drilling is the natural cheice for this project. The new
Liberty ERD rig will be capable of drilling wells up to 45,000
feet laterally from a single surface location, which will set new
records for extended-reach drilling and minimize the operational
impact on the environment. This approach will reduce BPs
overall capital investment in the project by eliminating the
need to construct expensive artificial offshore gravel islands
and is another example of how our innovations in operational
performance strengthen our competitive advantage.

Uitra-deep barge rig 778, the nawest rig
in our Gulf of Mexico fleet,

Parker Drilling is the second largest barge drilling
contractor in the active Guif of Mexico transition
zone. The transition zone has shallow waters,
difficult access areas and is environmentally
sensitive. Advances in seismic technologies
allow operators to see structures below the
Earth’s surface at greater depths and with more
clarity than ever before, especially in sub-salt
environments typical of those in the transition
zone. As a result, demand for our deep barge rigs
capable of drilling to deeper target objectives
remains strong. Our new ultra-deep barge rig
77B, capable of drilling to depths in excess of
30,000 feet, deeper than any other barge rig in the
transition zone, was fully utilized in 2007 and has
a strong order book well into 2008.

[(—]
wn




2008
OUTLOOK

RENTAL TOOLS

In 2006 and 2007, we invested $50 million to expand
the U.S. footprint of our Quail Tools subsidiary to six
locations by opening anewstore in Texarkana, Texas.
Quail Tools rents high-quality drilling and production
tools. Quail Tools serves major and large independent
energy companies drilling in the country’s most
active plays, including the Barnett and Fayettevilie
Shale areas, the Rocky Mountains and deepwater
Gulf of Mexico. Special rental tools account for
only three percent of the total cost of drilling
a well in the United States (IPAA), making this
business a profitable way to participate in the U.S.
drilling market with minimal price and demand
volatility typically experienced by U.S. land drillers.
Quail Tools" competitive advantage is based on
quality, reliability, an unmatched level of service
and strong customer relationships with both major
and independent operators.

SAFETY LEADERSHIP

For the seventh consecutive year, we improved
our safety performance by reducing our Total
Recordable Incident Rate (TRIR) to a new low of 0.81,
compared to an average of 2.06 for IADC members.
We were also recognized by Occupational Hazards
magazine as one of America’s safest companies.
Our commitment to operating safely helps us
attract and retain the best people in the industry
and differentiates Parker Drilling in projects where
operational and safety excellence is demanded.

2400 horsepawerRigl 88XcriliinglinlNew'Zealand:

OUTLOOK AMD A MESSAGE OF THANKS

Buring 2007, David Mannon accepted the demanding position of
President and Chief Operating Officer. David is one of the chief architects
of our strategic growth plan with experience leading drilling operations
in different parts of the world. | welcome David to this new challenge and
am pleased he accepted this leadership role. In addition, | appreciate
the ongoing contributions of Parker Drilling’s experienced and insightful
Board of Directors and thank them for their support.

Our strategic growth plan continues to guide us to new levels of
performance and delivers value to customers with every turn of the drill
bit. We are committed to continuous improvement in performance and
safety for reducing the total cost of drilling and increasing asset returns
for our customers, which we believe will increase the long-term value of
your company. Thank you for your continued support.

Dloie 2 L |

Robert L. Parker Jr.
Chairman and CEQ
March 21, 2008

. TOTAL RECORDABLE INCIDENT RATE O Parker Drilling A IADC
2 \ ‘1/_\1 _ _i/\
—O== —
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PART 1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Parker Drilling Company was incorporated in the state of Okluhoma in 1954, In March 1976, the state of
incorporation of the Company was changed to Delaware through the merger of the Oklahoma corporation into its
wholly-owned subsidiary Parker Drilling Company, a Delaware corporation. Unless otherwise indicated, the terms
“Company.” “we.” “us” and “our” refer to Parker Drilling Company together with its subsidiaries and “‘Parker
Drilling™ refers solety to the parent, Parker Drilling Company. We make available free of charge on our website at
www.parkerdrilling.com, our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form $-K. and amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such
material with. or fumish such material 1o, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™). Additionally, these
reports are available on an Internet website maintained by the SEC at http://www.sec.gov. We voluntarily provide
paper or electronic copies of our reports frec of charge upon request. '

The address of the corporate headquarters is 1401 Enclave Parkway, Suite 600_. Houston, Texas 77077,

We are a leading worldwide provider of contract drilling and drilling-related services. Since beginning
operations in 1934, we have operated in 53 foreign countries and the United States, making us among the
most geographically expericnced drilling contractors in the world. We have extensive cxperience and expertise
in drilling geologically difficult wells and in managing the logistical and technological challenges of operating
in remote, harsh and ecologically sensitive areas. Qur quality, health, safety and environmental policies and
procedures are best in class.

Our 2007 revenues are derived from three segments:

* U.S. barge drilling:

« international land drilling and offshore barge drilling: and

» drilling-related rental tools.

We ulso provide non-capital intensive services such as Front End Engincering and Design (“FEED")
services and project management services (labor. maintenance. logistics, etc.) for operators who own their own
drilling rigs and who choose to rely upon our technical expertise. ’ '

Our Rig Fleet

The diversity of our rig fleet. both in terms of geographic location and asset class. enables us ta provide a
broad range of services to oil and gas operators worldwide. As of December 31, 2007, our fleet of rigs
consisted of:

« cight land rigs in the Commonwealth of Independent States (currently includes operations in Russia,
Kazakhstan and Turkmenistan and referred to as “CIS"):

* nine land rigs in the Asia Pacific region (one rig sold in carly 2008);
= eight land rigs in the Americas region; -
*» one barge drilling rig in the inland waters of Mexico;

= seven land rigs in the Africa/Middle East region, including four in our 50 percent-owned joint venture
in Saudi Arabia;

+ the world’s largest arctic-class barge rig in the Caspian Sea; and

*+ 16 barge drilling and workover rigs in the transition zones of the U.S. Gulf of Mexico.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (continued)
Our Rental Tools Business

One of our subsidiaries, Quail Tools, L.P., (“Quail Tools™) provides premium rental tools for fand and
offshore oil and gas drilling and workover activities, Quail Tools offers a full line of drill pipe. drill collars,
wbing, high and low- pressure blowout preventers, choke manifolds, junk and cement mills and casing
scrapers. Approximately one-fourth of Quail Tools’ equipment is utilized in offshore and coastal water .
operations of the Gulf of Mexico. Quail Tools’ base of operations is in New Iberia, Louisiana. Other facilities
are located in Texas, Wyoming and North Dakota. Quail Tools” principal customers are major and independent
oil and gas exploration and production companies operating in the Gulf of Mexico and other major U.S. energy
producing markets. Quail Tools also provides rental tools to customers operating internationally in Trinidad |
and Tobago, Mexico. Russia, Singapore, Nigeria, Brazil and Chad.

Our Markel Areas

U.S. Gulf of Mexico. The drilling industry in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico is characterized by highly .
cyclical activity where utilization and dayrates are typically driven by current natural gas prices. Within this .
area, we operate barge rigs in the shallow water transition zones, primarily in Louisiana and Texas, .
Approximately two-thirds of our barge rigs, including our three ultra-deep drilling barge rigs, are typically |
contracted by oil and gas companies to drill gas prospects and one-third to drill oil prospects. These contracts -
are typically medium term. well-to-well, with a duration of 60 to 150 days. with a few barge rigs contracted

for terms Yonger than' six months.
International Markets. The majority of the internationai drilling markets in which we operate have one
or more of the following characteristics: (i) customers who typically are major, large independent or national
oil companies, or integrated service providers; (ii) drilling programs in remote locations with little infrastruc-, .
turc and/or harsh environments requiring specialized drilling equipment with a large inventory of spare parts
and other ancillary equipment: and (iii) difficult (i.e.. high pressure.’ deep, hazardous or geologically
challenging) wells requiring specialized drilling equipment and considerable experience to drill. Typically. our
international contracts-include extended,. multi-year terms. . : e
Our Strategy, - . - C ‘ : - - ' s
Our strategy is to ‘maintain and leverage our positibn' as a leading provider of drilling. project
management and rental 100ls’ services to the énergy industry. Our goal is to position our Company as the“l )
contractor of choice by providing dependable and ‘efficient drilling performance; innovative drilling solutions -
and Righ-quality rental tools services. We manage our operations in actordance with a long-term strategic

plan. Key'clemenits of our strategy include:”

" Pursuing Strategic. Growth Opportunities. In 2006, we completed the. construction of a 3,000 Horse- .
power ("HP™) barge rig designed speciftcally for deep well programs in' the U.S..Gulf of Mexico. Two of four.
new 2,000 HP international land rigs, which include Alternating Current (“*AC™) variable frequency drives .
were ‘delivered early in 2007 for drilling operations in’ Algeria‘and latét in 2007 the third iid Tourth rigs were
delivered to Mexico. In addit'ibn.jdu['ing 2007 we began construction of two of our new dcsign.'highicfﬂcien:(i:y
class rigs. Thé new high-éfficiency rig is a 2,000 HP land rig that incorporates advanced features such’aé “pliig
and play” adaptability and quick mobilization ability, in addition to AC variablé speed drives. fo meet the "
increasing requirements of dperétqrs. The first rig is q0plrﬁcted for work in Kazakhstan and is expeclc_éi 16"7”' :
begin mobilizition in mid-March 2008. The second rig will be' completed in mid-2008 and s currently being '
marketed inlér‘h'z_itidnrqlly. o ' ' ' | R S
Lt e A - l L R
We continue to grow non-capital intensive projects and in April 2008 BP will present to.its board for
sgl}qliogi‘qgv}h_c'awar_d to a Parker subsidiary of an Eng_i‘net;r}'pg. lP!'chr?menl..Conslruq[iun and Instailment
("EPCI"Y contract. to construct a BP-owned rig fof the ERD {extendéd reach drilling) development of the”
Liberty'ficld in Alaska. When completed, this rig 'will have the capability to drilt extended reach wells that 7




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (continued)

Our Strategy (continued)

exceed current records. We are also developing Front End Engineering & Design (“FEED”) project manage-
ment services.

In April 2007, Quail Tools’. new rental tools facility opened in Texarkana, Texas. As a result of increased
activity at our satellite operation in Williston, North Dakota, we elected to expand this location to a full-scale
facility as well, which opened in January 2008.

Sustaining the High Ultilization of Qur Barge and Land Rigs. 'We sustain the high utilization of our
barge and land rigs by building and upgrading our fleet of premium rigs that will be utilized regardless of the
position in the energy business cycle and through strategic placement in areas which evidence long term
development opportunities.

Focusing on an Efficiency-Based Operating Philosophy for Operating Costs, Preventive Maintenance
and Capital Expenditures. We continue to be vigilant in monitoring and controlling costs. Our operating
philosophy emphasizes continuous improvement of processes, equipment standardization and global quality,
safety and supply chain management. Capital expenditures are aligned with core objectives and our preventive
maintenance programs facilitate dependable operating efficiency, and minimize down time, helping establish
us as a “contractor of choice”.

Continuing te Reduce Qur Debt to Capitalization Ratio and Enhance Our Liguidity. Our long-term
goal is to reduce our debt to capitalization ratio to be in the 30 percent range. Since the establishment of this
goal, we have reduced the ratio to 41 percent from a high of 76 percent.

Our Competitive Strengths

Our competitive strengths have historically contributed to our operéting performance and we believe the
following strengths enhance our outlook for the future:

Geographically Diverse Operations and Assets. 'We currently operate in Algeria, China, Colombia,
Indonesia, Kazakhstan, Kuwait, Libya, Mexico, New Zealand, Papua New Guinea, Russia, Sandi Arabia,
Turkmenistan and the United States. Since our founding in 1934, we have operated in 53 foreign countries and
the United States, making us among the most geographically diverse drilling contractors in the world. Our
international revenues constituted approximately 44 percent of our total revenues in the twelve months ended
December 31, 2007. Our core international land drilling operations focus primarily in the CIS region, where
we have eight land rigs; the Asia Pacific region, where we currently have nine land rigs; Latin America, where
we are operating eight land rigs and seven land rigs in Africa & Middle East. Our international offshore
drilling operations focus on the Caspian Sea, where we own and operate the world’s largest arctic-class barge
rig; and Mexico, where we have one barge rig. We also have 13 drﬂlmg -and three workover barge rigs in the
shallow water transition zones of the U.8. Gulf of Mexico.

Qutstanding Safety, Preventive Maintenance, Inbentory Control and Training Programs. We have an
outstanding safety record. In 2007, we achieved the lowest Total Recordable Incident Rate (“TRIR”) in our
history. Our safety record, as evidenced by our low TRIR, has made us a leader in occupational injury
prevention for the last ten years. In recognition of our achievements we were named one of America’s Safest
Companies by Occupational Hazards magazine in 2007. This, along with integrated quality and safety
management systems, preventive maintenance, and supply chain management programs, has contributed to our
success in obtatning drilling contracts, as well as contracts to manage and provide labor resources to drilling
rigs owned by third parties. Our training center provides safety and technical training curriculums in four
different languages and provides regulatory compllance training throughout the world.

Strong and Expenenced Senior Management Team Our management team has extensive experience in
the contract drilling industry. Our chairman and chlef executwe officer, Robert L. Parker Jr. joined Parker
Drilling in 1973 and has served as our pres1dent from 1977 through June 2007, chief executive officer since
1991 and chairman of the board since April 2006. Under the leadership of Mr. Parker Jr., we have continued




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (continued)
Our Competitive Strengths (continued)

our reputation as a leading worldwide provider of contract drilling services. David C. Mannon joined our
senior management team in late 2004 as senior vice president and chief operating officer and was appointed
president in July 2007. Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Mannon served in various managerial positions,
culminating with his appointment as president and chief exccutive officer for Triton Engineering Services
Company, a subsidiary of Noble Drilling. He brings a broad range of over 25 years of experience to our
drilling operations which enhances our ability to achieve our goals. Our chief financial officer, W. Kirk
Brassfield, joined Parker Drilling in 1998 and has served in several executive positions including vice
president, controller and principal accounting officer. He brings 29 years of experience to the managemém
team, including 16 years in the oil and gas industry. Denis Graham, vice president of engineering, brings over
27 years of experience in drilling industry engineering design, maintenance and regulatory compliance and is
quickly establishing an excellent reputation for Parker through management of large engineering projects for
major oil companies,

Project Management

We are active in managing and providing labor resources for drilling rigs owned by third parties. In
Russia, we designed, constructed and sold a rig to Exxon Neftegas Limited (“"ENL™) and currently manage
drilling operations under a five-year Operations and Maintenance ("O&M") contract. This rig has drilled the
world’s longest extended reach well from Sakhalin Island reaching out over seven miles under the sea floor for
a total measured depth of 38,322 feet. We also supervised construction of a second rig to drill from the Orlan
platform and began a five-year O&M contract for ENL offshore Sakhalin. Russia in September 2005.

During 2007 we began working on a technical service FEED study for BP America to provide a land-
based drilling rig conceptual design for its Liberty Project in the Alaskan Beaufort Sea. With this rig design,
BP plans to drill extended-reach wells, some of which are expected to extend to nominal measured depths in
excess of 40,000 feet, from one of its existing facilities to the Liberty field offshore location. As noted above,
a decision on the award of the EPCI contract to construct and operate this rig as a follow up to our design is
anticipated to occur in April 2008. :

. We also provided labor services on third party-owned drilling rigs in Kuwait, Papua New Guinea and
China in 2007, : '

Competition . . '

The contract drilling industry is a highly competitive business characterized by high capital requiréments
and challenges in securing and retaining qualified field personnel.

In the U.S. Gulf of Mexico barge drilling market we are awarded most contracts through a competitive
bidding process. We have achieved some success in differentiating ourselves from competitors through our
upgraded fleet and preventive maintenance programs. '

In international land markets, we compete with a number of international drilling contractors as well as
smalier local contractors. Most contracts are awarded on a competitive bidding basis, but.the operators.. .
consider factors other than the lowest price. including technical expertise and quality of equipment. National
drilling contractors have increased competition in international markets in recent years. Although national
drilling contractors typically have lower labor and mobilization costs. we are generally able to distinguish
ourselves from these national companies based on our technical expertise, quality of our équipmem,.prevgmivé
maintenance, experience and safety record. In international land and offshore markets, our experience in
operating in challenging environments has been a significant factor in securing contracts. ‘We believe that the
market for drilling contracts, both land and offshore, will continue to be highly E:éfnpeliljv'e for the foréseeable
future.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (continued)

Competition {continued)

Our management believes that Quail Tools is one of the leading rental tools companies in the offshore
Gulf of Mexico and other major U.S. energy producing markets. Quail competes against other rental tool
companies based on price and quality of service,

Customers

Our drilling dl]d rental tools customer base consists of major, independent and national oil and gas
companies and integrated service providers, In 2007, ExxonMobil (including subsidiaries and joint ventures)
accounted for approximately 11 percent of our total revenues. Our ten most significant customers collectively
accounted for approximately 41 percent of our total revenues in 2007,

An increasing trend indicates that a number of our customers have been seeking to establish exploration
or development drilling programs based on partnering relationships or alliances with a limited number of
preferred drilling contractors. Such relationships or alliances can result in longer-term work and higher
efficiencies that increase profitability for drilling contractors and result in a lower overall well cost for oil and
gas operators. We are currently a preferred contractor for operators in certain U.S. and international locations
which our management believes is a result of our reputation for providing efficient, safe, environmentally
conscious and innovative drilling services, in addition to the quality of equipment, personnel, service and
experience. At the core of our operating philosophy are the four pillars of a preferred drilling contractor:
Safety, Training, Performance and Technology.

Contracts

Most driiling contracts are awarded based on competitive bidding. The rates specified in drilling contracts
are generally on a dayrate basis, and vary depending upon the type of rig employed. equipment and services
supplied, geographic location, term of the contract, competitive conditions and other variables. Our contracts
generally provide for an operating dayrate during drilling operations, with lower rates for periods of equipment
breakdown, adverse weather or other conditions, or no payment if the conditions continue beyond a certain
time. When a rig mobilizes to or demobilizes from an operating area, the contract typically provides for a
different dayrate or specified fixed payments during the mobilization or demobilization. The terms of most of
our contracts are based on either a specified period of time or the time required to drill a specified number of
wells. The contract term in some instances may be extended by the customer exercising options for the drilling
of additional wells or for an additional time period, or by exercising a right of first refusal. Most of our
contracts may be terminated by the customer prior to the end of the term without penalty under certain
circumstances, such as the loss or major damage to the driliing unit or other events that cause the suspension
of drilling operations beyond a specified period of time. In many cases we are able to obtain an early
termination fee if the operator terminates a contract before the end of the term without cause.

Rental tools contracts are typically on a dayrate basis with rates based on type of equipment, investment
and competition,

Insurance and Indemnification

In our drilling contracts, we generally seek to obtain indemnification from our customers for some of the
risks related to our dritling services. To the extent that we are unable to transfer such risks to customers by
contract or indemnification agreements, we generally seek protection through insurance. To address the
hazards inherent in our business, we maintain insurance coverage that includes physical damage coverage,
third party general liability coverage, employer’s liability, environmental and pollution coverage and other
coverage. We believe that our insurance coverage is customary for the industry and adequate for our business.
However, there are risks against which insurance will not adequately protect us or insurance may not be
available to cover any or all of the potential liability arising from all of the consequences and hazards we |my
encounter in our drilling operations. See Item 1A, “Risk Faclors” for additional information.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (continued)
Employees
The following table sets forth the composition of our employee base:

December 31,

2007 2006

International drilling. ........ ... .. .. ... . . .. ... . 2055 1,574
US.drilling. .. ... 358 631
Rental tools . .. ... .o 255 217
Corporate and other .. ....... ... .. .. . .. ... 219 206
Total employees . .. ......... ... ... ... ... .. 3.087 2,628

Environmental Considerations

Our operations are subject to numerous federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations governing
the discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to environmental protection. Numerous
governmental agencies, such as the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™), issue regulations to
implement and enforce such laws, which often require difficult and costly compliance measures that carry
substantial administrative, civil and criminal penalties or may result in injunctive relief for failure to comply.
These laws and regulations may require the acquisition of a permit before drilling commences, restrict the
lypes, quantities and concentrations of various substances that can be released into the environment in
connection with drilling and production activities, limit or prohibit construction or drilling activities on certain
lands lying within wilderness, wetlands, ecologically sensitive and other protected areas, require remedial
action to prevent pollution from former operations, and impose substantial liabilities for pollution resulting
from our operations. Changes in environmental laws and regulations occur frequently, and any changes that
result in more stringent and costly compliance could adversely affect our operations and financial position, as
well as those of similarly situated entities operating in the Gulf Coast market. While our management believes
that we are in substantial compliance with current applicable environmental laws and regulations, there is no
assurance that compliance can be maintained in the future.

The drilling of 0il and gas wells is subject to various federal, state, local and foreign laws, rules and
regulations. As an owner or operator of both onshore and offshore facilities, including mobile offshore drilling
rigs in or near waters of the United States, we may be liable for the costs of removal and damages arising out
of a pollution incident to the extent set forth in the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended by the
Oil Pellution Act of 1990 (*OPA™), the Clean Water Act (“*CWA™), the Clean Air Act (“CAA"), the Quter
Continental Shelf Lands Act (“OCSLA”), the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act (“*CERCLA™), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA™), and comparable state
laws, each as may be amended from time to time. In addition, we may also be subject to applicable state law
and other civil claims arising out of any such incident. ’

The OPA and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto impose a variety of regulations on “responsible
parties” related to the prevention of oil spills and liability for damages resulting from such spills. A
“responsible party” includes the owner or operator of a vessel, pipeline or onshore facility, or the lessee or
permittee of the area in which an offshore facility is located. The OPA assigns liability of oil removal costs
and a variety of public and private damages to each responsible party.

The OPA liability for a mobile offshore drilling rig is determined by whether the unit is functioning as a
vessel or is in place and functioning as an offshore facility. If operating as a vessel, liability limits of $600 per
gross ton or $0.5 million, whichever is greater, apply. If functioning as an offshore facility, the mobile offshore
drilling rig is considered a “tank vessel” for spills of oil on or above the water surface, with liability limits of
$1,200 per gross ton or $10.0 miilion, whichever is greater. To the extent damages and removal costs exceed
this amount, the mobile offshore drilling rig will be treated as an offshore facility and the offshore lessee will




ITEM i. BUSINESS (continued)

Environmental Considerations (continued)

be responsible up to higher liability limits for all removal costs plus $75.0 million. The party must reimburse
all removal costs actually incurred by a governmental entity for actual or threatened oil discharges associated
with any Outer Continental Shelf facilities, without regard to the Jimits described above. A party also cannot
take advantage of liability limits if the spill was caused by gross negligence or willful misconduct or resulted
from violation of a federal safety, construction or operating regulation. If the party fails to report a spill or to
cooperate fully in the cleanup, liability limits likewise do not apply.

Few defenses exist to the liability imposed by the OPA. The OPA also imposes ongoing requirements on
a responsible party, including proof of financial responsibility for offshore facilities and vessels in excess of
300 gross tons (lo cover at least some costs in a potential spill) and preparation of an oil spill contingency
plan for offshore facilities and vessels. The OPA requires owners and operators of offshore facilities that have
a worst case oil spill potential of more than 1,000 barrels to demonstrate financial responsibility in amounts
ranging from $10.0 million in specified state waters to $35.0 million in federal Outer Continental Shelf waters,
with higher amounts, up to $150.0 million, in certain limited circumstances where the U.S. Minerals
Management Service believes such a level is justified by the risks posed by the quantity or quality of oil that
is handled by the facility, For “tank vessels,” as our offshore drilling rigs are typically classified, the OPA
requires owners and operators to demonstrate financial responsibility in the amount of their largest vessel’s
liability limit. as those limits are described in the preceding paragraph. A failure to comply with ongoing
requirements or inadequate cooperation in a spill may even subject a responsible party to civil or criminal
enforcement actions.

In addition, the OCSLA authorizes regulations relating to safety and environmental protection applicable
to lessees and permittecs operating on the Outer Continental Shell. Specific design and operational standards
may apply to Quter Continental Shelf vessels, rigs, platforms, vehictes and structures. Violations of environ-
mentally related lease conditions or regulations issued pursuant to the OCSLA can result in substantial civil
and criminal penalties as well as potential court injunctions curtailing operations and the cancellation of leases.
Such enforcement liabilities can result from either governmental or citizen prosecution.

All of our operating U.S. barge drilling rigs have zero-discharge capabilities as required by law, e.g.
CWA. In addition. in recognition of environmental concerns regarding dredging of infand waters and
permitting requirements, we conduct negligible dredging operations, with approximately two-thirds of our
offshore drilling contracts invelving directional drilling, which minimizes the need for dredging. However, the.
existence of such laws and regulations (e.g., Section 404 of the CWA, Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors
Act, etc.} has had and will continue to have a restrictive effect on us and our customers. ,

Our operations are also governed by laws and regulations related to workplace safety and worker health, ‘
primarily the Occupational Safety and Health Act and regulations promulgated thereunder. In addition, various
other governmental and quasi-governmental agencies require us to obtain certain miscellaneous permits,
licenses and certificates with respect to our operations. The kind of permits, licenses and certificates required
in our operations depend upon a number of factors. We believe that we have all such miscellaneous permits,
licenses and certificates that are material to the conduct of cur existing business.

CERCLA (also known as “Superfund”™) and comparable state laws impose liability without regard to fault
or the legality of the original conduct, on certain classes of persons who are considered to be responsible for
the release of a “hazardous substance” into the environment. While CERCLA exempts crude oil from the
definition of hazardous substances for purposes of the statute, our operations may involve the use or handling
of other materials that may be classified as hazardous substances. CERCLA assigns strict liability to each
responsible party for all response and remediation costs, as well as natural resource damages. Few defenses
exist to the liability imposed by CERCLA. Several years ago we received an information request under
CERCLA identifying a subsidiary of Parker Drifling as a potentially responsible party with respect to the
Gulfco Marine Maintenance, Inc. Superfund site in Freeport, Texas (EPA No. TXD055144539). We responded
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with information and documents. In January. 2008 we received an administrative order 1o parlicipate in an
investigation of the site and a study of the remediation needs and alternatives. EPA alleges that Parker is
suceessor 1o a party who owned the Gulfco site during the time when chemical releases ook pluce there, Two
uther parties have been performing that work since mid-2005 under an earlier version of the same order. We
believe that we have sufficient cause 1o decline participation under the order and have notificd the EPA of that
decision. Nen-compliance with an EPA order absent sufficient cause for doing so ¢an result in substantial
penalties under CERCLA. We are continuing to evaluate our relationship to the site and intend 10 confer with
the EPA in an effort to resolve the matter. We have not yet estimated the amount or impact on our operations.
financial position or cash flows of any costs related to the site. EPA and the other two parties have spent over
§2.5 million studying and conducting some remedial work a1 the site and it is anticipated thit an additional
S1.3 million will be required to complete the remediation based on current information,

RCRA gencrally does not regulale most wastes generated by the exploration and production of oil and
gas. RCRA specifically excludes from the definition of hazardous waste “drilling fluids. produced waters. and
other wastes associated with the exploration. development or production of crude oil. natural gas or geothermal
encrgy.” However, these wastes may be regulated by EPA or state agencics as solid waste, Morcover, ordinary
industrial wastes. such as paint wastes, waste solvents. laboratory wastes, and waste oils, may be regulated as
hazardous waste. Although the costs of managing solid and hazardous wastes may be significant. we do noi
expect o experience more burdensome costs than similarly situated companies involved in drilling operations
in the Gulf Coast markel.

Recent scientific studies have suggested that emissions of certain gases, commonly referred 1o as
“greenhouse gases” and including carbon dioxide and methane, may be contributing to the warming of the
atmosphere resulting in climate change. [n response 1o such studies. the United States Congress is actively
considering legislation to reduce emissions of greenhousce gases. In addition, at least 17 states have already
taken legal measures 1o reduce emissions of greenhouse gases. primarily through the planned development of
greenhouse gas emission inventories and/or regional greenhouse gus cap and trade programs. Also, as a resull
of the U.S. Supreme Court’s decision on April 2. 2007 in Massachusetts v. EPA. the EPA nuy regulate
greenthouse gas emissions [rom mobile sources (e.g.. cars and trucks) and possibly from stationary sources as
well under certain federal Clean Air Act programs. even if Congress does not adopt new legislation
specifically addressing emissions of greenhouse gases. New legislation or regulatory programs that restrict
emissions of greenhouse gases in arcas where we conduct business covld adversely affect our operations and
the demand for hydrocarbon products generally. The impact of such future programs cannot be predicted. but
we do not expect material adverse affects (o our operations at this time.

The drilling industry is dependent on the demand for services from the oil and gus exploration and
development industry. and accordingly. is affected by changes in laws and policies relating 10 the energy
business, Our business s alfected generally by political developments and by federal. state. local and forcign
regulations that may relate directly to the oil and gas industry. The adoption of laws and regulations. both
U.S. and foreign. that certail exploration and development drilling for oil and gas for cconomic, environmental
and other policy reasons may adversely affect our operations by limiting available drilling opportunities.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT INDUSTRY SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

We operate in three segments. U.S. drilling. international drilling and rentai tools, Information about our
business segments and operations by geographic areas for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
is set forth in Note 12 in the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in ltem 8 of this report.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (continued)
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Officers are elected each year by the hoard of directors following the -annual meeting for a term of one
year aid until the election and qualification of their successors. The current executive officers of the Company
and their ages, positions with the Company and business experience arc presented betow:

(1) Robert L. Parker Jr., 59, chairman and chief executive officer, joined Purker Drilling in 1973 as
a contract representative und was named manager of U.S. operations later in 1973. He was elected a vice
president in 1973, executive vice president in 1976 and was named president and chiel operating officer
in October 1977, In December 1991, he was named chief executive officer, and was elected chairman in
April 2006. He hus been a director since 1973.

(2) David C. Mannon. 50, president and chief operating officer, joined Parker Drilling in December
2004 as senior vice president and chief operating officer. He was appointed president in July 2007. From
1988 through 2003, Mr. Mannon held various positions, including president and chief executive oflicer of
Triton Engineering Services Company. a subsidiary of Noble Drilling. From 1980 through 1988,

Mr. Mannon served SEDCO-FOREX, formerly SEDCO. as a drilling engineer.

(3) W. Kirk Brassfield, 52, senior vice president and chicf financial officer. joined Parker Drilling in
March 1998 as controller and principal accounting officer. From 1991 through March 1998, Mr. Brasstield
served in various positions, including subsidiary controller and director of financial planning of MAPCO
Inc.. a diversificd energy company. From 1979 through 1991, Mr. Brasstield served at the public
accounting lirm, KPMG.

(4) Denis J. Graham, 58, vice president of engineering, joined Parker Drilling in 2000. Mr. Graham
was previously the senior vice president of technical services for Diumond Offshore Inc., un international
offshore drilling contractor. His experience with Diamond Offshore ranged from 1978 through 1999 in the
arcas of offshore drilling rig design, new construction, conversions, marine operations. maintenance and
regulatory compliance.

(5) Ronald C. Potter, 54, vice president and general counsel, re-joined Parker Drilling in June 2003.
From 2001 through May 2003, Mr. Potter was our outside legal counsel as & shareholder of Conner &
Winters, P.C. in Tulsa, Oklahoma. From 1980 to 2001, he served Parker Drilling in various positions,
most recently as chief legal counsel and corporate secretary.

(6} Lynn G. Cullom, 53, principal accounting officer and corporate controller, joined Parker Drilling
in August 2004 as director of corporate planning. From March 2001 through August 2004, Ms. Cullom
served in various accounting and reporting director positions at El Paso Corporation. Ms. Cullom served
in various positions for Coastal Corporation from September 1979 through February 2001, inctuding vice
president of financial reporting and planning for Coastal Mart, a subsidiary.

(7) Michael D. Drennon, 52. vice president, operations. joined Parker Drilling in December 2005.
From July 2000 through November 2005, Mr, Drennon served as program director for development of
company operated discoverics in Angola for BP p.Le. Mi. Drennon served in various engineering,
operations and management assignments from 1977 through 2000 with Amoco and BP p.l.c.

Other Parker Drilling Company Officer

(8) David W. Tucker, 52, treasurer and director of investor relations, joincd Parker Drilling in 1978
as a financial analyst and served in various financial and accounting positions before being named chief
financial officer of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Hercules Offshore Corporation. in February
1998, Mr. Tucker was named treasurer in 1999 and assumed the responsibilities of director of investor
relations in 2002,
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ITEM IA. RISK FACTORS

The contract drilling and rental tools businesses involve a high degree of risk. You should consider
carefully the risks and uncertainties described below and the other information included in this Form 10-K,
including the financial statements and related notes. before deciding to invest in our securities. While these are
the risks and uncertainties we believe are mosi important for you to consider. you should know that they are
not the only risks or uncertainties facing us or which may adverscly affect our business. If any of the
following risks or uncertainties actually occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could
be adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Business

Rig upgrade, refurbishinent and construction projects are subject to risks, including delays and cost over-
runs, which could have an adverse impact on our results of operations and cash flows,

We often have to make upgrade and refurbishment expenditures for our rig fleet (o comply with our
quality management and preventive maintenance system or contractual requirements or when repairs are
required or to comply with environmental regulations. We may also make significant expenditures when we
move rigs from one location to another. Additionally, we are making substantial expenditures for the
construction of new rigs consistent with our strategy to construct a fleet of premium rigs that will operate
continuously despite market fluctuations. Rig upgrade, refurbishment and construction projects are subject to
the risks of delay or cost overruns inherent in any large construction project, including the following:

* shortages of equipment or- skilled labor:

* unforeseen engineering problems;

* unanticipated change orders:

* work stopp'zlgesi ‘

* adverse weather conditions;

* delays relating to inaccessibility of credit markets:

* long lead times for manufactured rig components;

* repairs (o correct defects in construction not covered by warranty;

* loss of revenue associated with downtime to remedy malfunctioning equipment not covered by
warranty;

* loss of. revenue and liquidated damages associated with downtime to perform repairs associated with

_ defects. unanticipated equipment refurbishment and delays in commencement of operations;

* unanticipated cost increases: and

* inability to obtain the required permits or approvals.

Significant cost overruns or delays could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Additionally, capital expenditures for rig upgrade. refurbishment or construction projects could exceed our
planned capital expenditures. impairing our ability to service our debt obligations.

Failure to retain skilled and experienced personnel could affect our operations.

We require highly skilled and experienced perlso-nncl to provide technical services and support for our
drilling operations. Although we use our training center to train personnel and promote from within, as the
demand for drilling services and the size of the worldwide rig fleet has recently increased. it has become more
difficult to retain existing personnel and shortages of qualified personnel have arisen, which could create




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (continued)
Risks Related to Our Business (continued}

upward pressure on wages and prevent us from retaining or attracting qualified personnel in a cost-effective
manner.

Our ability to service our debt obligations is primarily dependent upon our future financial performance.
As of December 31, 2007, we had:
+ $353.7 million of long-term debt;
= $20.0 million of current revolver debt;
= $8.5 million of operating lease commitments; and
+ $12.9 million of standby letters of credit.

Our ability to mect our debt service obligations depends on our ability to generate positive cash flows
from operations.

Cash flows from operating activities have been strong in recent years. However, we have in the past, and
may in the future, incur negative cash flows from one or more segments of our operating activities. Our future
cash flows from operating activities will be influenced by the demand for our drilling services, the utilization
of our rigs, the dayrates that we receive for our rigs, general economic conditions and by financial, business
and other factors affecting our operations, many of which are beyond our control, and some of which are
specified below.

If we are unable to service our debt obligations, we may have to:

* delay spending on maintenance projects and other capital projects, including the acquisition or

construction of additional rigs, rental tools and other assets;

+ sell equity securities;

« sell assets; or

» restructure or refinance our debt.

Additional indebtedness or equity financing may not be available to us in the future for the refinancing or
repayment of existing indebtedness, or if available, such additional indebtedness or equity financing may not
be available on a timely basis, or on terms acceptable to us and within the limitations contained in the
documentation contained in our existing debt instruments. In addition, we can provide no assurance as to the
timing of any asset sales or the proceeds that could be realized by us from any such asset sale. Our ability to

generate sufficient cash flow from operating activities to pay the principal of and interest on our indebtedness
is subject to certain market conditions and other factors which are beyond our control.

Our debt and the covenants contained in the instruments governing our debt could have important
consequences to you. For example, it could:

« result in a reduction of our credit rating, which would make it more difficult for us to obtain additional
financing on acceptable terms; . .

« require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flows from operating activities to the repayment
of our debt and the interest associated with our debt;

« limit our operating flexibility due to financial and other restrictive covenants, including restrictions on
incurring additional debt and creating liens on our properties;

« place us at a competitive disadvantage compared with our competitors that have relatively less debt; and

« make us more vulnerable to downturns in our business.
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Risks Related to Our Business (continued)

Our current operations and future growth may require significant additional capital, and the amount of our
indebtedness could impair our ability to fund our capital requirements.

Our business requires substantial capital (we anticipate that our capital expenditures in 2008 will be
approximately $150.0 — $165.0 million, including approximately $75.0 million for maintenance projects). We
tay require additional capital in the event of significant departures from our current business plan or )
unanticipated expenses. For example, although we are appealing the amount of assessed interest. as described
in Note 13. Commitments and Contingencies, “Kazakhstan Tax Case” in ltem 8 of this Form 10-K, we may be
required to pay $33 million in interest within the next few months. In addition, we may make additional cash
contributions to complete the drilling rigs and for on-going operations of our Saudi Arabia joint venture. See
Note 8., Saudi Arabia Joint Venture. Sources of funding for our future capital requirements may inctude any or
all of the following;

* funds generated from our operations:

* public offerings or private placements of equity and debt securities:
* commercial bank loans:

* cupital leases: and

* sales of assets.

Due to our leveraged capital structure, additional financing may not be available on a timely basis or on
terms acceptable to us and within the limitations contained in the indentures governing the 9.625% Senior
Notes and the 2.125% Convertible Senior Notes and the documentation governing our senior secured credit
facility. Failure 10 obtain appropriate financing. should the need for it develop. could impair our ability 1o fund
our capital expenditure requirements and meet our debt service requirements and could have an adverse effect
on our business.

Volatile oil and natural gas prices impact demand Sfor our drilling and related services.

The success of our operations is materially dependent upon the exploration and development activities of
the major. independent and national oil and gas companies that comprise our customer base. Qil and natural
gas prices and market expectations can be extremely volatile, and therefore, the level of exploration and
production activities can be extremely volatile. Increases or decreases in oil and natural gas prices and
expectations of future prices could have an impact on our customers’ long-term exploration and development
activities, which in turn could materially affect our business and financial performance. Generally, changes in
the price of oil have a greater impact on our international operations while changes in the price of natural gas
have a greater impact on our operations in the Guif of Mexico. L

Demand for our drilling and related services also depends upon other factors, many of which are beyoqd
our control. including:

* the cost of producing and delivering oil and natural gas;

* advances in exploration. development and production technology;

* laws and government regulations. both in the United States and other countries;
* the imposition or lifting of economic sanctions agatnst foreign countries;

* recent rig construction projects which may create overcapacity:

* local and worldwide military, political and economic events. ncluding events in the oil producing
countries in the Middle East. Southeast Asia and Latin America




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (continued)

Risks Related to Our Business (continued)

the ability of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries “OPEC” to sct and maintain production
levels and prices;

« the level of preduction by non-OPEC countries;

+ weather conditions;

* expansion or coﬁtraction of economic activity, which affects levels of consumer demand;
+ the rate of discovery of new oil and natural gas reserves;

» the availability of pipeline capacity; and

» the policies of various governments regarding exploration and development of their oil and natural gas
reserves.

Most of our contracts are subject to cancellation by our customers without penalty with little or no notice.

Most of our contracts are subject to cancellation by our customers without penalty with relatively little or
no notice. Although drilling conditicns are currently favorable, in the event the market becomes depressed,
customers are more likely to seek renegotiation of contract terms or to exercise their termination rights.

Our customers may also seek 1o terminate drilling contracts if we experience operational problems. If our
equipment fails to function properly and cannot be repaired promptly, we will not be able to engage in drilling
operations, and customers may have the right to terminate the drilling contracts. The cancellation or
renegotiation of a number of our dritling contracts could adversely affect our financial performance.

We rely on a small number of customers, and the loss of a significant customer could adversely affect us.

A substantial percentage of our revenues are generated from a relatively small number of customers, and
the loss of a major customer would adversely affect us. In 2007, ExxonMobil accounted for approximately
11 percent of our total revenues. Our ten most significant customers collectively accounted for approximately
41 percent of our total revenues in 2007. Our results of operations could be adversely affected if any of our
major customers terminate their contracts with us, fail to renew our existing contracts or refuse to award new
contracts to us.

Contract drilling and the rental tools business are highly competitive.

The contract drilling and rental tools markets are highly competitive and no single competitor is
dominant. Although the international drilling market remains strong, demand in the Gulf of Mexico barge
market has softened slightly during the past few months. During periods of decreased demand we historically
experience significant reductions in dayrates and utilization. We anticipate that current demand for our rental
tools to remain strong for the foreseeable future. However, if commodity prices decline or other factors
adversely affect demand for drilling activity, our utilization rates and financial performance will be adversely
affected. Contract drilling companies compete primarily on a regional basis, and competition may vary
significantly from region to region at any particular time. Many drilling and workover rigs can be moved from
one region to another in response to changes in levels of activity, provided market conditions warrant, which
may result in an oversupply of rigs in an area. Many competitors have new rig construction programs in place
as a result of recent energy price levels. In many markets in which we operate, the number of rigs available
has historically exceeded the demand for rigs for extended perieds of time, resulting in intense price
competition. Most drilling and workover contracts are awarded on the basis of competitive bids, which also
results in price competition. We believe that competition for drilling contracts will continue to be intense for
the foreseeable future. If we cannot keep our rigs utilized, our financial performance will be adversely
impacted. The rental tools market is also characterized by vigorous competition among several competitors.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (continued)
Risks Related to Our Business (continued)

Many of our competitors in both the contract drilling and rental tools business possess greater financial
resources than we do.

The improved industry conditions due to increased demand for oil and natural gas has spurred a
significant increase in the construction of drilling rigs. As the supply of rigs increases over the next few years,
there is a significant risk that this could result in a reduction of utilization and dayrates, which would
adversely affect our business and financial performance.

Our international operations could be adversely affected by terrorism, war, civil disturbances, political insta-
bility and similar events.

We have operations in 13 foreign countries. Our international operations are subject to interruption,
suspension and possible expropriation due to terrorism, war, civil disturbances, political instability and similar
events and we have previously suffered loss of revenue and damage to equipment due to political violence, We
may not be able to obtain insurance policies covering such risks, especially political violence coverage, and
such policies may only be available with premiums that are not commercially justifiable.

Our international operations are also subject to governmental regulation and other risks.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from our international operations. In 2007, we derived
approximately 44 percent of our revenues from operations in countries outside the United States. Our
international operations are subject to the following risks, among others:

foreign laws and governmental regulation;

expropriation, confiscatory taxation and nationalization of our assets located in areas in which we
operate;

increases in governmental royalties;

import-export quotas;

hiring and retaining skilled and experienced worqus, many of which are represented by foreign labor
unions; '

unfavorable changes in foreign monetary and tax policies and unfavorable and inconsistent interpreta-
tion and application of foreign tax laws; , :

foreign currency fluctuations and restrictions on currency repatriation; and
* other forms of governmental regulation and economic conditions that are beyond our control.

Our international operations are subject to the laws and regulations of a number of foreign countries.
Additionaily, our ability to compete in international contract drilling markets may be adversely affected by
foreign governmental regulations or other policies that favoer the awafding of contracts to contractors in which
nationals of those foreign countries have substantial ownership interests. Furthermore, our foreign subsidiaries
may face governmentally imposed restrictions or fees from time to time on the transfer of funds to us. While
we have been successful in most cases in contractually limiting these risks by transferring the risk of loss to
the operators, we cannot completely eliminate such risk.

A significant portion of the workers we employ in our international operations are members of labor
unions or otherwise subject to collective bargaining. We may. not-be able to hire and retain a sufficient number
of skilled and experienced workers for wages and other benefits. that we believe are commercially reasonable.

We have historically been successful in lih]itiné the risks of currency fluctuation and restrictions on
currency repatriation by obtaining contracts providing for payment in U.S. dollars or freely convertible foreign
currencies. However, some countries in which we may operate could require that all or a portion of our
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (continued)
Risks Related to Our Business (continued) .

revenues be paid in local currencies that are not freety convertible. In addition, some parties with which we do
business may require that all or a portion of our revenues be paid in local currencies. To the extent possible,
we limit our exposure to potentially devaluating currencies by matching the acceptance of local currencies to
our expense requirements in those currencies. Although we have done this in the past, we may not be able to
obtain such contractual terms in the future, thereby exposing us to foreign currency fluctuations that could
have a material adverse effect upon our results of operations and financial condition.

Our international operations are also subject to disruption due to risks associated with worldwide health
concerns. In particular, although we have no evidence to believe this will occur, it is possible that concerns
due to the transmission of illness (viral, bacterial or parasitic) could result in cancellations or delays in
international flights and/or the guarantine of drilling crews in foreign locations, which could materially impair
our international operations and consequently have an adverse effect on our business and financial results for
the operations that are affected.

Compliance with foreign tax and other laws may adversely affect our operations.

Tax and other laws and regulations are not always interpreted consistently among local, regional and
national authorities. See Note 13 in the notes to the consolidated financial statements for an example of
pending tax disputes. The ultimate outcome of these disputes is not certain, and it is possible that the outcome
could have an adverse effect on our financial performance. It is also possible that in the future we will be
subject to similar disputes concerning taxation and other matters in countries in which we do business, and
these disputes could have a material adverse effect on our financial performance.

We are subjéct to hazards customary for drilling operations, which could adversely affect our financial per-
formance if we are not adequately indemnified or insured.

Substantially all of our operations are subject to hazards that are customary for oil and natural gas drilling
operations, including blowouts, reservoir damage, loss of well control, cratering. oil and natural gas well fires
and explosions, natural disasters. pollution and mechanical failure. Our offshore operations also are subject to
hazards inherent in marine operations, such as capsizing, grounding. collision and damage from severe weather
conditions. Our international operations are also subject to risks of terrorism, war, civil disturbances and other
politicat events. Any of these risks could result in damage to or destruction of drilling equipment, personat
injury and property damage, suspension of operations or environmental damage. We have had accidents in the
past demonstrating some of these hazards. Generally, drilling contracts provide for the division of responstbil-
ities between a drilling company and its customer, and we generally obtain indemnification from our
customers by contract for some of these risks. However, the laws of certain countries place significant
limitations on the enforceability of indemnification provisions that allow a contractor to be indemnified for
damages resu!tmg from the drilling contractor’s fault. To the extent that we are unable to transfer such risks to
customers by contract or indemnification agreements, we generally seek protection through insurance.
Howcvcr we have self-insured retention or deductible for certain losses relating to workers® compensation,
cmploycrq liability, general liability (for onshore liability), protection and indemnity (for offshore liability).
and _property damage. In addition, insurance for some risks, such as reservoir damage. is not available. For
further information, see Note 13 in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. These insurance or,
indemnification agreements may not adequately protect us against liability from all of the consequences of the
hazards and risks described above. The occurrence of an event not fully insured or for which we are not
indemnified against, or the failure ofia customer or insurer to meet its indemnification or insurance obligations,
could result in substantial losses. In addition, insurance may. not continue to be available to cover any or all of:
these risks. Even if such insurance is available, insurance premiums or other costs may rise significantly in the
fulurc 50, .Js [ make the cost of such msurance prohibitive.
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ITEM tA. RISK FACTORS (continued)

Risks Related to Qur Business (continued) .

Although not a hazard from drilling operations, we could incur significant liability in the event of loss or
damage to proprietary data of operators or third parties during our transmission of this valuable data.

Government regulations and environmental risks, which reduce our business opportunities and increase our
operating costs, might worsen in the future,

Government regulations control and often limit access to potential markets and impose extensive
requirements concerning employee safety. environmental protection, pollution control and remediation of
environmental contamination. Environmental regulations, in particular, prohibit access to some markets and
make others less economical, increase equipment and personnel costs and ofien tmpose liability without regard
to negligence or fault. In addition, governmental regulations may discourage our customers’™ activities. reducing
demand for our products and services. We may be liable for dumages resulting from pollution of offshore
waters and, under United States regulations, must establish financial responsibility in order to drill offshore.
See Part I, Business, “Environmental Considerations”.

We are regularly involved in litigation, some of which may be material.

We are regularly involved in litigation, claims and disputes incidental to our business, which at times
involve claims for significant monetary amounts, some of which would not be covered by insurance. We
undertake all reasonable steps to defend ourselves in such lawsuits. Nevertheless, we cannot predict the
ultimate outcome of such lawsuits and any resolution which is adverse to us could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition. See Note 13, “Commitments and Contingencies™ in Item 8 of this Form 10-K
for a discussion of the material legal proceedings affecting us.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Market price of our common stock could change significantly.

. The market price of our common stock may change significantly in response to various factors and
events, most of which are beyond our control, including the following: '

* the other risk factors described in this Form 10-K, including changes in oil and natural gas prices;

» a shortfall in rig utilization, operating revenue or net income from that expected by securities analysts
, and investors;

» changes in securities analysts’ estimates of the financial performance of us or our competitors or the
financial performance of companies in the oilfield service industry generally:

* changes in actual or market expectations with respect to the amounts of exploration and development
spending by oil and gas companics;

= general conditions in the economy and in the energy-related indusiries:
+ general conditions in the securities markets;
+ political instability, terrorism or war; and

+ the outcome of pending and future légal proceedings, tax assessments and other claims, including the
outcome of our interest dispute with the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan {see Note 13
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Itemn 8 of this Form 10-K).

A hostile takeover of our Company would be difficult.

We have adopted a stockholders’ rights plan. Some of the provisions of our Restated Centificate of
Incorporation and of the Delaware General Corporation Law may make it difficult for a hostile suitor to
acquire control of our Company and to replace our incumbent management. For example, our Restated
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (continued)

Risks Related to Qur Common Stock {(continued)

Certificate of Incorporation provides for a staggered Board of Directors and permits the Board of Directors,
without stockholder approval, to issue additional shares of common stock or a new series of preferred stock.

Risks Related to our Debt Securities

Payment of principal and interest on our 9.625% Senior Notes will be effectively subordinated to our senior
secured debt to the extent of the value of the assets securing that debt.

Our 9.625% Senior Notes and the guarantees related to those notes are senior unsecured obligations of
Parker Drilling and certain of our subsidiaries that rank senior in right of payment to all current and future
subordinated debt. Holders of our secured obligations, including obligations under our senior secured credit
facility, will have claims that are prior to claims of the holders of our notes with respect to the assets securing
those obligations. In the event of a liquidation, dissolution, reorganization, bapkruptcy or any similar
proceeding, our assets and those of our subsidiaries would be available to pay obligations on the notes and the
guarantees only after holders of our senior secured debt have been paid the value of the assets securing such
debt. Accordingly, there may not be sufficient funds remaining to pay amounts due on all or any of the notes.

We have granted the lenders under our senior secured credit facility a security interest in (i) all accounts
receivable, and certain deposit accounts, of (a) Parker Drilling Company and (b) substantially all of our
material direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries; and {ii) substantially all of the personal property assets of
our rental tools business. In the event of a default on secured indebtedness, the parties granted security
interests will have a prior secured claim on such assets. If the parties should attempt to foreclose on their
collateral, our financial condition and the value of the notes would be adversely affected.

We are a holding company and conduct substantially all of our operations through our subsidiaries, which
may affect our ability fo make paymenis on our notes.

We conduct substantially all of our operations through our subsidiaries, As a result, our cash flows and
our ability to service our debt, including our notes, is dependent upon the earnings of our subsidiaries. In
addition, we are dependent on the distribution of earnings, loans or other payments from our subsidiaries to
us. Any payment of dividends, distributions, loans or other payments from our subsidiaries to us could be
subject to statutory restrictions, including local law, monetary transfer. restrictions and foreign currency
exchange regulations in the jurisdictions in which ouvr subsidiaries operate. In addition, payment of dividends
or distributions from our joint ventures are subject to contractual restrictions. Payments to us by our
subsidiaries also will be contingent upon the profitability of our subsidiaries. If we are unable to obtain funds
from our subsidiaries we may not be able to pay interest or principal on the notes when due, or to redeem our
notes upon a change of control or a fundamental change, and we may not be able to obtain the necessary
funds from other sources.

Our notes are guaranieed by certain of our direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries. As of December 31,
2007, our non-guarantor subsidiaries collectively owned approximately 23 percent of our consolidated total
assets and held approximately $20.5 million of our consolidated cash and cash equivalents of approximately
$60.1 million. In 2007, our non-guarantor subsidiaries had drilling and rental revenues of approximately
$136.3 million and a total operating income of approximately $16.6 million. See Note 5 to the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

The subsidiary guarantees of our notes could be deemed fraudulent conveyances under certain circum-
stances, and a court may try to subordinate or void the subsidiary guarantees.

Under the federal bankruptcy laws and comparable provisions of state fraudulent transfer laws, a
guarantee could be voided, or claims in respect of a guarantee could be subordinated to all other debts of that




ITEM 1A.  RISK FACTORS (continued)
Risks Related to our Debt Securities (continued)

guarantor if, among other things, the guarantor. al the time it incurred the indebtedness evidenced by s
guarantee:

* issued the guarantee with the intent of hindering, delaying or defrauding current or future creditors: or

* received less than reasonably equivalent value or fair consideration for the incurrence of such
guarantee: and

* was insolvent or rendered insolvent by reason of such incurrence: or

* was engaged in a business or transaction for which the guarantor's remaining assets constituted
unreasonably small capital; or

* intended 1o incur. or believed that it would incur, debis beyond its ability to pay such debis as they
mature.

In addition. any payment by that guarantor pursuant to its guarantee could be voided and required 10 be
returned to the guarantor, or to a fund for the benefit of the creditors of the guarantor. The measures of
insolvency for purposes of these fraudulent transter laws will vary depending upon the law upplied in any
proceeding to determine whether a fraudulent transfer has occurred. Generally. however. a guarantor would be
considered insolvent il

* the sum of its debts, including contingent liabilities. was greater than the fair salcable value of all of its
assets:

* the present fair saleable value of its assets was less than the wmount that would be required o pay jts
probable linbility. including contingent liabilities. on its existing debts. as they become absolute and
mature: or

* it could not pay its debts as they become due.

We cannot assure what standard 2 court would apply in determining a guaramor’s solvency and whether
or not it would conclude that such guarantor was solvent when it incurred the guarantee,

We may not be able to repurchase our 9.625% Senior Notes upan a change of conirol.

Upon the occurrence of specific change of control events affecting us. the holders of our 9.625% Senior
Notes will have the right 1o require us o repurchase our notes at 101 percent of their principal amount. plus
accrued and unpaid interest. Our ability to repurchase our notes upon such a change of control event would be
limited by our access o funds at the time of the repurchase and the terms of our other debt agreements. Upon
a change of control event. we may be required immediately to repay the outstanding principal. any accrued
interest on and any other amounts owed by us under our senior secured credit facilitics. our notes and other
outstanding indebtedness. The source of funds for these repaynienls would be our available cash or cash
generated from other sources. However. we may not have sufficient funds available upon i change of conrol
to make any required repurchases of this outstanding indebtedness.

In addition. the change of control provisions in the indenture governing our 9.625% Scnior Notes may
nut protect the holders of our notes from certain important corporite events. such as a leveraged recapitaliza-
tion (which would increase the Ievel of our indebtedness), reorganization, restructuring. merger or other similar
transaction. unless such wransaction constitutes “Change of Control™ under the indenture. Such a transaction
may not involve a change in voting power or beneficial ownership or. even if it does. may not involve a
change that constitutes a “Change of Control™ as defined in the indenture that would trigger our obligation 10
repurchase the notes, Therefore, if an event occurs that does not constitute a “Change of Control™ as defined
in the indenture. we will not be required to make an offer to repurchase the notes and the holders may be
required to coniinue to hold their notes despite the event.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (continued)
Risks Related to our Debt Securities (continued)

We may not have sufficient cash to repurchase the 2.125% Convertible Senior Notes at the option of the
holder upon a fundamental change or to pay the cash payable upon a conversion.

Upon the occurrence of a fundamental change as defined in the indenture governing our 2,123% Converl-
ible Senior Notes. subject to certain conditions. we will be required to make an offer to repurchase for cash all
outstanding notes at 100% of their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest. including additional
amounts. it any. up to but not including the date of repurchase. In addition, unless we elect to satisfy our
conversion obligation entirely in shares of our common stock. upon a conversion, we will be required 1o make
a cash payment of up to $1.000 for cach $1.000 in principal amount of notes converted. However, we may not
hive enough available cash or be able to obtain financing at the time we are required to make repurchases of
tendered notes or settlement of converted notes. Any credit lacility in place at the time of a repurchase or
conversion of the notes may also define as a default thereunder the events requiring repurchase or cash
payment upon conversion of the notes or otherwise limit our ability Lo use borrowings to pay any cash payable
on a repurchase or conversion of the notes and may prohibit us from making any cash pavments on the
repurchase or conversion of the notes if a default or event of default has occurred under that facility withouwt
the consent of the lenders under that credit facility. Our failure to repurchase tendered notes at a time when
the repurchase is requircd by the indenture or to pay any cash payable on a conversion of the notes would
constitute a default under the indenture. A default under the indenwre or the fundamental change itself could
lead to a default under the other existing and future agreements governing our indebtedness. If the repayment
of the related indebtedness were to be accelerated after any applicuble notice or grace periods. we may not
have sufficient funds to repay the indebtedness and repurchase the notes or make cash payments upon
conversion thereof.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS {continued)
DISCLOSURE NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K contains statements that are “forward-looking statements™ within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933. as amended. or the Securities Act, and Scction 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. All statentents contained in this
Form 10-K, other than statements of historical facts, are “forward-looking statements™ for purposes of these
provisions. including any statements regarding:

* prices and demand for oil and natural gas;

levels of oil and natural gas exploration and production uctivities:
* demand for contract drilling and drilling related services and demand for rental tools:

* our future operating results and profitability:

our future rig utilization, dayrates and rental tools activity:

* entering into new, or extending existing, drilling contracts and our expectations concerning when our
rigs will commence operations under such contracts:

* growth through acquisitions of companies or assets:
* construction or upgrades of rigs;
* entering into joint venture agreements with local companies;

* our future capital expenditures and investments in the acquisition and refurbishment of rigs and
equipment, including the rigs being constructed by our Saudi Arabia joint venture:

our future liquidity:
* availability and sources of funds to reduce our debt and expectations of when debt will be reduced:;

* the outcome of pending and future legal proceedings. tax assessments and other claims, including the
outcome of our interest dispute with the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kizakhstan:

*- the availability of insurance coverage for pending or future claims;

* the enforceability of contractual indemnification in relation to pending or fuwre claims;

* compliance with covenants under our senior credit facility and indentures for our senior notes: and
* organic growth of our operations.

In some cases. you can identify these statements by forward-looking words such as “anticipate.”
“believe,” “could.” “estimate.” “expect,” “intend.” “outlook.” “may,” “should,” *will” and “would" or similar
words. Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by our management
m light of their experience and perception of historical trends. current conditions. expected future develop-
ments and other factors they believe are relevant. Although our management believes that their assumptions
are reasonable based on information currently available, those assumptions are subject 1o significant risks and
uncertainties, many of which are outside of our control. The following factors, as well as any other cautionary
language included in this Form 10-K, provide examples of risks, uncertainties and events that may cause our
actual results to differ materially from the expectations we describe in our “forward-looking statements.”

LLIFY LAY

* worldwide economic and business conditions that adversely affect market conditions and/or the cost of
doing business:

* the U.S. economy and the demand for natural gas;
* fluctuations in the market prices of oil and natural gas;

* imposition of unanticipated trade restrictions:




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (continued)
DISCLOSURE NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS (continued)
« unanticipated operating hazards and uninsured risks;
+ political instability, terrorism or war;

« governmental regulations, including changes in tax laws or ability to remit funds to the U.S., that
adversely affect the cost of doing business;

« adverse environmental events;

« adverse weather conditions;

« changes in the concentration of customer and supplier relationships;

« unexpected cost increases for upgrade and refurbishment projects;

» delays in obtaining components for capital projects;

* shortages of skilled labor,

. unanticipated cancellation of contradts by operators without cause;

* breakdown of equipment and other operational problems;

= changes in competition; and

« other similar factors (some of which are discussed in documents referred to in this Form 10-K).

. Each “forward-looking statement” speaks only as of the date of this Form 10-K, and we undertake no
obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise. Before you decide to invest in our securities, you should be aware that the
oceurrence of the events described in these risk factors and elsewhere in this Form 10-K could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease office space in Houston for our corporate headquarters. Additionally. we own and lease -office -

space and operating facilities in various locations, primarily to the extent necessary for administrative and
operational support functions.

Land 'Rigs

The following table shows, as of December 31, 2007. the locations and drilling depth ratings _6f 6511:
32 land rigs available for service, including four rigs in our 50% owned Joint venture in Saudi Aribia;

Twenty-five of these rigs were under contract, five were available for contract and two were cold stacked as of
December 31, 2007, ' :

_ . Drilling Depth Rating in Feet
. 10,000 10,000 Over

* Region _ ' -or Less 25000 25000 Total
Asia Pacific. .. ... .., e ! 8 - 9
CIS............... e — 5 3 8
Latin America .. ..., ............ e — 3 5 .8
Africa/Middle East. .. .......... . ... ... ... . ... . .. — 7@ o0 7

Total ... ...... e N 23 8 . R

(1) Rig 206 was sold in carly 2008..

(2) Four are in a 50% owned joint venture in Saudi Arabia with two additional rigs under construction.

Barge Rigs ' - SN

The following table s.hqu}s our two internationa deep drilling barges as of December 31, 200?{. Both of
these rigs were under contract at December 31, 2007.

Year Built Maximim

or Last Drilling - -
International Horsepower  Refurbished Depth (Feet)
Caspian Sea:
Rig No. 257 .. ... . ... . . .. .. 3.000 1999 30,000
Mexico:
RigNo. 53 . ... ... .. .. ... ... .. 1.600 2004 20.000
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES (continued)
Barge Rigs (continued)

The following table shows our 16 deep, intermediate, workover and shallow drilling barge rigs located in
the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. Thirteen of these barge rigs were under contract and one was available for contract
as of December 31, 2007. Two barge rigs are cold stacked and not currently available for work.

Year Built Maximum
or Last Drilling
u.s. Horsepower  Refurbished Depth (Feet)
Deep drilling:
RigNo. 12 ... ... .. i i 1,500 2006 20,000
RigNo. 15 ... i 1,000 2007 15,000
RigNo. 50 ... 2,000 2006 25,000
RigNo.51 ... i 2,000 2003 25,000
RigNO.54 .. s 2,000 2006 25,000
RigNO.55 ... o 2,000 2001 25,000
RigNo.56 .. ... 2,000 2005 25,000
RigNo. 72 ... o 3,000 2005 30,000
RigNo.76 ...... . ... ... ... ot 3,000 2004 30,000
RigNo. 77 .o i 3,000 2006 30,000
Intermediate drilling:
RigNo. 8 ......... ... ... o i 1,000 2007 14,000
RigN0.20 ..o e 1,000 2005 13,500
RigNo. 21 ... . s 1,200 2007 14,000
Workover and shallow drilling:
RigNo. 6(1)2) .. ... ..o 700 1995 —
RigNo. 16 ... 1,000 ' 1994 13,500
RigNo.23(2) ... ... i 1,000 1993 13,000

(1) Workover rig.
(2) Cold Stacked
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES (continued)
Barge Rigs (continued)

The following table pre:‘;ems our utilization rates and rigs available for service for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Year Ended
December 31,
Transition Zone Rig Data 2007 2006
U.S. barge deep drilling:
Rigs available for service(1) . ... ... .. ... ... .. ... ... ... .. .. .. ... 10.0 9.6
Utilization rate of rigs available for service(2). ... ... ... .. .. ... . 95% 81%
U.S. barge intermediate drilling:
Rigs available for service(1) . ...... ... ... ... . .. ... .. . ... .. . 3.3 4.0
. Utilization rate of rigs available for service(2). . .......... . . ... . ... . ... 70% 72%
U.S. barge workover and shallow drilling;
Rigs availuble for service(l) . ........ .. . ... .. .. ... . .. ... ... 3.0 54
Utilizatit_)n rate of rigs availuble for Serviq_e(Z) .......................... . 0% 53%
International barge drilling: ' ‘
Rigs available for service(1) . ...... ... ... ... . . . . . .. . .. . .. 20 3.2
Utilization rate of rigé uvai]ablf; for servicé(2)... .. ... ... .. .. .. ... ... 100% 100%
U.S. Land Rig Data
Rigs available for service(l): ... ... ... ... S 1.6 0.8
Utilization rate of rigs available for service(2): ... ......... ... ... ... . 55% 80%
International Land Rig Data
Rigs avatlable for service(1): ... . ... ... ... . .. . . ... ... ... .. .. 25.8 23.1
Utilization rate of rigs available for service(2): ............ ... .. ... ... . 73% 03%

{1} The number of 100 percent-owned rigs available for service is determined by calculating the number of days cach rig was in our fleet
and was under contract or available for contract. For exsmple. a rig under contract or available for contract for six months of a year
ix 0.5 rigs available for service for such year. Our method of computation of rigs availuble for service may not be comparable to other
similarly titled measures of other companics,

(2) Rig utilization rates are based on a weighted average basis assuming 365 days availability for all rigs available for service. Rigs
acquired or disposed of are treated as added to or removed from the rig fleet as of the date of acquisition or disposal. Rigs that are in
operation or fully or partially staffed and on a revenue-producing standby status are considered to be utilized. Rigs under contract that
generate revenues during moves between locations or during mehilization or demobilization are also considered to be utilized. Our
method of computation of rig utilization may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For information on Legal Proceedings. see Note 13. Commitments and Contingencies, in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements included in ltem § of this annual report on Form 10-K, which information is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to Parker Drilling Company security holders during the fourth quarter of
2007. :
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Parker Drilling Company’s common stock is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange under
the symbol “PKD.” At the close of business on December 31, 2007, there were 1,947 holders of record of
Parker Drilling common stock. The following table sets forth the high and low prices per share of Parker
Drilling’s common stock, as reported on the New York Stock Exchange composite tape, for the periods
indicated:

2007 2006
Quarter High Low High Low
ST P $976 $750 $l244 807
Second . . ... 1210 940 9.84 6.10
THIrd . oo e 11.65 7.01 7.65 6.25
Fourth ........................................... 9.07 6.70 10.05 6.50

Mosl of our stockholders maintain their shares as beneficial owners in “street name” accounts and are
not, individually, stockholders of record. As of January 31, 2008, our common stock was held by 1,934 holders
of record and an estimated 27,800 beneficial owners.

Restrictions contained in Parker Drilling’s existing credit agreement and the indentures for the
9.625% Senior Notes and 2.125% Convertible Senior Notes restrict the payment of dividends. We have no
present intention to pay dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

We purchased 882 shares at a price of $7.20 on December 19, 2007 from Parker Drilling personnel to
satisfy tax liabilities when portions of restricted stock grants vested.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tuble presents selected historical consolidated financial data derived from the audited
financial statements of Parker Drilling Company for cach of the five vears in the period ended December 31,
2007. The following financial data should be read in conjunction with "Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Conditior: and Results of Operations™ and the financial statements and related notes appearing
elscwhere in this Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006(1) 2005(2) 2004 2003(3)

(Dollars in Theusands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Income Statement Data

Total drilling and rental revenues ... ... .., S 654.573 $586.435  $531.662  $376.525 S 338.653
Total operating income .. ... ......... .., 190,983 143,326 115,123 23,867 22927
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint venture

and related charges .. ............ ..., (27.101) —_ — — —
Otherexpense ....................... (22.081)  (25.891)  (44.895)  (59.423) (58.376)
Income tax (expense) benefit ... .. ....... (37.723) (36.409) 28.584 {15.009) (16,985)
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . . 104,078 81,026 98.812 {50.565) (52.434)
Netincome (foss) ... .................. 104,078 81.026 98.883 (47.083)  (109.699)
Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Income (loss) from continuing

operations . ... ... ... .. S 695 § 076 S 103 0§ (054) S (0.56)

Net income (loss) .. ............ ... . $ 095 § 076 % .03 & @500 $ (1.7
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Income (loss) from continuing

OPCrations . .. ..., ..., ........ ... -5 094 S5 075 § 162 5 054y §  (0.56)

Netincome (loss) ... ... ............, $ 694 5 075 5 102 0§ (05§ (LD
Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalents. .. ... ... ... ... S 6024 $ 92203 $ 60176 % 44267  S§ 67.765
Marketable securities .. ... ... ... ... ... — 62.920 18.000 - —
Property, plant and equipment, net ... ... ., 385.888 435473 355.397 382.824 387.664
Assets held forsale ... ... ... ... . ... — 4,828 — 23.665 150.370
Towl assets. . ... ... Lo L L 1.076.987 901,301 801.620 726.390 847,632
Totul tong-term debt and capital leases.

including current debt . . . ... ... ... . ... 373.721 329368 380.015 481.063 571.625
Stockholders” equity .. ... ... ... ... ... 534724 459.099 259829 148.917 192.803

(1} The 2006 results reflect the reversal of an $12.6 million valuatdon allowance at the end of 2006 and the current year utilization of
$5.4 mitlion of NOL's, buth related to Louisiang state net operating toss curyforwands. See Note 7 in the notes to the consolidated
finuncial statements,

(2) The 2003 resubs reflect the reversal of a $71.5 millien valuation allowance related to federal net operating loss carryforwards and
other deferred tax assets,

{3} In June 2003. we recognized a $53.8 miltion impairment charge in discontinued opetations related to our plan w sell the U.S. Gulf of
Menico offshore assets, See Note 2 in the notes 1o the consolidated financial statements.




I'TEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Summary — Our business continues to benefit from the favorable market conditions resulting primarily from
high commodity prices and worldwide demand. The price of oil has remained at world record levels for the past
few vears and shows few signs of retreating. unless there is an unanticipated and precipitous reduction in demand,
for example. due o a recession atfecting multiple countries currently fueling the demand. Nutoral gas prices have
continved 1o fluctuate and are more susceplible to factors that affect temporal demand, such as weather.

As a contract driller and provider of rental wools. our financial results are largely dependent upon the level
of oil and gas exploration and drilling of major. large independent and national oil companies around the
world, Due 1o the sustained high oil prices most operators have increased their budgets and are actively
seeking to increase their reserves to meet worldwide demand for oil. primarily in internationat locations. As
part of our strategic initiatives, we strive to deploy our international fand rigs to those arcas and for those
operators that we anticipate will generate long-term profits.

We have upgraded our domestic barge fleet during the past few years to enhance our ability o provide
the safest and lowest total well cost drilling service to operators drilling for nawral gas in the Gulf of Mexico
transition zones. We believe our preferred fleet wilt continue to generate solid financial results despite
moderate soltening in natural gas demand.

Overview — Total operating income increased 20 percent over 2006 primarily as a result of continued
strong performance from our U.S. Gulf of Mexico operations and rental tools business. Demand in the U.S. for
both barge rig and rental tools was consistently high in 2007, International operations grew in the second half
of the year as we trunsitioned {o new contracts, with revenues in the last six months of the year $43.7 million

. (36 percent) higher than in the first hall.

Drilling and rental operating income was up 33 percent ($47.7 million). wilh overall drilling operations
utilization at 75 percent. up from 69 percent in 2006. Utilization in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico market was
78 percent compared to 71 percent in 2006, with deep drilling barge wilization at 93 percent. Quail operating
profit was also up $3.2 million over 2006 on a revenue increase of $16.0 million. We also benefited from the
sale of two workover barges. resulting in a gain of $15.1 million.

In international markets. utilization increased 1o 88 percent by the end of the year as we commenced
operation on substantially all of our new land drilling contracts. At the end of 2007, we had five rigs drilling
in Mexico, another rigging up and another moving to location. both of which commenced operation in the first
quarter of 2008. Two rigs in Colombia worked most of 2007 after commencing operations in the fourth quarter
of 2006. In the CIS region. seven of nine rigs were working by the end of the year. Six of these rigs had
completed long-term contracts in 2006.

In our Africa Middle Fast region, start up of new country operations was slow and difficult, In Libya, we
experienced costly shortages of cquipment and other start up issues which delayed commencement. Qur
customer terminated our three-year contract in early January after completion of the first well. In Algeria. we
experienced delays in getting the newly constructed rigs into the country and rigged up and incurred
significant downtime during the lirst few months of operations, although both rigs operated throughout the
fourth guarter with minimal downtime.,

Our 50 percent owned Saudi Arabia joint venture has experienced significant cost overruns due to increases
in vendor prices, costs 1o remedy defects in construction and delays in equipment delivery. Although the joint
venture has expended significant non-budgeted costs 1o commission rigs one through four. the rigs were late in
starting drilling operations, The joint venture customer. Saudi Aramco. initially suspended ligudated damages
for six months. but began deducting them from the November and December 2007 invoices through a 50 percent
reduction of dayrates. At the request of the joint venture. Saudi Arameo subsequently agreed 1o suspend further
deductions pending a resolution of this issue. In the fourth quarter of 2007 we accrued $13.8 mitlion (our
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OVERVIEW AND OQUTLOOK (continued)
Overview (continued)

50 percent portion) of liquidated damages. We also recorded $9.8 miilion in operating losses during the period,
and provided a $3.5 million reserve for advances related to the joint venture.

On December 12, 2007, PKD Kazakhstan paid the tax portion of the Income Tax assessment which is
described further in Note 13 to the financial statements. The payment was partially funded by drawing
$20 million from our revolving credit agreement.

Outlook — We anticipate a continuation of favorable market conditions in 2008. As a result, we expect
strong results in 2008 from our international operations as we realize full year benefits of contracts at higher
dayrates commencing throughout 2007 in Mexico, Kazakhstan and Turkmenistan, In addition. Rig 267 in
Mexico spud in early February and Rig 247, which has been upgraded, is mobilizing for a contract in
Kazakhstan and is expected to spud in March 2008. Rig 269, a new build, is expected to begin mobilization in
March 2008 and should commence operations in Kazakhstan mid 2008. The contract for our barge rig in the
Caspian Sea is up for renewal in April 2008, and we expect to reach an agreement with our customer for a
substantial increase in the dayrate. U.S. operations are also projected to continue to provide strong results in
2008 although we expect some softening in utilization and dayrates.

We anticipate our rental tools segment will experience further growth attributable to full-year results of
additional capital invested throughout 2007.

In addition, we will continue our BP Liberty FEED project for BP Alaska through the first quarter of
2008, and await the award of the full project which has been presented 1o its board for sanctioning in April
2008. When completed, this rig will be capable of drilling extended-reach wells of approximately 44,000 feet.

We anticipate continued high operating costs over the next few months for the four rigs currently
operating in our Saudi Arabia joint venture due primarily to continved rental of certain components until they
are replaced with permanent capital equipment, which is anticipated to be completed by the end of the second
quarter 2008. The joint venture also continues to incur significant capital costs associated with the
commissioning of the remaining two rigs and is in discussions with Saudi Aramco to resolve the cost issues
associated with the project.

Recent Events — On February 25, 2008, the Kazakhstan branch of Parker Drilling Company International
Limited, a subsidiary of Parker Drilling, received notice that the Atyrau Economic Court issued a ruling
canceling the interest assessment of approximately US$33 million issued by the Ministry of Finance of the
Republic of Kazakhstan, which was calculated from the date the revenue was received in 2000. and has ruled
that the interest should be recalculated from and after October 2003, the date of the assessment, through
December 12, 2007, the date the principal 1ax was paid. Although this would reduce interest to approximately
$13 miltion, we have not adjusted our reserve, pending final resolution. See Note 13, Commitments and
Contingencies, “Kazakhstan Tax Claim”™ in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2006

We recorded net income of $104.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, as compared to net
income of $81.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Drilling and rental operating income was
$200.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to $167.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006. Gain on disposition of assets for 2007 was $16.4 million as compared to $7.6 million in
the comparable period in 2006.




RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

The following is an analysis of our operating results for the comparable periods:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)

Drilling and rental revenues:

US.drlling ..., .. $231,139 35% $191,225 33%
International drilling . ........... AP 285,403 43% 273,216 46%
Rentaltools. .. ... ... ... ... .. . ... ... .. .. ... 138,031  _21% 121,994 21%
Total drilling and rental revenues . .. ................... $654,573  100% $586,435  100%

Drilling and rental operating income:
UL S. drilling gross margin excluding depreciation amnd

amortization{1) .. ... ... . $132,746 37% $107,763 56%
International drilling gross margin excluding depreciation " '
and amortization(1) . .......... ... .. . . . ... . .. ... 70,124 25% 53,506 20%
Rental tools gross margin excluding depreciation and :
amortization{1) . ........ ... .. .. ... . . 83.654 - 61% 73540  62%
Depreciatibn and amortization .. ........... e e (85,803 . (69,270)
Total drilling and rental operating income(2) .. .. ... .. W 200721 167,539
General and administrative expense . . ... . ... ... ...... (24,708) “(31,786)
Provision for reduction in carrying value of certain assets . . (1462) . —
Gain on disposition of assets, net . ... ... e 16,432 - 7,573
Total operating income .................... PP $190,983 ° $143,326

(1) Drilling and rental gross margins, excluding depreciation and amortization, are computed as dnllmg and remal revenues less direct

drilling and rental operating expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization expense; drilling and remal gross margm pergcnmges

~are computed as drilling and renial gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, as a percent of drilling and rental revenues.
The gross margin amounts, excluding depreciation and amortization, and gross margm percentages should not be used as a substitute
for those amounts reported under accounting priniciples generally accepzed in the United S:a:cs {(“GAAP™). However, we monilor our
business segments based on several criteria, including dnllmg and rental gross margin, Managemem believes that this information is
useful to our investors because it more accurately reflects cash generated by ségment. Such gross margin amounis are reconuled to
our most comparable GAAP measure as follows: . ‘ o : ‘ i

* International

Year Ended December 31, 2007 - RE . © US. Drilling Drilling Rental Tools
' ' B i {Dollars in Thousands)

Drilling and rental operating income(2) . . ... ..... ... ... ... . . . . ..., $ 09,554 $41,943 £59.264

Depreciation and amortization *. . . . . . . L S L.l 733232 28081 - 2439077

Drilling and rental gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization . . . . . . .. 8132746 . . $70.124 | S83.654

Year Ended December 31, 2006 o o - f ’

Drilli'ﬂé and rental operating income(2) ... .t ..., , .. e v, $°83.370 $27.465 $56,704
- Depreciation and amortization . .. ... ... ... .. ... ... e T 24,393 26,041 - 18,8306

Drilling and rental gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization . . ... .. $107.763 © - 853506 - $73.540

(2) Drilling and rental operating income — drilling and rental revenues less direct drilling and rental operating expenses. including depre-
ciation and amortization expense.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)
U.S. Drilling Segment

Revenues for the U.S. drilling segment increased $39.9 million to $231.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2006. The increased revenues were primarily
due to a $46.0 million increase for deep drilling barges, as a result of a full year of operations for ultra-deep
Barge Rig 77. 95 percent fleet utilization in 2007 versus 81 percent in 2006 and a 12 percent increase in
dayrates. These increases were partially offset by a $15.9 million decrease in revenues for intermediate and
workover barges due primarily to the sale of workover Barge Rigs 9 and 26 (see Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K). Barge Rig 12 was undergoing an upgrade from workover 1o
deep drilling status until late May 2006 and newly constructed Barge Rig 77 began operations in December
2006. During 2007 we also had two repositioned internationai land rigs operating in the U.S. market which
contributed $4.2 million to the increase in U.S, drilling segment revenues and we had an additional $5.6 million
related to engineering services contracts.

Average dayrates for the deep drilling barge rigs increased approximately $5.400 per day in 2007 as
compared 1o 2006. As a result of higher dayrates and additional revenue days on the deep drilling barge ngs,
the addition of two land rigs, gross margins, excluding depreciation and amortization, increased $25.0 million
to $132.7 million. This increase includes a $1.8 million increase for the engineering services contracts referred
to above, partially offset by a $1.1 million decrease for the two land rigs as a result of expenses incurred in
moving the rigs out of the U.S. after completion of wells in early 2007.

International Drilling Segment

International drilling revenues increased $12.2 million to $285.4 million during the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2007. Of this increase, $28.1 million is related to an increase in international land drilling revenues,
offset by a $15.9 million decrease in revenues from offshore operations. The decline of $15.9 million in
offshore operations is due primarily to the sale of our barge rigs in Nigeria in the third quarter of 2006.

In'our Americas region, land drilling revenues in Mexico increased $6.7 million to $23.4 million due to
higher dayrates under the new contracts entered into in 2007 and higher utilization. In Colombia, revenues
were $35.0 million higher. in 2007 than in 2006, as Rig 268 commenced operation on December 27, 2006 and
Rig 27! was mobilizing at the end of 2006, whereas both rigs operated most of 2007.

Land revenues in the CIS decreased by $10.7 million as a result of:
* completion of the two-rig, TCO contract in 2006 ($30.9 million); 7
* the release of our three rigs in Turkmenistan ($7.9 million) during the third quarter of 2006; and-

* areduction in revenues related to our Sakhalin Island operations ($2.8 million primarily related to
lower reimbursable revenues and the completion of a water reinjection well project in July 2006). .

These decreases were partially offset by:

* an $18.5 million increase in the Karachaganak area of Kazakhstan, where Rig 107 operated all year in
+2007 (the rig was released in late December 2005 from the TCO contract and commenced operations ‘at
the-end of March 2006) and the addition of Rigs 249 and 258 (from the TCO contract), both of which

began drilling in the third quarter of 2007; and : B

* increases related to the full-year operation of Rig 236, which began drilling in western Kd;akhstﬁn' in
late 2006 ($12.5 million).

[n our Asia Pacific region, revenues decreased $11.5 million due mainly to completion of contracts in-
Bangladesh for Rig 225 ($8.7 million) and for two of our rigs in New Zealand ($1.7 million). :

Gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization, for international land operations increased by
$12.1 million. In Mexico, gross margin, excluding depreciation and amortization. improved by $13.9 million
due to higher dayrates under new contracts and to lower expenses in 2007, as 2006 included costs to close
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued}

International Drilling Segment {(continued)

down operations and relocate seven rigs outside Mexico. In Colombia, gross margin, excluding depreciation
and amortization, increased by $15.9 million as two rigs drilted.most of 2007, compared to virtually no rigs
operating in Colombia in the comparable period of 2006. In the Karachaganak area of Kazakhstan, gross |
margin,-excluding depreciation and amortization, increased $8.8 million as two rigs operated all of the period
of 2007, compared to one rig in the comparable period of 2006 and also as a resuit of pre-mobilization
standby and operating revenues for Rigs 249 and 258 that moved into the field in 2007..Rig 236, also
operating.in Kazakhstan, contributed an increase of $1.5 million for the perlod of 2007, as this rig was not
worklng in the region in the comparable peried in 2006.

N The incréasés were partially offset by $9.8 million in losses incurred'in our Africa Middle East region as
our Libya opérations incurred a $3.8 million loss mainly due to start up costs being written off as a result of
an abrupt contract termination by our customer after completion of one well and in Algeria where excessive
downtime.and delayed start-ups contributed to a loss of $4.8 million for the ycar. Other gross margin decreases
related-to,the completion of contract wells under our TCO contract, the release of rigs in Turkmenistan, and
relocation of Rig 122 and 256 to U.S. operations, all of which occurred in 2006.

“"International offshore revenues declined $15.9 million to'$34.9 million during the year ended 2007
compared 'to 2006. This decrease was due primarily to the sale of our Nigerian barge rigs in the third quarter
of 2006. Revenues for Barge Rig 53 in Mexico increased $4.1 million due'to a higher dayrate. Gross margins,
excluding deprectation and amortization, for international offshore operations increased $4.5 million as a result
of the higher dayrate in Mexico combined with lower costs in the Caspian Sea, partially -offset by the sale of
the ngema barge rlgs. ; ‘ .

RentalToolsSegment C S L . \

Rental tools revenues increased $16.0 million to $138.0 million durihg the yéar ended December 31, "
2007 as compared to 2006. The increase was.-due primarily to an increase- in rental revenues of $7.3 million
from our-Texarkana operations net of reductions at our Odessa facility for customers formerly served by that
location,$1.7 million from international rentals, $9.0 million from our Evanston, Wyoming operations and
$3.6 million from our New Iberia location, partially offset by a decline of $5.5. million from our Victoria,
Texas operation. '

Revenues increased primarily due to hlgher demand and hlgher rentd] tool sales. Rental tools gross
margins, excluding depreciation and amortization, increased $8.2 ‘miillion to '$83.7 million for the cufrent
period as,compared, to 2006. Gross margin percentage, excluding depreciation and amortization, decreased to
61 percent in the current period as compared to 62 percent in 2006. ;
Other Financial Data |

Gain on asset dispositions increased by $8.9 million, due primarily to the' gdin on the sale of the two
workover; barge rigs.in-the first quarter of 2007, Interest expense declined $6.4 million during the year ended
Dece.mbe[ ,31“2007 as compared . to 2006 due to lower average rates on our, outstanding debt and capitalization
of $6.2 million: in.interest on-rig construction projects in 2007. There was, $3.6 million. of capitalized interest
for the year ended December 31, 2006. Interest income decreased $1.5 million when, compared to 2006 due to
lower levels of cash available for investment. Our 2007 equity loss related to our 50 percent-owned Joint
venture‘in Saudi Arabia was $27.1 million. consisfing of $13.8 million in accruéd ‘hqmdated damages a2 $9.8
operating loss and a $3.5 million reserve for advances to the joint venture. Genéral and ‘administration expense
decreased. $7.1 million as.compared to the. year ended 2006 .as a result. of a change, in 2007 going forward in
our method of estimating the amount of corporate shared services costs allocable to, operations. The current
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Other Financial Data (continued)

method is based on a third party study of actual shared service time spent on each operation. whereas the
- previous method was less precise and based on each gperation’s portion of total revenues.

In 2004, we entered into two variable-to-fixed interest rate swap agreements. The swap agreements did
not qualify for hedge accounting and accordingly, we reported the mark-to-market change in the fair value of
the interest rate derivatives in earnings. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we recognized a $0.7 million
decrease in the fair value of the derivative positions and for the year ended December 31, 2006, we recognized
a minimal change in the fair value of the derivative positions. On July 17. 2007, we terminated one swap
scheduled to expire in September 2008 and received $(.7 million. The second swap was not renewed and
expired on September 4, 2007,

Income tax expense was $37.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to
$36.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

We recorded net income of $81.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, as compared to net
income of $98.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The 2006 results reflect a reversal of a
512.6 million valuation allowance and the current year utilization of $5.4 million of net operating loss
(“NOL") carryforwards, both related to Louisiana state NOL carryforwards, Included in 2005 net income was
$71.5 million related to the reversal of a valuation allowance related to our federal NOL. Drilling and rental
oper..umg mcome was $167.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. as compared to $122.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2005. Gain on disposition of assets was $7.6 million for the 2006 perlod as
Lompared to $25.6 million for the 2005 penod

The foflowmg is an analysis of our operating results for the comparable periods:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005

(Dollars in Thousands)

‘Drilling and ‘rental revenues:

US.drilling ... .. .. .. ... ... .. . $191.225 32% $128.252 24%
International drilling .. ... ... .. L 273216 47% 308,572 58%
~ Rentalwools............ ... e S 121,994  21% 94838  18%
. Tol.:l drilling and rental revenues . . . e $586.435  100% $531.662  100%

'Dnllmg and rental operating income:
~U.S. drilling gross margin excluding depreciation and

coamortization(t) Lo $107.763 . 56% $ 61.425 48% .
International drilling gross margin excluding depreciation »
and amortization(1) .. ........ .. .. .. ... . ... ... .. 53.5006 20% 71411 23%
Rental tools gross margin excluding depreciation and ' '
amortization(1) . ..... ... ... ... ... .. ..., 75.540 62%  56.027 60%
Depreciation and amortization . . .. ................ .. (69,270) (67.204)
Total drilling and rental operating income(2) . ............ 167,539 122,259
General and administrative expense . ................. (31.786) (27.830) - -
Provision for:reduction in carrying value of certain assets . . — (4.884)
Gain on disposition of assets, net . . . ., .. T 7.573 25,578
Total operating income .. .......... .. ... ... L, $143.326 $115.123

(lJ Dl’llllllg and rcnlal. gross margins. excluding depreuatum and amortization, are computed as drilling,and rental revenues less direct |,
drllllmJ and rental operating expenses. excluding depreciation and amortization expense; duilmg and rental . gross margin percentages '
are u)mputed as dnllm;_. and rental gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization as a percent of drilling and rental revenues,
The gross margin amounts excluding depreciation and ameortization and gross margin percentages should no1 be used as a substitute
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Other Financial Data (continued)

for those amounts reported under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). However, we monitor our
business segments based on scveral criteria. including drilling and rental gross margin. Management believes that this information is
useful to our investors because it more accurately reflects cash generated by segment. Such gross margin amounts are reconciled
10 our most comparable GAAP measure as follows:

International
Year Ended December 31, 2006 U.S, Drilling Drilling Rental Tools
‘ (Dollars in Theusands)

Drilling and rental operating income(2) ... .. ... ... ... .. ..., $ 83,370 $27.463 $56,704
Depreciation and amortization . ., , .. ... .. . e 24.393 26,041 18,836
Drilling and rental gross margin excluding depreciation and amorlization . . . . $10r7.763 $53,506 $75.540
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Drilling and rental operating income(2} .. ... .. . L $ 41,739 540,281 $40,239
Depreciation and amortization . ... ... .. 19,686 31,130 16,388
Drilling and rental gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization . . . . $ 61,425 371,411 $56.627

(2) Drilling and rental operating income — drilling and rental revenues less direet drilling and rental operating expenses. including depre-
ciation and amortization expense.

U.S. Drilling Segment

-Revenues for the U.S. drilling segment increased $63.0 million to $191.2 million as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2005. The increased revenues were primarily due to a $55.6 million increase for our
barge drilling operations where we had higher dayrates, that more than offset lower utilization. Barge Rig 12
was undergoing an upgrade from workover to deep drilling status until late May and we also had maintenance
and upgrade time for Barge Rigs 8. 54 and 50. Newly constructed Barge Rig 77 also began operations in
December 2006. During the last half of 2006 we also repositioned two international land rigs into the
U.S. market which contributed $7.1 million to the increase in U.S. drilling segment revenues.

As of December 31, 2006 this segment consisted of 19 barge rigs: ten deep drilling barge rigs, four
intermediate driiling barge rigs and five workover barge rigs; and two land rigs. Two of the workover barge
rigs were reflected as assets held for sale as of December 31, 2006 and were sold in early January 2007, See
Note 2. :

Average dayrates for the deep drilling barge rigs increased approximately $14,300 per day in 2006 as
compared to 2005. As a result of approximately 46 percent higher dayrates on all barge rigs, the addition of
two land rigs and effective operating cost controls, gross margins, excluding depreciation and amortization
increased $46.3 million to $107.8 million. Gross margin percentages exchuding depreciation and amortization
increased from 48 percent during the year ended 2005 to 56 percent during the year ended of 2006. This
increase included $3.6 million for the two land rigs discussed above as compared to 2005 which included start
up costs for the barge Rig 72 transition from Nigeria,

International Drilling Segment

International dritling revenues decreased $35.4 million to $273.2 million during the year ended
December 31, 2006 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2005 due to the completion of long term
contracts and the transition to new contracts throughout the year. Internatlonal land drilling revenues decreased
$24 .4 million and offshore operations declined $11.0 million.

The international land drilling revenues decrease was attributable primarily to completion of contracts in
Mexico ($33.5 million), Kazakhstan TCO contract ($20.1 million), and the partial completion of our contracts
in Turkmenistan ($1.9 million}, resulting in the release of two of three rigs, and New Zealand ($1.8 million)
due to downtime for Rig 188 in the second quarter of 2006. The sale i in 2005 of rigs in Colombia and Peru
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS {(continued)
International Drilling Segment {continued)

also caused a decline of $4.3 million in revenues. These decreases were partially offset by increases from new
international land contracts. a portion of which are attributable to release of above mentioned rigs that were
re-located to other operating areas.

In the CIS region. the overall decline in land drilling revenues during the year ended 2006 was
57.9 million. Declines included the Kazakhstan-TCO project completion ($20.1 million). the completion of
wells for two rigs in Turkmenistan ($1.9 million). mentioned above and a decline ol $0.7 million in Russia as
the result of contract completion in mid-2005. Revenues increased $10.9 million in the CIS region for our
O&M contracts. Our Orlun project contributed $4.6 million to the increase as the contract was fully
operational for the entire year in 2006 and our Rig 262 Sakhalin Island project contributed $6.3 million, as
both duyrates and services provided increased. In the Karachaganak area of Kazakhstan. revenues increased by
53.9 million due to the addition of Rig 107 (which was transitioned from the TCO project). which began
drilling in late Muarch 2006,

An increase in revenue of $13.4 million in Papua New Guinea was the result of the operation of two full
O&M contructs for the year ended in 2006, whereas they were only labor contracts in 2005 with full O&M
operations not commencing until late in the third quarter of 2005. Alse, Rig 140 drilled all of 2006, whereas it
did not drill in 2005. and we negotimted a rate increase on Rig 226 effective June 2006. In Indonesia. increased
revenues were due to higher utilization as two rigs operated most of 2006, whercas the rigs were on reduced
rates until June in 2005. Revenues in Bangladesh increased $7.6 million due to operation of Rig 225 in 2006
whereas operations, were suspended due to a well control incident in late June 2005, Revenues were down
$1.8 million in New Zealund due primarily to lower operating and reimbursable revenues relating to Rig 188
which was idle during the second quarter of’ 2006,

International offshore revenues declined $11.0 million to $30.8 million during 2006 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2005. This decrease was due primarily to the reduced force majeure rates applicable
to our Nigerian barge rigs during the first quarter of 2006 and the sale of these rigs in the third quarter of
2006 and lower revenues on Rig 257 in the Cuaspian Sea areas due 1o maintenance days, This decrease was
partially offset by a $1.4 million increase in revenues for our barge rig in Mexico due to higher dayrates.

Gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization for our international operations decreased by
S17.9 million due 1o the completion of contracts in Mexico. TCO. and in Turkmenistan. and as a result of the
sale ol rigs in Peru and Colombia in the second and third quarters of 2005. These decreases were partially
offset by increases on our O&M contracts in the Russian and the CIS regions and increases in Papua New
Gumnea, where we had higher dayrates for Rig 226, increased contributions from O&M contracts and operation
of Rig 140 in 2006,

Rental Tools Segment

Rental tools revenues increased $27.2 million or 28.6 percent to $122.0 million during the year ended
December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005, Revenues increased at all U.S. locations as we added new customers
and increased rentals from our existing customer and achieved higher rental rates. Rental tools gross margins
excluding depreciation and amortization increased $18.9 million. or 33.4 percent. to $73.5 million for the
current period as compared o 2003,

Other Financial Data

General and administration expense increased approximately $4.0 million in the year ended 2006 due
primarily 1o additional stock-based compensation expense.

Gain on disposition of assets in 2006 was $7.6 million relating primarily to a gain on the sale of our two
barge rigs in Nigeria and final insurance recoveries relating to damage on Rig 255 in Bangladesh and Rig 57
in the U.S. Gult" of Mexico which occurred in 2005. During the year ended December 31, 2005, gain on
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS {continued)

Other Financizl Data (continued)

disposition of assets was $25.6 million, including $13.8 million from our asset sales program that was
completed in the third quarter of 2005 and $10.5 million from insurance proceeds on the loss of Rig 235.

Interest expense declined $10.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005
due primarily te the reduction of outstanding debt throughout 2005 of $101.0 million and {urther reduction of
$50.0 million during 2006. In addition, we capitalized $3.6 million of interest related to new rig construction
in 2006. Loss on extinguishment of debt declined by $6.3 million as a result of the significant reduction of
debt in 2005. Interest income increased $5.7 million due to a higher cash balance in 2006 as compared to
2005, due primarily to proceeds from our stock offering in January 2006, higher cash flow from operations,
and higher interest rates.

In 2004, we entered into two variable-to-fixed interest rate swap agreements neither of which are still
outstanding. The swap agreements did not qualify for hedge accounting and accordingly. we reported the
mark-to-market change in the fair value of the interest rate derivatives currently in earnings. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, there was no significant change in the fair value of the derivative positions and for
the year ended December 31, 2005, there was a $2.1 million increase in fair value during the year. For
additional information see Note 6 in the notes to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this
Form 10-K.

Income tax expense from continuing operations was $36.4 million and consisted of U.S. federal current
tax expense of $13.0 million and U.S. federal and state deferred tax expense of $17.8 million, current foreign
tax expense of $7.6 million and foreign deferred tax benefit of $2.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2006. Income tax henefit from continuing operations is $28.6 million and consists of U.S. federal current tax
expense of $1.8 million and U.S. federal deferred bencfit of $46.5 million, current foreign tux expense of
$14.5 million and foreign deferred tax benefit of $1.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, Our
effective income tax rates for financial reporting purposes were approximately 31 percent and (41) percent for
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The 2006 effective tax of 31 percent is higher than
2005 due primarily to the reversal of the Federal 2005 valuation allowance partially offset by the 2006 benefit
related to the State NOL carryforwards. The reduction in foreign taxes, net of federal benefit, in 2006 from
2005 relates to a federal tax deduction on actual foreign cash taxes paid versus accrued foreign taxes, The
decrease in income tax on foreign corporate income in 2006 is due to the increase in carnings on our domestic
corporations. U.S. taxes are provided on the carnings since we do not defer recognition of the foreign
corporation’s income under APB No. 23, “Accounting for [ncome Taxes — Special Areas.”

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESQOURCES
Operating Cash Flows

As of December 31, 2007, we had cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities of $60.1 million, a
decrease of $95.0 million from December 31, 2006. The primary sources of cash for the twelve-month period
as reflected on the consolidated statements of cash flows were $74.3 million provided by operaiing activities.
$109.2 million from the issuance of convertible debt, net of issuance costs and hedge and warrant transactions,
a $20.0 million draw on our revolving credit facility and $15.5 million from stock options exercised. The
primary use of cash was $152.9 million used in investing activitics, including $242.1 million for cupital
expenditures, a $26.4 million tax payment to Kazakhstan in Decenber 2007, a $5.0 million investment in our
Saudi joint venture and a $100.0 million redemption of Senior Floating Rate Notes. Primary sources of cash
arc insurance proceeds of $7.8 million relating to Rig 247, net proceeds of $20.5 million from the sale of two
workover barge rigs and $62.9 million in net proceeds from the sale and purchase of marketable securities.
Major capital expenditures for the period included $75.6 million on construction of new land rigs, $11.4 million
on rebuilding Rig 247 and $62.0 million for tubulars and other rental tools for the expansion of Quail Tools.

As of December 31, 2006, we had cash, cash equivalents and marketablc securities of $155.1 million, an
increase of $76.9 million from December 31, 2005. The primary sources of cash for the twelve-month period
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES {continued)
Operating Cash Flows (continued)

as reflected on the consolidated statements of cash flows were $166.9 million provided by operating aclivities.
$194.7 million used in investing activities and $59.8 million provided by financing activities. Mujor investing
activities during the year ended December 31, 2006 included $195.0 million for capital expenditures. Major
cupital expenditures for the period included $43.3 million on construction of four new 2,000 HP land rigs.
$28.8 million on construction of a new ultra-deep dritling barge. $40.9 million for tubulars and other rental
tools for Quail Tools, $10.0 million and $8.5 million on repairs and upgrades on Barge Rigs 50B and 54B.,
respectively, and $7.4 million on the conversion of workover Barge Rig 12 (o a deep drilling barge. We also
used $10.0 million 1o fund our joint venture in Saudi Arabia and $44.9 million of net investment in auction
rate securities. partially offset by $46.0 million in proceeds from the sale of two Nigeria barge rigs. Major
financing activities for the period included $99.9 million of net proceeds on our common stock issuance in
January 2006 and a $50.0 million reduction in debt. net of premium and are further detailed in subsequent
paragraphs.

As of December 31, 2005. we had cash. cash equivalents and marketable securities totaling $78.2 million.
an increase of $33.9 million from December 31, 2004. The primary sources of cash for the twelve-month
period as reflected on the consolidated statement of cash flows were $122.6 million provided by operating
activities and $74.9 million of proceeds from the disposition of assets. including insurance proceeds. The
primary uses ol cash for the year ended December 31.2005 were $69.5 million lor capital expenditures and
$94.1 million for financing activities. Major capital expenditures for the period included $28.0 million for
tubulars and other rental 1ools for Quail Tools, Our investing activities also include an investment of
$18.0 million in auction rate securitics which are classified as “Marketable securities™ on the consolidated
halance sheet. Our financing activitics included a net reduction in debt of $100.1 million. which is further
detailed in subsequent paragraphs,

Financing Activity

On luly 5. 2007, we issued $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of 2.125 percent Convertible
Senior Notes due July 15, 2012, Interest is payable semiannually on July 15th and January |15th. The initial
conversion price is approximately $13.85 per share and is subject to adjustment for the occurrence of certain
events stated within the indenture. Proceeds from the transaction were used to redeem our outstanding Senior
Floating Rate Notes. to pay the net cost of the hedge and warrant transuctions described below, and for general
Ccorporaic purposes,

In connection with the offering of the Convertible Scenior Notes, we also entered into separate convertible
note hedge transactions (collectively. the “convertible hedge transactions™) with respect Lo our common stock
with each of Bank of America. N.A.. Deutsche Bank AG. London Branch and Lehman Brothers OTC
Derivatives Inc. (collectively. the "Hedge Panticipants™). The convertible hedge transactions cover, subject to
customary anti-dilution adjustments, approximately 9.0 million shares of our common stock. Separately and
concurrently with entering into the convertible hedge transactions, we also entered into warrant transactions
{eollectively. the “warrant transactions™) with the Hedge Participants whereby we sold 1o the Hedge
Participants warrants to acquire, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustiments. up to approximately 9.0 million
shares of our common stock. The convertible hedge and issuer warrant transactions are separate transactions
that we have entered into with the Hedge Participants, and they are not part of the terms of the Convertible
Senior Notes nor will they affect the holders™ rights under the Convertible Senior Notes. Holders of the
Convertible Senior Notes will not have any rights with respect o the convertible hedge and warrant
transactions. Effectively. the hedge and warrant transactions increase the conversion price to approximately
$18.29 per share.

On September 20, 2007, we replaced our existing $40.0 million Credit Agreement with i new
$60.0 million Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (2007 Credit Facility™) which expires in September

2012. The 2007 Credit Facility is secured by rental tools equipment, accounts receivable and the stock of
substantially all of our domestic subsidiaries. other than domestic subsidiaries owned by a foreign subsidiary
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (continued)
Financing Activity (continued)

and contains customary atlirmative and negative covenants such as minimum ratios for consolidated leverage,
consolidated interest coverage and consolidated senior secured leverage.

The 2007 Credit Facility is available for general corporate purposes and to fund reimbursement
obligations under letters of credit the banks issue on our behalf pursuant to this facility. Revolving loans are
available under the 2007 Credit Facility subject to a borrowing base limitation based on 85 percent of eligible
receivables plus a value for cligible rental tools equipment. The 2007 Credit Facility calls for a borrowing
base calculation only when the 2007 Credit Facility hus outstanding loans, including letters of credit, totaling
at least $40.0 million. As of December 31, 2007, there were $12.9 million in letters of credit outstanding and
$20.0 million of outstanding loans.

On September 27, 2007. we redeemed $100.0 million face value of our Senior Floating Rate Notes
pursuant to a redemption notice dated August 17, 2007 at the redemption price of 101.0 percent. A portion of
the proceeds from the sale of our Convertible Senior Noies was used to fund the redemption,

in December 2007 we had a net draw down on our 2007 Credit Facility of $20.0 million which was
outstanding as ol December 31, 2007.

On January 23, 2006 we completed the public offering of 8,900,000 shares of our common stock at a
price of $11.23 per share. for lotal net proceeds of $99.9 million before expenses. but after underwriter
discount, Proceeds from this offering were used for capital expansions, including rig upgrades. new rig
construction and expansion of our rental tools business,

On September 8, 2006 we redeemed $50.0 million fuce value of our Senior Floating Rate Notes pursuant
to a redemption notice dated August 8, 2006 at the redemption price of 102.0 percent. Proceeds from the sale
of our Nigenan barge rigs and cash on hand were used to fund the redemption.

On February 7, 2005, we redeemed $25.0 million face value of our 10.125% Senior Notes pursuant o a
redemption notice dated January 6, 2005 at the redemption price of 105.0625 percent. Proceeds from the sale
of jackup Rig 25 and cash on hand were used to fund the redemption.

On April 21, 2005, we issued an additional $50.0 million in aggregate principal amount of our
9.625% Senior Notes due 2013 at a premium. The offering price of 111 percent of the principal amount
resulted in gross proceeds of $355.5 million. The $3.5 million premium is reflected as long-term debt and
amertized over the term of the notes. The additional notes were issued under an indenture, dated as of
October 10, 2003, under which $175.0 million in aggregate principal amount of notes of the same series were
previously issued.

On May 21, 2005, we redeemed $65.0 million of our 10.125% Senior Notes pursuant to a redemption
notice dated April 21, 2005 at the redemption price of 105.0625 percent. The redemption was funded by the
net proceeds from the issuance of the $50.0 million additional 9.625% Senior Notes on April 21, 2005 and
cash on hand.

On July 16, 2005, we redeemed $30.0 million of our 10.125% Senior Notes pursuant to a redemption
notice dated July 16, 2005 at the redemption price of 105.0625 percent. The redemption was funded with net
proceeds from the sale of our Latin America rigs and cash on hand.

On December 30, 2005, we redeemed in full the outstanding $35.6 million face value of our
10.125% Senior Notes pursuant to a redemption notice dated November 30, 2005 at the redemption price of
103.375 percent. The redemption was funded with cash on hand.

We had tetal long-term debt of $353.7 million, excluding $20.0 million currently drawn on our revolving
credit facility as of December 31, 2007. The long-term debt included:

+ $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of Convertible Senior Notes bearing inferest at a rate of
2.125 percent, which are due July 15, 2012: and
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (continued)
Financing Activity (continued)

* $225.0 million aggregate principal amount of 9.625 percent Senior Notes. which are due October 1.
2013 plus an assoctated $3.7 million in unamortized debt premium.

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately $87.2 million of liquidity. This liquidity was comprised
of $60.1 million of cash and cash equivalents on hand and $27.1 million of availability under the revelving
credit facility. We do not have any unconsolidated special-purpose entities, off-balance-sheet financing
arrungements nor guarantees of third-party financial obligations. We have no energy or commodity contracts.

The following table summarizes our future contractual cash obligations as of December 31. 2007

Less than More than
Total 1 Year Years 2-3  Years 4 -5 5 Years

(Dollars in Thousands)
Contractual cash obligations:
Long-term debt —

principal{ 1) . ... ... . ... $350.000 5 - s — $125.000 $225.000
Long-term debt —
imterest(1) . ... ..., 136,588 24313 48.625 47.408 16,242
Operating leases(2) ... ... 8.502 4,450 3.133 919 —
Purchase commitments(3) . . . . 14,720 14.720 — — —
Total contractuat obligations . . $509.810 $43.483 $51.758 $173.327 $241,242

Commercial commitments:

Long-term debt —
revolving credit

facitity(4) .......... $ 20.000 $20.000 P — 5 — $ —
Standby letters of
credid) ...... ..., 12,941 12,941 — — —

Total commercial
commitments . .......... § 32941 $32.941 $ — A — S —

(1} Leng-term debt includes the principal and interest cash obligations of the 9.625 percent Senior Notes and the 2,125 percent Convert-
ible Noies. The remaining unamortized premivm of $3.7 million is not included in the contractual cash obligations schedule.

{2) Operating leases consist of lease agreements in excess of one year for office space. equipment. vehicles and personal property.

(3) We have purchase commitments owtstanding as of December 31, 2007, related to rig upgrade projects and new rig construction.

(4 We have a 560.0 million revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 2007, $20.0 million has been drawn down and $12.9 million
of avatlability has been wsed 10 support letters of credit that have been issued, resulting in an estimated $27.1 million of availability.
The tevolving credit facility expires September 20, 2012.

We used derivative instruments to manage risks associated with interest rate fluctuations in connection
with our $100.0 million Senior Floating Rate Notes which were fully redeemed on September 27, 2007, These
derivative instruments, which consisted of variable-to-fixed interest rate swaps. did not meet the hedge criteria
in SFAS No. 133 and were therefore not designated as hedges. Accordingly. the change in the fair value of the
interest rate swaps was recognized in earnings.

On July 17. 2007. we terminated one swap scheduled to expire on September 2. 2008 and received
50.7 million. On September 4. 2007, our one remaining swap expired.
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OTHER MATTERS

Business Risks

Internationally, we specialize in drilling geologically challenging wells in locations that are difficult to
access and/or involve harsh environmental conditions. Our international services are primarily utilized by
major and national oil companies and integrated service providers in the exploration and development of
reserves of oil and gas. In the United States, we primarily drill in the transition zones of the U.S. Gulf of
Mexico for major and independent oil and gas companies. Business activity is primarily dependent on the
exploration and development activities of the companies that make up our customer base. See Item 1A, Risk
Factors, for a detailed statement of Risk Factors related to our business.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and resulls of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an
ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to bad debts, materials and supplies
obsolescence, property and cquipment, goodwill, income taxes, workers’ compensation and health insurance
and contingent liabilitics for which settlement is deemed to be probable. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. While we believe that such estimates are reasonable, actual results
could differ from these estimates.

We believe the following are our most critical accounting policies as they are complex and require
significant judgments, assumptions andfor estimates in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.
Other significant accounting policies are summarized in Note | in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment. We periodically cvaluate our property, plant and
equipment to ensure that the net carrying value is not in excess of the net realizable value. We review our
property, plant and equipment for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of such assets may be impaired. For example, evaluations are performed when we experience
sustained significant declines in utilization and dayrates and we do not contemplate recovery in the near
future, or when we reclassify property and equipment 1o assets held for sale or as discontinued operations as
prescribed by SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” We consider
a number of factors, including estimated undiscounted future cash flows, appraisals less estimated selling costs
and current market value analysis in determining net realizable value, Assets are written down to fair value if
the fair value is below net carrying value.

Asset impairment evaluations are, by nature, highly subjective. They involve expectations about future
cash flows generated by our assets and reflect management’s assumptions and judgments regarding future
industry conditions and their effect on future ulilization levels, dayrates and costs. The use of different
estimates and assumptions could result in materially different carrying values of our assets.

Impairment of Goodwill. We periodically assess whether the excess of cost over net assets acquired
{goodwill) is impaired based generally on the estimated future cash flows of that operation. If the estimated
fair value is in excess of the carrying value of the operation, no further analysis is performed. If the fair value
of each operation to which goodwill has been assigned is less than its carrying value, we deduct the fair value
of the tangible and intangible assets and comparc the residual amount to the carrying value of the goodwill to
determine if impairment should be recorded. Changes in dayrate and utilization assumptions used in the fair
value calculations could result in fair value estimates that are below carrying value, resulting in an impatrment
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OTHER MATTERS (continued)
Critical Accounting Policies {continued)

of goodwill. We also test for impairment based on events or changes in circumstances that may indicate a
reduction in the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value.

As required by SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” we perform an annual impairment
analysis of goodwill at cach year end. Our annual impairment tests of goodwill for 2005, 2006 and 2007
indicated that the fair value of operations to which goodwill relates exceeded the carrying values as of
December 31. 2005, 2006 and 2007: accordingly. no impairments were recorded.

Insurance Reserves. Our operations are subject to many hazards inherent to the drilling indusiry.
including blowouts, explosions. fires, loss of well control. loss of hole, dumaged or lost drilling equipment and
damage or loss from inclement weather or natural disasters. Any of these hazards could result in personal
mjury or death. damage to or destruction of equipment and facilities. suspension of operations, environmental
damage and damage to the property of others. Generally. drilling contracts provide for the division of
responsibilities between a drilling company and its customer. and we seck to obtain indemnification from our
customers by contract for certain of these risks. To the extent that we are unable to transfer such tisks to
customers by contract or indemnification agreements, we seek protection through insurance. However, there is
no assurance that such insurance or indemnification agreements will adequately protect us against liability
from all of the consequences of the hazards described above. Moreover. our insurance coverage generally
provides that we assume a portion of the risk in the form of an insurance coverage deductible.

Based on the risks discussed above. we estimate our liability in excess of insurance coverage and record
reserves for these amounts in our consolidated financial statements. Reserves related to insurance are based on
the facts and circumstances specific 1o the insurance claims and our past experience with similar claims. The
actual cutcome of insured claims could differ significantly from the amounts estimated. We accrue actuarially
determined amounts in our consolidated balance sheet to cover self-insurance retentions for workers'
compensation. employers” liability. general lability. automobile liability claims and health benefits. These
accruals use historical data based upon actual claim settlements and reported claims to project future losses.
These estimates and accruals have historically been reasonable in light of the actual amount of claims paid.

As the determination of our liabtlity for insurance claims could be material and is subject to significant
management judgment and in certain instances is based on actuarially estimated and calculated amounts,
management believes that accounting estimates related to insurance reserves are critical.

Accounting for Income Taxes. We are a U.S. company and we operate through our various foreign
branches und subsidiaries in numerous countries throughout the world. Consequently. our tax provision is
based upon the tax laws and rates in effect in the countries in which our operations are conducted and incone
is carned. The income tax rates imposed and methods of computing taxable income in these jurisdictions vary.
Therefore, as a part of the process of preparing the consolidated financial statements. we are required to
estimate the income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves estimating
the actual current tax cxposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment
ol ilems, such as depreciation, amortization and certain accrued liabilities Tor tax and accounting purposes.
Our effective tax rate for {inancial statement purposes will continue 1o fluctuate from year o year as our
operations are conducted in different wxing jurisdictions. Current income tax expense represents either
liabilities expected to be reflected on our income tax returns for the current vear, nonresident withholding
taxes or changes in prior vear tax estimates which may result from tax audit adjustments. Our deferred tax
expense or benefit represents the change in the balance of deferred tax assets or linbilities reported on the
consolidated balance sheet. Valuation allowances are established 1o reduce deferred tax assets when it is more
likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred (ax assets will not be realized. In order to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets or liabilities. as well as the valuation allowances. we must make estimates and
assumptions regarding future taxable income. where rigs will be deployed and other matters. Changes in these
estimates and assumpiions. as well as changes in tax laws. could require us to adjust the deferred tax assets
and liabilities or valuation allowances. including as discussed below.
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Our ability to realize the benefit of our deferred tax assets requires that we achieve certain future earnings levels
prior to the expiration of our NOL carryforwards. In the event that our eamings performance projections do not
indicate that we will be able to benefit from our NOL carryforwards, valuation allowances are established. We
periodically evaluate our ability to utilize our NOL carryflorwards and, in accordance with SFAS No. 109 “Accounting
for Income Taxes,” will record any resulting adjustments that may be required to deferred income tax expensc.

We provide for U.S. deferred taxes on the unremitted carnings of our foreign subsidiaries as the earnings
* are not permanently reinvested.

Our accounting policy for income taxes is also affected by FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes,” which we adopted January 1, 2007. This interpretation requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect amounts recorded as liabilities and related disclosures due to the uncertainty as 1o
final resolution of certain tax matters. Because the recognition of liabilities under this Interpretation may
require periodic adjustments and may not necessarily imply any change in management’s assessment of the
ultimate outcome of these items, the amount recorded may not accurately anticipate actual outcome.

Revenue Recognition. We recognize revenues and expenses on dayrate contracts as drilling progresses.
For meterage contracts, which are tare, we recognize the revenues and expenscs upon compietion of the well.
Revenues from rental activities are recognized ratably over the rental term which is generally less than six
months. Mobilization fees received and related mobilization costs incurred are deferred and amortized over the
term of the contract period. )

Accounting for Derivative Instruments. We follow SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instru-
ments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 137, SFAS No. 138 and SFAS No. 149. SFAS 133
established accounting and disclosure requirements for most derivative instruments and hedge transactions
involving derivatives. SFAS 133 also requires formal documentation procedures for hedging relationships and
effectiveness testing when hedge accounting is to be applied.

In 2004, we entered inio two variable-to-fixed interest rate swap agreements to reduce our cash flow exposure
to increases in interest rates on our Senior Floating Rate Notes. The Senior Floating Rate Notes were redeemed in
full on September 27, 2007. Both swap agreements were terminated or expired prior to redemption.

We did not use hedge accounting treatment for these interest rate swap agreements as we determined that the
hedges would not be highly effective as defined by SFAS 133, The ineffectiveness of the hedges was caused by
embedded written call options in the interest rate swap agreements that did not exist in the notes. Accordingly, we
recognized the volatility of the swap agreements on a mark-to-market basis in our consolidated statement of
operations. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we recognized a $0.7 million decrease in the fair value of the
interest rate derivatives, For the year ended December 31, 2006, there was no significant change in the fair value of
the interest rate derivatives. These non-cash items are reported in the conselidated statement of operations as
“Changes in fair value of derivative positions” On July 17, 2007, we terminated one swap scheduled to expire in
September 2008 and received $0.7 million. The second swap was not renewed und expired on September 4, 2007.
For additional information see Note 6 in the notes to the conselidated financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

In 2004, we entered into two variable-to-fixed interest rate swap agreements. The swap agreements did
not qualify for hedge accounting and accordingly, we reported the mark-to-market change in the fair value of
the interest rate derivatives in earnings. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we recognized a $0.7 million
decrease in the fair value of the derivative positions and for the year ended December 31, 2006 we recognized
a minimal change in the fair value of the derivative positions. On July 17, 2007, we terminated one swap
scheduled to expire in September 2008 and received $0.7 million. The second swap was not renewed and
expired on September 4, 2007,

Long-Term Debt

The estimated fair value of our $225.0 million principal amount of 9.625% Senior Notes due 2013, based
on quoted market prices, was $239.1 million at December 31, 2007. The estimated fair value of our
$125.0 million principal amount of Convertible Senior Notes due 2012 was $113.6 million on December 31,
2007.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Parker Drilling Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Parker Drilling Company and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash
{lows for the year ended December 31, 2007. We also have audited Parker Drilling Company’s internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in fnrernal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Parker
Drilling Company’s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective
interna! control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibilily is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on
the Parker Drilling Company’s inlernal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance ubout whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was miaintained in ail material respects. Our audit of the consolidated financial
statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists. and testing and cvaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Qur audits also included performing such other procedures as we considercd necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s intemal control over linancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements [or external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over finuncial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail.
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principies, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any cvaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorale. '

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Parker Drilling Company as of December 31. 2007, and the resulis of its
operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, Parker Drilling Company maintained,
in all material respects, effective internal control over tinancial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on
criteria established in fnternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Commitice of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

As discussed in notes | and 7 to the conselidated financial statements, the Company changed its method
of accounting for uncertain tax positions as of January 1, 2007.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Houston, Texas
Febroary 26, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Parker Drilling Company:

In our opinion, the consulidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2006 and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholder’s equity and cash flows for each of two years in the period ended
December 31, 2006 present fairly, in afl material respects, the financial position of Parker Drilling Company
and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule for each
of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006 presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements.
These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plun and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas
February 28, 2007
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Drilling and rental revenues:

US. drilling . ... ..
International drilling .. ... ... ... ... ... .. .. ...
Rental tools. . . .. .. .

Total drilling and rental revenues. . . ............ ... .....

Drilling and rental operating expenses:

US. drilling . ... ..
International drilling . .. ... ... .. . oo
Rental wools, .. ... ... SR
Depreciation and amortization . . ... ............ . ...,

Total drilling and rental operating expenses . .. ............
Drilling and rental operating income ... ........... ... ...

General and administration expense. . .. ....... ... .. ...
Provision for reduction in carrying value of certain assets. . . . .
Gain on disposition of assets, net. .. ..... ... ... ... ...

Total operating inCOMe . ... ... ... i e

Other income and (expense):

Interest €xpense. . . .. ... ...
Change in fair value of derivative positions .............
INtereStiNCOME . . . ... .
Loss on extinguishment of debt . . ....................

Equity in loss of uncensolidated joint venture and related

charges ... ...
Minority interest . . ... .o .. e
Other .. .. ..

Total other income and (expense) .. ...
Income before INCOME tAXES . ... . v r i ie e

Income tax expense (benefit):

Current tax eXPeNSe. . . . .. iv vttt
Deferred tax expense (benefit) . . ... .. ... ... ... ... ..

Total income tax expense (benefit), . ......... ... ... .. ..

Income from continuing operations . . ... ... ........u.en.
Discontinued operations .. ... ... ... ... ... iiaiiaan

NEl IO . . o v v o e e e e e et e e e e et et e e e e

Basic earnings per share:

Income from continuing operations . ...................
Discontinued operations. .. ........... ... ... .. ...
NEUINCOME . o o vttt et e e e e e

Diluted earnings per share:

Income from continuing operations .. ..................

Discontinued operations

Number of common shares used in computing earnings per
share:

Year Ended December 31,

Net IO . . o o o o et et e et e e e et e

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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2007 2006 2005
$ 231,139 $ 191,225 $ 128252
285,403 273.216 308,572
138,031 121,994 94 838
654,573 586.435 531,662
98,393 83,462 66,827
215.279 219,710 237,161
54,377 46,454 38.211
85,803 69.270 67,204
453,852 418,896 409,403
200,721 167,539 122,259
(24,708) (31,786) (27.830)
(1,462) — (4.884)
16,432 7,573 25.578
190,983 143,326 115.123
(25,157) (31.598) (42.113)
(671) 40 2.076
6,478 7.963 2241
(2,396) (1,912) (8.241)
(27,101) _ _
{1,000} (229) 1,905
665 (155) (763)
(49,182) (25,801} (44,895)
141,801 117,435 70,228
17,602 20,654 16,328
20,121 15.755 (44.912)
37,723 36,409 (28.584)
104,078 81,026 98,812
— — 71
104078 § 81,026 $  98.883
095 $ 0.76 % 1.03
$ — 3 — 3 —
$ 095 $ 0.76 $ 1.03
094 § 075 $ 1.02
— % — 5 .
094 § 075 % 1.02
109,542,364 106,552,015 95,818,893
110,856,694 108,138,384 97,208,345




PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31,

ASSETS 2007 2006
Current assets:
Cash and cash equividents. . ... ... ... . $ 60,124 5 92203
Marketable securities ... ... — 62.920
Accounts and notes receivable. net of allowance for bad debts of $3.152 in 2007
and $1A8LIn 2006 ... ..o 166,706 112.359
Rig materials and supplies . .......... ... .. ... ... ... ... 24264 15,000
Deferred costs .. ... . ... 7.795 6.662
Deferred income taxes ......... .. ... .. ... . .. ... . . . 9423 17.307
Othertax assets . ... .. . 32,532 —
Other current assets .. .......... ... .. ... 22,339 11,123
Total current assets .. ... .. oL 323,183 317.574
Property. plant and eguipment, at cost:
Drilling equipment . ... ..o o L 837.287 722,501
Renwl tools ... ... o 188.140 141.594
Buildings. land and improvements. .. ... ... 23.224 17.365
Other ... oo 44,293 34,794
Construction Iy Progress ... ... 121.023 89.869
1,213,967 1.006.123
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ... ... ... ... . ... ... 628.079 570.650
Property. plant and equipment, net. . . ... ... ... .. 585.888 435473
Assets held forsale .. ... . ... — 4.828
Other assets:
Goodwill ... .. 100.315 100,315
Rig materials and supplies . ....... ... ... .. .. .. ... . . . .. .. .. . 1.925 5.654
Debt issuance costs. ... ... L 7.324 5,552
Deferred income taxes . ... .. L 40,121 13.405
Investment in and advances to unconsolidated joint venture . ... ... ... ... .. (4.353) 10.267
Other assets .. ... 22.584 8.233
Total otherassets ... ... o L 167,916 143,426
Total assets. ... .o $1.076,987 § 901.301]

Sce accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Continued)

{Dollars in Thousands)

. December 31,
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2007 2006
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt. ............ ... ... ....... e $ 20,000 % —
Accounts payable . . ... . 36,062 35,223
Accrued Habilities . .. . . ... e 51,290 60,003
Accrued INCOME LAXES . . o v vt et et e e et bt et a e 16,828 6,677
Total current Habilities . .. .. v ot it e e et e e e 124,180 101,903
Long-termdebt . ... ... ... ... 353,721 329,368
Other Tong-term Habilities . .. ... .ovit et D 56,318 10,931
Long-term deferred tax liability .. ...... .. . . o 8,044 —
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13). .. ... ... .. .ot — —
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $1 par value, 1,942,000 shares authorized, no shares
OUESTANAING . . . . . — —
Common stock, $0.16% par value, authorized 280,000,000 shares, issued and
outstanding 111,915,773 shares (109,149,659 shares in 2006). .. ... ....... 18.653 18,220
Capital inexcess of par value . . ........... ... .....0 e 593,866 568,253
Accumulated deficit . . . . .ot e e e ey (77,795) (127,374
Total stockholders” equity . ... ..ot 534,724 459,099
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity . ...... ... . .. . it $1,076,987  $ 901,301

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NELINCOIME. . .. o e e $104078 % 81.026 § 98,883

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization . . .. ... ..., ot 85,803 69,270 67,204
Amortization of debt issuance and premium. .. ... ... 0L 845 764 958
Loss on extinguishment of debt .. . .. ... ... ... ... ... ..., 1,396 910 935
Gain on disposition of assets . . ... ....... . ... ... ... ..... (16.432) (7.573) (25.549)
Provision for reduction in carrying value of certain assets. .. ... .. 1.462 — 4,884
Deferred tax expense (benefit). . .. ........ ... .. . ... 20,121 15.755 (44».912)n
Equity loss in unconsolidated joint venture . ....... ..., ...... 27.101 — —
Expenses not requUIring cash . ... . 10,597 9,674 2,913
Change in asscts and Habilities: :
Accounts and notes receivable . . ... .. ... ... L L. (60,209) (3.456) (568)
Rig materials and supplies. .. ... . ... ... .. ... . ... .. ... (4.945) (2.605) 3,179
Other CUment A8SeIS . . ., L. ottt e i e e (12.720) 34,420 7,589
Accounts payable and accrued hahilities .. ................ (19,728) (28.143) 18,218
Accrued Income LaXes .. .. ... .. (48,998) 3.10D) (5.100)
Other assels .. ... (14.095) (73) 331
Net cash provided by operating activities. .. ................... 74276 . 166,868 122,607
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures . ... ... . L e (242,098) (195.022) (69,492)
Proceeds from the sale of assets . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 23.445 50.790 61,046
Proceeds from insurance claims . ... ... .. ... .. .. i, 7.844 4,501 13,850
Investment in unconsolidated joint venture . .. ................. {5.000) (10.000) —
Purchase of marketable securities .. ... . .. ... ... ... . ... ... (101,075) (198,120 (18.000)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities. .. ... ... .. ... ... .. 163,995 153,200 ' —
Net cash used ininvesting aclivities ... ... ... 0., (152,889) (194,651) (12,596)

See accompanying notes 10 the consolidated financial statements.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

{Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of debt . .. .. .. ... ... . ... .. $ 125000 % — % 55500
Principal payments under debt obligations . . ............... ..., (100,000) (50,000 (155,632)
Proceeds from draw on revolver credit facility .................. 20,000 — —
Purchase of call options. . .. ... ... .. . i (31,475) — —
Sale of common stock warrants . . .. ... ... .. i 20,250 — —
Proceeds from common stock offering . .......... .. ... L —= 99,947 ——
Payment of debt issuance costs ... ... ... Lo (4.618) — (655)
Proceeds from stock options exercised . .. ... ... ... .. 15,455 7.537 6,685
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation . . ............. 1,922 2,326 —
Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities. .. ............ 46,534 59.810 (94,102)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. ............. (32.079) 32,027 15.909
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . ... ............... 92,203 60.176 44,267
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . .. .. ... ... ... . $ 60,124  $92203 % 60,176
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
S =Y. $ 27439 $30.898 § 41,308
INCOME TAXES . o v et vttt et e et ettt e e $ 74801 $21.566 S 13415
Discontinued operations: .
DEPreciation . ...ttt 3 — 5 —  § —
Loss on disposition ofassets ... ... ... ... ... b — 5 —  $ 29
Provision for reduction in carrying value of certain assets. ... ... 3 — % — § —

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’® EQUITY
(Dollars and Shares in Thousands)

Unamortized Accumulated
Capital in Restricted Other
Common  Excess of Stock Plan Comprehensive  Accumulated
Shares Stock Par Value Compensation Income (Loss) Deficit
Balances, December 31,2004 ... ... .. ... ... 94.999 $15,833 $441,085 § My — $(307.283)
Activity in employees® stock plans. . . ... ... . 2.837 473 13,495 (6,217) — —
Income tax benefit from stock options
exercised. ... ... L L — — 1.555 — — —
Amortization of restricted stock plan
compensation. . .. ... ..., ... — — — 2723 — —
Net income (total comprehensive income of
$9888Y) ... — — - — = 98,883
Balances, December 31,2005 .. ... ... ... . .. 97.836 16,306 456,135 (4,212) — . (208,400}
Adoption of FAS 123R ... . ... .. .. ... ... — — (4.212) 4212 — —
Activity in employees™ stock plans. . ... .. ... 2414 431 9.031 — — —
Common stock offering. . .. ....... ... .. . 8.900 1,483 98.464 — — —
Excess 1ax benefit from stock based
compensation. .. .................., — — 2326 — — —
Amortization of restricted stock plan
compensation. . .. ..., ... ... ..., — — 6,509 — — —
Net income (total comprehensive income of .
$81.026). . ... ... — — — — = _ 81,026
Balances, December 31,2006 ... ...... ... . 119,150 18,220 568.253 — — (127.374)
Activity in employees’ stock plans. . ... .. ... 2,766 433 14,931 — — ~
Sale of warrants on Senior Convertible Notes. . . — — 20,250 — — —
Purchase of call options on Senior Convertible
Notes. .. .. ... . ... ... ....... .. — — (31.475) — s —
OID premium deferred tax asset on call options
of Senior Convertible Notes .. ... ..... .. — — 12,149 — — . —
Adoption of FIN48 . ... ... ... .. ... .. . — — — — — (54,499)
Excess tax benefit from stock based
compensation. .. .......... ... ...... — — 1.922 — - —
Amortization of restricted stock plan )
COmPENsation . . . .. ................. — — 7.836 — — —
Net income (total comprehensive income of
SI04078) ... oo — — — — - _104.078
Balances, December 31,2007 . . ... ... ... .. L1916 $18.653 3593866 S — $— 3 (77.793)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Parker Drilling Company
(“Parker Drilling™) and all of its majority-owned subsidiaries, and subsidiaries in which the Company exercises
significant control or has a controlling financial interest, including entities, if any, in which the Company is
allocated a majority of the entity’s losses or returns, regardless of ownership percentage. Parker Drilling
currently consolidates one company in which a subsidiary of Parker Drilling has a 50 percent stock ownership
and another in which a subsidiary has 80 percent stock ownership but exert control over both of the entities’
operations (collectively, the “Company™). A subsidiary of Parker Drilling also has a 50 percent interest in two
other companies (one of which is our joint venture in Saudi Arabia which is more fully described in Note 3),
both of which are accounted for under the equity method as the Company’s interest in the entities does not
mect the consolidation criteria described above.

Operations — The Company provides land and offshore contract drilling services and rental tools on a
worldwide basis to major, independent and national oil and gas companies und integrated service providers. At
December 31, 2007, the Company’s marketable rig fleet consists of 18 barge drilling and workover rigs, and
28 land rigs. The Company specializes in the drilling of deep and difficult wells, drilling in remote and harsh
environments, drilling in transition zones and offshore waters, and in providing specialized rental tools. The
Company also provides a range of ancillary services, including engineering, logistics and project management
activitics.

Drilling Contracts and Rental Revenues — The Company recognizes revenues and expenses on dayrate
contracts as drilling progresses. For meterage contracts which gre rare, the Company recognizes the revenues
and expenses upon conpletion of the well. Revenues from rental activities are recognized ratably over the
rental term which is generally less than six months. Mobilization fees received and related mobilization costs
incurred ure deferred and amortized over the contract term.

Reimbursable Costs — The Company rccognizes reimbursements received for out-of-pocket expenses
incurred as revenues and accounts for out-of-pocket expenses as direct operating costs. Such amounts totaled
$25.4 million, $35.9 million and $41.3 million during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.
respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — For purposes of the consolidated balance sheet and the consolidated
statement of cash flows, the Company considers cash equivalents to be highly liquid debt instruments that
have a rematning maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase.

Marketable Securities — The Company had no investinent in marketable securities as ol December 31,
2007 and $62.9 million as of December 31, 2006, which consisted of variable rate auction securities ¢lassified
as available for sale. The investments were carried at par vatue and were sold in September 2007.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts — Trade accounts receivable are recorded at
the invoice amount and generally do not bear interest. The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Company’s
best estimate for fosses resulting from disputed amounts and the inability of its customers to pay amounts
owed, The Company determines the allowunce based on historical write-off experience and information about
specific customers. The Company reviews all past due balances over 90 days individually for collectibility.

Account balances are charged oft against the allowance when the Company believes it is probable the
receivable will not be recovered. The Company does not have any off-bulance-sheet credit exposure related to
cuslomers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

December 31,

2007 2006
(Dollars in Thousands)
Trade . .. .. $169.811  $113,819
Employee (1) ... ... 47 21
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2) ... ... .... e (3,152) (1,481)
Total receivables .. ... .. ... . §166,706  $112,359

(1) Employee receivables related 1o cash advances for business expenses and travel.

(2) Additional information on the allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are reported on
Schedule [T — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.

Property, Plant and Equipment — The Company provides for depreciation of property, plant and
equipment on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets after provision for salvage
value. The depreciable lives for land drilling equipment approximate 15 years. The depreciable lives for
offshore drilling equipment generally range up to 15 years. The depreciable lives for certain other equipment,
including drill pipe and rental tools, range from three to seven years. Depreciable lives for buildings and
improvements range from 10 to 30 years. When assets are retired or otherwise dispesed of, the related cost
and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is included in operations.
Management periodically evaluates the Company’s assets to determine whether their net carrying values are in
excess of their net realizable values. Management considers a number of factors such as estimated future cash
flows, appraisals and current market value analysis in determining net realizable value. Assets are wrilten
down to fair value if the fair value is below the net carrying value. Interest cost capitalized during 2007 and
2006 related to the construction of rigs totaled $6.2 million and $3.6 million. respectively. No interest was
capitalized in 2005. '

Goodwill — In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 142, “Good-
will and Other Intangible Assets,” goodwill is assessed for impairment on at feast an annual basis. See Note 3.

. Rig Materials and Supplies — Since the Company’s international drilling generally occurs in remote
locations, making timely outside delivery of spare parts uncertain, a complement of parts and supplies is
maintained either at the drilling site or in warehouses close to the operation. During periods of high rig
utilization, these parts are generally consumed and replenished within a one-year period. During a period of
lower rig utilization in a particular location, the parts, like the related idle rigs, are generally not transferred to
other international locations until new contracts are obtatned because of the significant transportation costs,
which would result from such transfers. The Company classifies those parts which are not expected to be
utilized in the following year as long-term assets. Rig materials and supplies are valued at the lower of cost or
market value, net of a reserve for obsolete parts of $2.6 million and $4.3 million at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

Deferred Costs — The Company defers costs related to rig mobilization and amortizes such costs over
the term of the related contract. The costs to be amortized within 12 months are classified as current.

Other Long-Term Liabilities — Included in this account are an estimate of workers’ compensation
liability, deferred tax liability and deferred mobilization fees which are not expected 1o be paid or recognized
within the next year.

Income Taxes — Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based on the difference between the
financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which
the differences are expected 10 reverse. Valuation allowances are recognized against deferred tax assets unless
it is “more likely than not” that the Company can realize the benefit of the net operating loss (“NOL™)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

carryforwards and deferred tax assets in future periods. The Company adopted the provisions of FASB
[nterpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (FIN 48)” as of January . 2007.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share (“EPS") — Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net
income. by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. The effects of
dilutive securities, stock options. unvested restricted stock and convertible debt are included in the diluted EPS
calculation. when applicable.

Concentrations of Credit Risk — Financial instruments. which potentially subject the Company to
concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of trade receivables with a variety of national and international
oil and gas companies. The Company generally does not require collateral on its trade receivables.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006. the Company had deposits in domestic banks in excess of federally
insurcd limits of approximately $48.2 million and $79.2 million. respectively. In addition, the Company had
deposits in foreign banks at December 31. 2007 and 2006 of $18.9 million and $18.2 million. respectively.
which are not federally insured.

The Company’s customer base consists of major. independent and national oil and gas companics and
integrated service providers. In 2007, ExxonMobil accounted for approximately 11 percent of total revenucs.

Derivative Financial Instruments — SFAS No. 133, “Accountng for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” as amended by SFAS Nos. 137. 138 and 149 require that every derivative instrument be recorded
on the balance sheet as either an asset or liabikity measurcd by its fair value. The Company has used derivative
instruments to hedge exposure 1o interest rate risk. For hedges which meet the criteria of SFAS No. 133, the
Company formally designates and documents the instrument as a hedge of a specific underlying exposure, as
well as the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking cach hedge transaction. For those
derivative instruments that do not meel the criteria of o hedge, the Company recognizes the volatility of the
derivative instruments on a mark-to-market basis in the consolidated statement of operations. See Note 6.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — The estimated fair value of the Company’s $225.0 million
principal amount of 9.625% Senior Notes due 2013, based on quoted market prices. was $239.1 million at
December 31, 2007. The estimated fair value of the Company’s $125.0 mitlion principal amount of
Convertible Senior Notes due 2012 was $113.6 million on December 31, 2007. See Note 4.

Stock-Based Compensation — For periods prior to 2006. we accounted for stock-based compensation
plans using the recognition and measurement principles of the Accounting Principles Board ("APB™) Opinton
No. 25 “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” and related interpretations. Under these principles no
stock-based employee compensation cost related 1o stock options granted was reflected in net tncome. as all
options granted under the various plans had exercise prices equal to or greater than the fair market value of
the underlying common stock on the date of the grants. On January 1, 2006 we adopted the provisions of
SFAS No. 123R. “Share-Based Payment” which requires that we include an estimate of the fair value of stock-
based compensation costs related to stock options in net income. We elected the modified prospective
transition method as permitted by SFAS 123R. Under this transition method, stock-based compensation
expense includes (1) compensation expense for all stock-based compensation awards granted prior to. but not
yet vested as of December 31. 2005, hased on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the
original pro forma provisions of SFAS 123. “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation™ and (2) compensation
expense for all stock-based compensation awards granted subsequent to December 31, 2005, based on the
grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. As a result of adopting this
standard, we were required to estimate Forfeitures. and. if material. record a one-time cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principal adjustment. As a result of our estimates, the adoption of this standard did not
have a significant effect on our consolidated condensed financial statements and. as such. no adjustment was
recorded. Also, in accordance with the modified prospective transition method. our consolidated condensed
financial statements for prior periods have not been restated, and do not include the impact of SFAS 123R.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
Note | — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and net income per share as il we had applied the fair
value based provisions of SFAS 123R for the period ended December 31. 2005.

Year Ended
December 31,

2005
{Dollars in Thousands)

Net income (lossy as reported . ... ... ... ... ... .. . . .. ... ... $98.883
Stock-based compensation expense included in net income (loss) as reported . 1.704
Stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value method . . . . . . (1.855)
Netincome (foss) proforma . ... ... .. . .. $98.732
Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Net income (loss) as reported. . .. ........... ... ... ... . ... . ... L $ 1.03

Netincome (loss) pro forma .. ... .. ... $ 1.03
Diluted carnings (loss) per share:

Netincome (lossy as reported. . ... ... ... ... ... .. .. . . . ... ... ... S .02

Netincome (loss) proforma .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... .. .. . $ 1.

Under SFAS No. 123R. we continue to use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair
value of our stock options. Expected volatility is determined by using historical volatilities based on historical
stock prices for a period that matches the éxpected term. The expected term of options represents the period of
time that options granted are expected 1o be outstanding and typically falls between the options’ vesting and
contractual expiration dates. The expected term assumption is developed by using historical exercise data
adjusted as appropriate for future expectations. The risk-free rate is based on the yield at the date of grant of a
zero-coupon U.S. Treasury bond whose maturity period equals the option’s expected term. The fair value of
each option is estimated on the date of grant. There were no option grants in 2007. The following is a
summary of valuation assumptions for grants during the years ended December 3 1. 2006 and 2005:

2006 (1) 2005
Expected price volatility . ... ... ... 16.90% 51.1%
Risk-free interest rate range. . ... ........ ... ... .. .. .. .. 4.23% 3.38%
Expected life of stock options . .. ... ... . L 3 months 3-7 years

(1} The stock option grant during the first quarter of 2006 was a discounted option that was made to provide the recipient with the same
value us a grant which he had been advised that he would receive in 1999 but was not awarded at that time due o an oversight. The
uption was vested at the grant date and had an April 14,2006 expiration date. Accordingly. the volatility and expected term assump-
tions in 2006 are not comparuble with those culeulated for 2008,

There were no options granted in 2007 or 2006 under the 1997 Stock Plan. Options granted in 2005 under
the 1997 Steck Plan had an estimated fair value of $50 thousand. In November 2005. the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB™) issued FASB Staff Position ("FSP") No. FAS 123(R)-3. “Transition Election
Reiuted to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards.” The alternative transition method
includes simplified methods to establish the beginning balance of the additional paid-in capital pool (“*APIC
pool™) related to the tax effects of employee stock-based compensation. and to determine the subsequent
impact on the APIC pool and consolidated condensed statements of cash flows of the tax effects of employee
stock-based compensation awards that are outstunding upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R. We have clected to
adopt the transition method described in FSP 123(R)-3. The tax benelit realized for the tax deductions from
option exercises and restricted stock vesting totaled $1.9 million for the yeur ended December 31, 2007 which
has been reported as a financing cash inflow in the consolidated condensed statement of cash flows, Cash




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(continued)

received from option exercises for the year ended December 31. 2007 was $15.5 million. Refer to Note 9 for
additional information about the Company’s stock plans.

Accounting Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabifities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimaltes,

Note 2 — Disposition of Assets

Discontinued Operations — Pursuant to a board approved plan to sell certain U.S. Gulf of Mexico
offshore assets in 2003, the Company included these assets and related spare parts and inverntories as
discontinucd operations beginning in 2003. The sale of all but one of the U.S. Gulf of Mexico offshore rigs
that remained in discontinued operations was completed in August 2004. Juckup Rig 25. the final rig approved
for sale pursuant to the Board’s 2003 plan, was sold on January 3, 2005. The Company received proceeds of
$21.5 million. The rig had been impaired prior to 2005 and no additional gain or loss was recognized due to
the sale. With the completion of this transaction all the jackup and platform rigs have been sold from the
U.S. Gulf of Mexico asset group. No other assets remain related to the Company’s discontinued operations.

The following table presents the results of operations related to discontinued operations:

Year Ended
December 3.
2007 2006 2005

(Dollars in Thousands)

U.S. jackup and platform drilling revenues. .. ..o $— $—  §$193
U.S. jackup and platform drilling gross margin. ... e S— $—  S100
Depreciation and amortization .. ... ... — — —
Loss on disposition of assets. net of gains and impairment .. ............ = = (29)
Income from discontinued OPERAHONS . ... oo 5— s— 8§71

|

Disposition of Assets — Assct dispositions in 2007 consisted primarily of the sale of workover barge Rigs
9 and 26 for proceeds of approximately $20.5 million resulting in a recognized gain of $15.1 million. These
two rigs were classified as assets held Tor sale as of December 31, 2006, In 2006, asset dispositions resulted in
a gain of $7.6 million that included the sale of Nigerian Barge Rigs 73 and 75 (§1.8 million}. gains on
insurance proceeds related to assets damaged ($1.9 million) and other miscellaneous asset sales ($3.9 million).
On May 6. 2005 the Company entered into definitive agreements with affiliates of Saxon Energy Services.
Inc. ("Suxon™) Lo sell its seven remaining land rigs and related assets in Colombia and Peru for a total
purchase price of $34.0 million. The Company closed on the sale of four of the rigs and related assets in the
second quarter and the remaining three rigs were sold in the third quarter. As a result of the sale of all seven
land rigs. a gain of $13.8 million was recognized in 2005.

Involuntary Conversion of Assets — On June 24, 2005, a well control incident occurred on Rig 255
while operating under contract in Bangladesh, resulting in the total loss of the drilling unit. As the rig was
immediately rendered a total loss by our insurer in early July. the Company wrote off the net book value of
the rig of $5.6 million and recorded insurance proceeds of $13.8 million. the insured valuc of assets destroyed.
resulting in a gain of $8.2 million in the second quarter of 2005. Another $2.3 million gain was recognized in
the fourth guarter of 2003. As we received partial settlement from our insurance accident site ¢leanup and
settled on rig materials and supplies that were not destroyed in the incident. we recorded another $1.4 millien
aain in 2006 relating to the sale of the rig’s salvageable assets. The Company received 37.5 million of the
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
Note 2 — Disposition of Assets (continued)

insurance proceeds in the third quarter of 2005 and the remaining proceeds were received in the fourth quarter
2005.

Provision for Reduction in Carrying Value of an Asset — In 2007, the Company recognized $1.3 million
in provision for reduction in carrying value related to disputed accounts receivable. In the third quarter of
2005, the Company recognized $2.3 million in provision for reduction in carrying value of an insurance asset
representing the premiums paid on a life insurance policy for Robert L. Parker, who was chairman of the
board and director of the Company, in anticipation of a settlement of its obligation under this arrangement.
See Note 14, In addition, Barge Rig 57 was damaged in July 2005 in a towing incident resulting in a
$2.6 million impairment. Subsequently, during the third quarter of 2006, we settled with the insurance carrier
and recorded a gain of $1.9 million relating to this rig. On November 8, 2005, a well control incident on Rig
247 occurred while operating under contract in Turkmenistan. Rig equipment has been assessed for repair or
replacement. The Company recorded a $1.2 million estimated impairment to the rig and a $1.2 million
insurance recetvable in December 2005.

Assets Held for Sale — The assets held for sale of $4.8 million as of December 31, 2006 was comprised
of the net book value of two workover barge rigs and related inventory that were subsequently sold on
January 2. 2007 for a sales price of $20.5 million, resulting in a gain of $15.1 million which was reported in
the first quarter of 2007,

Note 3 — Goodwill
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the goodwill by reporting unit was: U.S. drilling barge rigs —
$64.2 million and rental tools — $36.1 million.

Note 4 — Long-Term Debt

December 31,
2007 2006

(Dellars in Thousands)

Senior Floating Rate Notes payable in September 2010 with interest at
three-month LIBOR+ 4.75% payable quarterly in March, June, September

and December (effective interest rate of 10.12% at December 3 1,2006).. § —  $100,000
Convertible Senior Notes payable in July 2012 with interest at 2.125%
payable semi-annually in January and July . ............ . .. .. ... .. 125,000 —

Senior Notes payable in October 2013 with interest at 9.625% payable semi-
annually in April and October net of unamortized premium of $3.721 at
December 31, 2007 and $4,368 at December 31, 2006 (effective interest
rate of 9.24% at December 31, 2007 and 9.27% at December 31, 2006) .. 228721 229,368

Revolving Credit Facility with interest at prime plus an applicable margin or
LIBOR plus an applicable margin (interest rate of 8.75% at December 31,

2007) o 20,000 —
Total debt . ... ... 373,721 329,368
Less current portion . ... ... ... ... . 20.000 —
Total long-term debt .. ... . ... .. . . $353.721  $329.368

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt for the five years ending December 31, 2012 are as follows:
$20.0 million for 2008-2010, $125.0 millien for 2012 and $225.0 million thereafter.

Activity in 2007 — On July 5, 2007, we issued $125.0 million aggregate principal amount of 2,125 per-
cent Convertible Senior Notes due July 15, 2012. Interest is payable semiannually on July 15th and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS (continued)
Note 4 — Long-Term Debt (continued)

January 15th. The initial conversion price is approximately $13.85 per share and is subject to adjustment for
the occurrence of certain events stated within the indenture. Proceeds from the transaction werc used to
redeem our outstanding Senior Floating Rate notes, to pay the net cost of the hedge and warrant transactions
described below, and for general corporate purposes.

In connection with the offering of the Convertible Senior Notes, the Company also entered into separate
convertible note hedge transactions (collectively, the “convertible hedge transactions”) with respect 10 its
common stock with each of Bank of America, N.A., Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch and Lehman
Brothers OTC Derivatives Inc. (collectively, the “Hedge Participants™). The convertible hedge transactions
cover, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments, approximately 9.0 million shares of our common stock.
Separately and concurrently with entering into the convertible hedge transactions, the Company also entered
into warrant transactions (collectively, the “warrant transactions™) with the Hedge Participants whereby the
Company sold to the Hedge Participants warrants to acquire, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments,
up to approximately 9.0 million shares of its common stock. The convertible hedge and issuer warrant
transactions are separate transactions entered into by the Company with the Hedge Participants, are not part of
the terms of the Convertible Senior Notes and will not affect the holders’ rights under the Convertible Senior
Notes. Holders of the Convertible Senior Notes will not have any rights with respect to the convertible hedge
and warrant transactions. Effectively, the hedge and warrant transactions increase the conversion price 1o
approximately $18.29 per share.

On Seprember 20, 2007, we replaced our existing $40.0 million Credit Agreement with a new
$60.0 million Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (“2007 Credit Facility”) which expires in September
2012. The 2007 Credit Facility is secured by rental tools equipment, accounts receivable and the stock of
substantially all of our domestic subsidiaries, other than domestic subsidiaries owned by a foreign subsidiary
and contains customary affirmative and negative covenants such as minimum ratios for consolidated leverage,
consolidated interest coverage and consolidated senior secured leverage.

The 2007 Credit Facility is available for general corporate purposes and to fund reimbursement
obligations under leticrs of credit the banks issuc on our behalf pursuant to this facility. Revolving loans are
available under the 2007 Credit Facility subject to a borrowing base limitation based on 85 percent of eligible
receivables plus a value for eligible rental tools cquipment. The 2007 Credit Facility calls for a borrowing
base calculation only when the 2007 Credit Facility has outstanding loans, including letters of credit, totaling
at least $40.0 million. As of December 31, 2007, there were $12.9 million in letters of credit outstanding and
$20.0 million of outstanding loans.

On September 27, 2007, we redeemied $100.0 million face value of our Senior Floating Rate Notes
pursuant to a redemption notice dated August 17, 2007 at the redemption price of 101.0 percent. A portion of
the proceeds from the sale of our 2.125% Convertible Senior Notes were used to fund the redemption.

In December 2007 we had a net draw down on our 2007 Credit Facility of $20.0 million which was
outstanding as of December 31, 2007, and is reflected in current portion of long-term debt in our Consolidated
Balance Sheet.

Activity in 2006 — On September 8, 2006, we redeemed $30.0 million face value of our Senior Floaling
Rate Notes pursuant to a redemption notice dated August 8, 2006 at the redemption price of 102.0 percent.
Proceeds from the sale of our Nigerian barge rigs and cash on hand were used to fund the redemption. An
expense of $1.9 million was recognized as loss on extinguishinent of debi.

Activity in 2005 — On February 7, 2005, the Company redeemed $25.0 million face value of its
10.125% Senior Notes pursuant to a redemption notice dated January 6. 2005 at the redemption price of
105.0625%. An expense of $1.4 million was recognized as loss on extinguishment of debr.

On April 21, 2005, the Company issued an additional $50.0 miilion in aggregate principal amount of its
9.625% Senior Notes due 2013 at a premium. The offering price of 111 percent of the principal amount
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Note 4 — Long-Term Debt (continued)

resulted in gross proceeds of $55.5 million. The $5.5 million premium is reflected as long-term debt and
amortized over the term of the notes. The additional notes were issued under an indenture, dated as of
October 10, 2003, under which $175.0 million in aggregate principal amount of notes of the same series were
previously issued.

On May 21, 2005, the Company redeemed $65.0 million of its 10.125% Senior Notes pursuant to a
redemtion notice dated June 16, 2005 at the redemption price of 105.0625%. The redemption was funded with
net proceeds from the $50.0 million additional 9.625% Senior Notes on April 21, 2005. An expense of
$3.3 million was recognized as loss on extinguishment of debt.

On July 16, 2005, the Company redeemed $30.0 miilion of its 10.125% Senior Notes pursuant to a
redemption notice dated June 16, 2005 at the redemption price of 105.0625%. The redemption was funded
with net proceeds from the sale of our Latin America rigs and cash on hand. An expense of $1.9 million was
recognized as loss on extinguishment of debt.

On December 30, 2005, the Company redeemed in full the outstanding $35.6 million face value of its
10.125% Senior Notes pursuant to a redemption notice dated November 30, 2005 at the redemption price of
103.375%. The redemption was funded with cash on hand. An expense of $1.6 million was recognized as loss
on extinguishment of debt,

The offerings of the 9.625% Senior Notes and the Senior Floating Rate Notes were effected without
registration. in reliance on the registration exemption provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, which applies to offers and sales of securities that do not involve a public offering, and
Regulation D promulgated under that act. Subsequently, for each of the offerings, the Company filed a
registration statement on Form S-4 offering to exchange the new notes for notes of the Company having
substantially identical terms in all material respects as the outstanding notes. New notes and exchange notes
are governed by the terms of the indentures executed by the Company, the subsidiary guarantors and the
trustee. Each of the 9.625% Senior Notes, the Senior Floating Rate Notes and the credit agreement contains
customary affirmative and negative covenants, including restrictions on incurrence of debt, sales of assets and
dividends. In addition, the credit agreement contains covenants which require minimum ratios for consolidated
leverage, consolidated interest coverage and consolidated senior secured leverage.

Note 5 — Guarantor/Non-Guarantor Consolidating Condensed Financial Statements

Set forth on the following pages are the consolidating condensed financial statements of (i) Parker
Drilling, (ii) its restricted subsidiaries that are guarantors of the Senior Notes, Senior Floating Rate Notes and
Convertible Senior Notes (“the Notes™) and (iit) the restricted and unrestricted subsidiaries that are not
guarantors of the Notes. The Notes are guaranteed by substantially all of the restricted subsidiaries of Parker
Drilling. There are currently no restrictions on the ability of the restricted subsidiaries to transfer funds to
Parker Drilling in the form of cash dividends, loans or advances. Parker Drilling is a holding company with no
operations, other than through its subsidiaries. Sepurate financial statements for each guarantor company are
not provided as the company complies with the exception to Rule 3-10(a)(1) of Regulation S-X, set forth in
sub-paragraph (f) of such rule. All guarantor subsidiaries are owned 100% by the parent company, all
guarantees are full and unconditional and all guarantees are joinl and several,

AralParker (a2 Kazakhstan closed joint stock company, owned 80 percent by Parker Drilling (Kazakstan),
Ltd. and 20 percent by Aralnedra, CJSC), Casuarina Limited (a wholly-owned captive insurance company),
KDN Drilling Limited, Mallard Drilling of South Americy, Inc., Mallard Drilling of Venezuela, Inc., Parker
Drilling Tnvestment Company, Parker Drilling (Nigeria), Limited, Parker Drilling Company (Bolivia) S.A.,
Parker Drilling Company Kuwait Limited, Parker Drilling Company Limited (Bahamas), Parker Drilling
Company of New Zealand Limited, Parker Drilling Company of Sakhalin, Parker Drilling de Mexico S. de
R.L. de C.V., Parker Drilling International of New Zealand Limited, Parker Drilling Tengiz, Ltd., Parker TNK
Drilling, PD Servicios Integrales, S. de R.L. de C.V.. PKD Sales Corporation, Parker SMNG Drilling Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Note § — Guarantor/Non-Guarantor Consolidating Condensed Financial Statements (continied)

Liability Company (owned 50 percent by Parker Drilling Company International, LLC). Parker Drilling
Kazakhstan, B.V., Parker Drilling AME Limited. Parker Drilling Asia Pacific, LLC, PD International Holdings
C.V.,PD Dutch Holdings C.V., PD Selective Holdings C.V., PD Offshore Holdings C.V., Parker Drilling
Netherlands B.V., Parker Drilling Dutch B.V.. Parker Hungary Rig Holdings Limited Liability Company,
Parker Drilling Spain Rig Services, S L, Parker 3Source, LLC and Parker Enex, LLC are all non-guarantor
subsidiaries. The Company is providing consolidating condensed financial information of the parent, Parker
Drilling, the guarantor subsidiaries, and the non-guarantor subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and
December 31, 2006 and for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. The consolidating condensed
financial statements present investments in both consolidated and unconsolidated subsidiaries using the equity
method of accounting.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
{Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Parent Guarantor  Non-Guarantor  Eliminations Consolidated
Drilling and rental revenuves. .. ... ... ... ... S — 8573164 136319 % (54.910) $654.573
Drilling and rental operating expenses . . . . . . . 1 311.867 111.091 (54910 368.049
Depreciation and amortization . . .. ... ... ... — 77.204 8.599 — 85,803
Drilling and rental operating income (loss). . . . {1 184.093 16.629 — 200.721
General and administration expense{l)....... (165) (24.485) (58) — (24,708)
Provision for reduction in carrying value of
CORaIN Qssets. . .. ... — (1.462) — — (1.462)
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets. net . . . . . — 16,448 (16) — 16,432
Total operating income (loss). .. ........ ... (166) 174.594 16.555 — 190.983
Other income and (expense):
Interest expense. ... ... .. ... .. ... . .. (29.918) {47.183) (551) 52.495 (25.157)
Changes in fair vaiue of derivative
positions . ......... ... ... . ... . ... 671 — —_ — 671)
Interest income .. ... 47.435 11.878 (34 (52.495) 6.478
Loss on extinguishment of debt . . . ... . . . (2.396) —_ — — (2.396)
Equity in loss of unconsolidated Jjoint
vemture and related charges ... ... L. — —_ (27.101) — (27.101)
Minority interest . ... ... ... . . ... .. — — (1.000) — (1.000)
Other. . ..., .. ... . ... .. . ... 9 618 44 (6) 665
Equity in net carnings of subsidiaries . ... . 101.432 — — {101.432) —
Total other income and (expense). .......... 115.891 (34.687) (28.948) (101.438) (49.182)
Income (loss) before income taxes. .. .. ... .. 115.725 139.907 . (12.393) (101.438) 141,801
Income tax expense {benefit):
Current . ... ... ... ... .. (4.237) 16217 . 5.622 — 17,602
Deferred . ... ..o o 15.884 2,626 1.611 — 20,121
Income tax expense. ... ... L 11.647 18.843 7.233 — 37.723
Netincome (loss) ... ... ... . .. ... .. .. 5104.078 $121.064 $(19.626) $(101.438) $104,078

thy Al ficld operations general and administration expenses are included in operating expenses.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOL[DATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in Thousands}

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Parent (;uarantor‘ Non-Guarantor  Eliminations Consolidated
Drilling and rental revenues . . ............. $ 3 $510.157 $123.506 $S(47.231) $586.435
Drilling und rental operating expenses .. ... .. — 274,862 121,995 (47.231) 340,626
Depreciation und amortization . ............ — 65,221 4,049 — 69,270
Drilling and rental operating income. . .. ... .. 3 170.074 (2.538) — 167,539
General and administration expense(l) . ..., .. (166) (31,606) (14} — (31,786)
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets. net ... ... (6) 7416 163 — 7,573
Total operating income (loss) . ............. (169) 145,884 (2.389) — 143.326
Otber income and (expense):
[nterest exXpense . ... .. .o (36,313) (47.178) (1.674) 53.567 (31.598)
Changes in fair value of derivative
POSIIONS. . oot e 40 — — — 40
Interest iNCOMIC . o v v e e e e e e e e e 50,102 8,458 2,970 (53.567) 7,963
Loss on extinguishment of debt . .. ... . (1.912) — — — (1,912)
Minority interest .. ... ... .. — — (229) — (229)
OWer . . e 21 (216) 40 — (155)
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries ... ... 80.335 — o (80.335) —
Total other income and {expense). .. ........ 92,273 (38,930} 1.107 (80.335) (25.891)
[ncome {loss) before income taxes . ......... 92,104 106,948 (1.282) {80.335) 117,435
Income tax cxpense (benefit):
CUITENL .+ o e e e e e e e (4.873) 21.243 4.284 — 20.654
Deferred . ... . . .. 15.951 (4.144) 3.948 — 15.755
Income tax expense .. ... ...y 11,078 17,099 8.232 — 36,409
Net income (1os8). . .. ..o ie i $ 81,026 $ §9.849 S (9.514) $(80.335) $ 81.026

6l

(1) All field operations gencral and administration expenses are included in operating expenses.




PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2005

. Parent Guarantor  Non-Guarantor Eliminations Consolidate
Drilling and reswad revenues. . ... .. ... ... .. $ - $403,024 $156,802 $ (28.164) $531,662
Drilling and rental operating expenses . . . . . .. 1 218,189 152,173 (283,164) 342,199
Depreciation and amortization . .. ... ... . ... — 63,226 3,978 — 67,204
Drilling and rental operating income {loss). . . . (1 121,609 651 — 122,259
General and administrative expense(1) . . ... .. (179) (27,632) (19 — (27,830)
Provision for reduction in carrying value of
certainassets. . .......... ... . ... ..., (2,300) (2,584) — _ (4,884)
Gain on disposi[ion‘ of assets, net. ... ....... 38 24,590 950 — 25,578
Totul operating income (loss). .. .. ....... .. (2,442) 115,983 1,582 — 115,123
Other income and {expense:
Interest expense. . .. ............ ... . . . (46,856) (48,880) (2,604) 56,287 (42.113)
Changes in fair value of derivative
positions . ... ... ... .. ., 2,076 — — — 2,076
Interest income ... ............ ...... . 46,565 8,041 3,322 (56.287) 2,241
Loss on extinguishment of debt ... ... .. .. - (8,24 — — — (8.241)
Minority interest ... ... . ... ... ..... — — 1,905 — 1,905
Other. . ... ... ... .. . .. (655) (147) RIS — {763)
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries . .. ... 109,271 — — {109,271 —
Total other income and (expense). ... ....... 102,160 (40,386} 2,602 (109,271) (44,895)
Income (loss) before income taxes. . .. ... ... 99,718 75,597 4,184 (109.271) 70,228
[ncome tax expense (benefit): . ]
Current tax expense . . ................. 2,672 11,358 2,298 — 16,328
Deferred tax benefit. . .. ............ .. B (1,837) {44,678) 1.603 — (44,912)
Income tax expense (benefity . .. ........ ... 835 (33,320) 3,901 — (28,584)
Income (loss) from continuing operations. . . . . 98,883 108,917 283 C(109.271) 98,812
Discontinued operations. . .. .............. — 71 —_ — 71
Netincome (toss) .. .............. ... . .. $ 98,883 $108,988 $ 283 $(109,271) $ 98,883

(1) Al ficld operations general and administzative expenses are included in operating expenses.
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET
(Dollars in Thousands)

Decembher 31, 2007

Parent Guarantor Non-Guarantor Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS
urrent assets:
Cash and cash cquivalents . .. .. .. $ 31,326 % 8314 § 20484 S — 5 60,124
Accounts and notes receivable, net . . 79,688 187,663 80,134 (180,784) 166,706
Rig materials and supplies . . ... .. — 10.667 13.597 — 24764
Deferred costs .. ... oo — 1.553 6.242 — 7.795
Deferred income taxes .. .. ... ... 9423 — — — 9423
Othertax assets .. ... .. ....... 59673 (23.395) (3,746) — 32,532
Other current assets . . ... ... ... 174 10,578 11,587 — 22,339
Total current assels . . . ... ... 180,284 195,380 128,303 (180.784) 323,183
Property, plant and equipment. net . . . 79 423,652 162,035 122 385,888
Goodwill. . .. ... ... ... ... ..... — 100315 — — 100.315
Investment in subsidiaries and
intercompany advinees ... ... 813,248 963,269 (58.320) (L,718.197 —
Investmient m and advances to
unconsotidated joint venture . . . . .. — 267 (4.620} — (4.353)
Other noncurrent assets . . . . . ... ... 440.113 20,805 11.036 — 71.954
Total assels .. ... ..o n b 1.033.724  § 1.703.688 % 238434 8 (1.898.859) § 1.076.987
ILIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS™ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Currentdebt . ... ............. $ 20,000 % — 5 — 8 — S 20,000
Accounts payable and acerued
liabilities . ... ............. 48,820 221,363 64,577 (247,408} 87.352
Accrued income taxes . ... ... 1.763 10,790 4,273 — 16.828
Total current Liabilities . .. .. . 70,585 232,153 68.850 1247.408) 124,180
Long-termdebt . ............... 353721 — — — 35371
Other long-term liabilities . .. ..., .. 110 48,174 8.034 — 56318
Long-term deferred tax Habitity .. ... 1 1,237 6.806 — 8,044
Intercompany payables .. .. ... .. .. 74.5%3 576,146 38.074 (689.403) —
Commitments and contingencies
MNowe 13). ... ... oo — — — - =
Siockholders™ equity:
Commmon steck . .. ... ... .. ... 18,653 39900 21,152 {61,052) 18.653
Capital in excess of par value . . . .. 593.866 1.045,732 115,765 (L161.497) 593.866
Retained earnings {(accumulated
deficit) . .. .. ... ... (77.795) (240,254} (20.247) 260,501 (77.795)
Total stockholders ™ equity . . . . 534,724 845.378 116,670 {962.048) 534,724
Total liabilities and
stockholders™ equity . . . . . ] 1,033,724 § 1,703,688 & 238434 § (1.898.859) % 1.076,987
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED BALANCE SHEFET
{Dollars in Thousands)

December 31, 2006

Parent Guarantor Non-Guarantor  Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash cquivalems . ., ... ... .. ) 60,029 § 14367 § 17807 § — 8 92.20
Marketable securities .. ... ... ... .., 60,920 2.{3H} — — 62,92
Accounts and notes receivable, net ., . 53,8444 143.905 33.625 (119.015) 112.359
Rig materials and supplies. . .. ... .. .. — 7.173 7.827 — 15.00¢
Deferred costs . . ... ... ... ... ... — 6.321 341 — 6,662
Other current assets ., .. ... ... ..., 18.105 8.064 1.319 37 28,430,
Total current assets .. ..., ... ... 102,893 182.735 60919 (118.978) 317.574
Property, plant and equipment. net. . ..., . 134 354,356 81861 122 435473
Assets held forsale . . ... L — 3.828 — — 4.828
Goodwilb .. ... ... .. ... ... . ... . ... — 100.315 — — L00.315
Investment in subsidiaries and intercompany
advances ... L 694,050 846.800 (8.053) (1.532.797) —
Other noncurrent assets .. .., ... ... ... 18,043 19,774 5,294 — 43,111
Total assets. .. ... .. ... .., D) 905,125 § 1.508.808 % 139021 § (1.651.653) $ 901,301
LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts pavable and acerued
liabilites. .. . ... ... ... ..., ) 44667 S 175002 § 44611 § (169,144} § 95,226
Accrued income taxes. ... ..., (10.514) 17039 152 — 6.677
Total current labilities . ..., . .. 34,053 192,131 44,763 (169.144) 101,903
Long-termdebe. ... .. ..., ... . ... . 329,368 — — — 329,368
Other long-term Lahilities. . .. ... ... .., 1.596 9.030 263 40 10,931
Intercompany payables. ... .. ... ... ., 80.909 544,250 37.219 (662.378) —
Commitments and contingences (Note 13). . — — — — —
Stockholders™ equity:
Common stock .., ... ... ... ..., .. 18,220 39899 21.25] al.150m 18,220
Capital in excess of par value .. ... . .. 568.253 1.013.736 34.526 (1.048.262) 568.253
Retained eamnings (accumutated deficity. . (127.374) (290.238) 997 289,241 (127.374)
Total stockholders’ equity . . ... .. 459,099 763.397 56,774 (820.171) 459099
Total liabilities and stockholders™
equity .. $ 905125 § 1.508.808 S 139021 § (1.651.651) 3 901 301
64




PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in Thousands)

t

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss). . .. ... o

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization .. ..................
Amortization of debt issuance and premium . ... ... L.
Loss on extinguishment of debt, . .. ... ... ... L.
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets . .. .......... .. ..
Deferred income tax expense . .. ..o
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint venture . . . ... .. ..
Provision for reduction in carrying value of certain assets . .
Expemses not requiring cash . ... ... ... .. ... L
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries. . ... ...... .. ...
Change in accounts receivable .. ..................
Change inotherassets. . ............. ... .. ...,

Change in liabilities . .. ... ... .. .. ..o L.
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . ... ...

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures . . . ... ... ... . . ... ..
Proceeds from the sale of assets ... ... ... ... .. ..
Proceeds from insurance elaims . . ... ....... ... ... .
Investment in unconsolidated joint venture . . .. .. ... ...
Purchase of marketable securities . ... ..............
Proceeds from sale of marketable sccurities ... ... .. ..
Net cash {used in) investing activities . . . ..... . ........

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of debt. .. ... ..............
Principal payments under debt obligations .. ..........
Procceds from draw on revolver credit facility. . .. ... ...
Purchase of calloptions. . . ......................
Proceeds from sale of common stock warrants ... ... ...
Payment of debt issuance costs . . ... ... oL
Proceeds from stock options exercised . . ... ..., ...,
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation. . . .. ..

Intercompany advances, met . ... ... ... ...
Net cash provided by {used in) financing activities . . ... ...

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, . ... .. ..

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . .. .........

Cash and cash equivalents atend of year. . . .. ............

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Parent Guarantor- Non-Guarantor Eliminations Consolidated
$104.078 % 121.064 $(19,626) $(101.438) $ 104,078
— 77,204 8,599 — 85.803
845 —_ — — 845
1,396 —_ — 1,396
— (16.448) 16 — (16.432)
15,884 2,626 1611 — 200128
— — 27,101 —_ 27.101
— 1,462 — — 1.462
11,187 (590 — — 10,597
(108.432) — 101,432 —
(25.844) 10,149 (44,514) —_ (60,209)
(21,409) 36,821 (47.232) — (31,760}
(24.119) (85.496) 40,883 6 (68.726)
(343.414) 146,852 (33,162 — 74276
— (235,189) (6,909) —_ (242,098)
54 22,865 326 — 23,445
— 7.844 —_ — 7.844
—_ (5,000 — (5.000)
(101,075} —_ — — (101,075)
161,995 2,000 — — 163,995
60.974 (202,480) (11,383) —_ (152,.889)
125,000 — — — 125,000
(100,000) — — — (100,000}
20,000 —_ — — 20,000
(31,475 — — — (31.475)
20,250 —_ — — 20,250
(4,618) — — — 4.618)
15,455 — — — 15.455
1.922 —_ — — 1922
(96,797) 49,575 47222 _ j—
(50.263) 49,575 47,222 — 46.534
(28,703 {6,053) 2,677 — (32.079)
60,029 14,367 17,807 — 92,203
$ 31326 $ 8314 $ 20,484 — $ 60,124
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Parent  Guarantor Non-Guarantor Eliminations Consolidated
Cash flows from operating uctivities:
Netincome (loss) .. ..o o0 L § B1.026 $ 8u849 $09.514) $(80.335) $ R1.026
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization .. ... ... .. ... ... . .. .. — 65.221 4.049 — 69.270
Amortization of debt issuance and premium . ... ... . ... .. 764 — — — 764
Loss on extinguishment of debt . .. .. ... ... ... .. ... 910 — — — 910
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets . .. .. ..., ... .. .. ... 6 (7.416) (163) — (7.573)
Deferred tax expense (benefity ... ... .. ... ... ..., . ... 15.951 (4.144) 3.048 — 15,755
Expenses not requiring eash. ., ... ... ... ... 8.474 1.200 — — 9.674
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries . ... ..... ... . ... . (80.335) — — 80.335 —
Change in operating assets and liabibities . . .. ... ... ... .. (2.952) 6,797 {6.803) — (2,958)
Net cash provided by operating activities .. ... ..., ... . ... 23.844 151,507 (8.483) — 166.868
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures . . .. .. ... .. ... — (191.308) (3.714) — (195.022)
Investment in unconsolidated joint venture, . . ... ........ (10.000) — — — (10,000
Proceeds from the sale of assets . . .. ... . ... . ... ...... (S]] 48481 2,315 — 50,790
Proceeds from insurance claims .. ... .. ... ... ... ... — 4.501 — — 4.501
Purchase of marketable securities . ... .. ... _...... ... . (196.120) (2.000) — — (198,120
Sale of marketable securities ... ... L. t51.200 2,000 — — 153,200
Net cash used in investing activities . .. .. ... ... ... .. ... . {(54926) (138.326) (1.399) — (194,651)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments under debt obligations .. ... ... ... ... (50,000) — — — (50,000)
Proceeds from common stock offering. . ... . ..., ... ... . - 99.947 — — — 99.947
Proceeds from stock options exercised. .. ... . ... ... ... 7.537 — — — 7.537
Excess tax benefit from stock options exercised . .. ... .. .. 2326 — — — 2,326
Intercompany advances, net. . ... ... ... ... .. ..., (677) (9.959) 10.636 — —
Nel cash provided by (used in) financing activities , . . .. ... .. 59.133 {9.959) 10.636 — 59810
Net increase in cash and cash cquivalents. . .. ... .. ... ... ... 28,051 3,222 754 — 32,027
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . .. .. .. ... ..., 31,978 11,145 17,053 — 60,176
Cash und cash equivalents at end of year ... .. .. ... ... .., $ 60029 § 14367 $17.807 5 — $ 92203
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSITHARIES
CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2005
Parent  Guarantor Non-Guarantor Eliminations Consolidated

ash flows from operating activities;
Net income (I088) .. . ... ... e $ 98.883 § 108,988 § 283 109271 $ 98,383

Adjusuments to reconcile net income (loss) to nct ¢ash provided
by {used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization . ... . e — 63.226 3,978 — 67,204
Amortization of debt issuance and premium ., .. ... oLl 058 — — — 958
Loss on extinguishment of debt . ... .. ... ... ... .. 935 — — — 935
Gain on dispesition of assets ... ... ... ... ... ... (38) (24.561) (950) — {25.549)
Provision for reduction in carrying value of certain assets. . . . 2,300 2,584 — — 4,884
Deferred tax expense (benefit) .. ... ... ... ... (1.837) (44,678) 1.603 — {44.912)
Expenses not requiring cash. . ... .. ... ... ... .. ... 1,713 1,200 — — 2913
Equity in net earnings of subsidiaries ... .. ... ... .o (109,271} — — 109,271 —
Change in operating assets and liabilites . .. .. .......... 139247  (131,278) 9,322 — 17.291
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . ... ... .. 132.850 (24.519) 14.236 — 122,607
Cash flows {rom investing activities: i
Capital expenditures. . . ... ... .. e — (63.806) (5.686) — (69.492)
Proceeds from the sade of assets. .. ... ... 38 57.184 3,824 — 61,046
Proceeds from insurance claims. . . .o o e e el — 13,850 — — 13.850
Purchase of marketable sccurities. ... ... ... ... ... ... .. (16,000 (2,000) —_ — (18.000)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .. ..... ... (15,962) 5228 (1.862) — (12.396)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of debt . . ... ... ... L 53,300 — — — 55,500
Principal payments under debt obligations . . . . ... ... ... .. (155,632) — — — (155,632)
Payment of debt issuance costs .. .. ... ... ... L. (633) e — — (635)
Proceeds trom stock options exercised . ... ... ... L 6.685 — — — 6,685
Intercompany advances, net. . ... ... ... o (7,525) 22,498 (14.973) — —
Net cash provided by {(used in) financing activities .. ... ... .. (101.627) 22,498 (14.973) — (94,102)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ... ... ... 15,301t 3.207 {2,599) — 15,909
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .. .. ... ... .... 16,677 7.938 19,652 — 44,267
Cash and cash equivalents atead of year ... ....... ... ... $ 31978 % 11143 $ 17.053 5 — $ 60.170
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Note 6 — Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company entered into two variable-to-fixed interest rate swap agreements as a Strategy to manage
the Moating rate risk on the $150.0 million Senior Floating Ratc Notes. The first agreement, signed on
August 18. 2004, fixed the interest rate on $50.0 million at 8.83% fora three-year period beginning
September 1. 2006 and erminating September 2, 2008 and fixed the interest rate on an additional $50.0 million
at 8.48% for the two-ycur period beginning September 1. 2006 and terminating September 4, 2007, In each
case. an option to extend each swap for an additional two years at the same rate was given to the issuer, Bank
of America. N.A. The second agrecement, signed on September 14, 2004, fixed the interest rate on
$150.0 mitlion at 6.54% for the three-month period beginning December 1. 2004 and terminating March 1,
2005. Options to extend $100.0 million at a fixed interest rate of 7.08% for a six-month period beginning
March 1, 2005 and to extend $50.0 million at u fixed ifterest rate of 7.60% for an 18-month period beginning
March 1, 2005 and terminating September 1, 2006, were given 10 the issucr, Bank of America. N.A. In the
first quarter of 2005, Bank of America, N.A. allowed these options to expire unexercised,

The swap agreements did not qualify for hedge accounting and accordingly, we reported the
mark-to-market change in the fair value of the interest rute derivatives in earnings. For the year ended
December 31. 2007, we recognized a $0.7 million decrease in the fair vatue of the derivative positions and for
the year ended December 31, 2006 we recognized a minimal change in the fair value of the derivative
positions. On July 17, 2007, we terminated one swap scheduled to expire on September 2, 2008 and received
$0.7 million. The second swap was not rencwed and expired on September 4. 2007.

Note 7 — Income Taxes

[ncome before income taxes and discontinued operations is summarized below:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in Thousands)
United States . .. ... .. o 3127484 S 99024 523,021
Foreign .. ... .. 14,317 18411 47,207

$141.801  $i17.435  $70.228

Income 1ax expense (benefit} related to continuing operations are summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in Thousands)

Current:
United States: ‘
Federal ... ... ... $13,860  $13.0d6 S 1,837
Stale . ... 791 — 18
Foretgn ... ... .. 2.95! 7.608 14,473
Deferred:
United States:
Federal ... . . . . .. . 16,559 30,436 (46,537
State ..o 4,290 (12,617} —
Foreign . . ... (728) (2.064) 1.625

$37.723  $36409  $(28.584)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Note 7 — Income Taxes (continued)

Total income tax expense differs from the amount computed by multiplying income (loss) before income
taxes by the U.S. federal income tax statutory rate. The reasons for this ditference are as follows:

Computed expected tax
EXPENSe .. ... ... ...,

Foreign taxes. (net of federal
benefit-pre-07) . ... ... ..

State taxes. net of federal
benefit . ..............

Foreign tax credits . . .. .. ..
Kazakhstan tax credits . .. ..

Other Kazakhstan FIN 48
Hems . ...,

Change in valuation
allowance .. ...........
Foreign corporation
income. . ... ...

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
% of % of % of
Pre-Tax Pre-Tax Pre-Tax
Amount Income Amount Income Amount Income
(Dollars in Thousands)
$ 49.630 35% $41.104 35% $ 24.580 353%
12.66Y 9% 5.820 5% 7.496 11%
5.080 4%, — — — _
(16.020) (1 1Y% — — — —
(22.547) (16)% — — - _
(12.427) (N%
5.764 4% — — (71.497) (102)%
8.916 6% 1,524 2% 9.055 13%
7.807 5% — — _ _
—_ — (12,617 (11)% — —
(161) — 1,404 1% 1,740 2%
(988) — {826) (1Y% 42 —
$37.723 27% $ 36.409 3% $(28,584) (411%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Note 7 — Income Taxes (continued)

The components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and (liabilities) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006

are shown below:

December 31,

Deferred tax assets
Current deferred tax assels:
Reserves established against realization of certain assets. . ... ... ...
Accruals not currently deductible for tax purposes ... ... . ... ... .

2007

2006

{Dollars in Thousands)

Gross current delerred tax assets .. ..o e

Valuation allowance. ... .o o o

Non-current deterred tax assets:
State net operating loss carryforwards . ... ... L L L.
Forcign ax credits. .. ... o o
Other long term liabiliies . ...... ... .. ... ... .. ..........
Deferred stock based compensation .. .. ... ... ..., ... .. PR
Unamortized OID benefit. .. ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ...

Gross long-term deferred tax assets ... ... .. ...y
Valvation allowance. . ... ... ... . . .

Delerred tax labilities:
Non-current deferred tax labilities:
Property, plant and equipment ... .. ... ... . L L
Goodwill ...

S 6563 S 4.375
2.860 12.932
9423 17.307

{ 0
9.423 17.307
9217 12.617
6.300 0
2149 2.149

370 3.693
11.239 0
13.381 0
42.656 18.459
{6.391) 0
36.265 18.459
45.688 35.766
8.571 10.940
(14.336) (14.561)
1.577 (1.433)
{4,188) (5.054)
5 41.500 $ 30,712

As part of the process of preparing the consolidated financial statements. the Company is required to
determine its income taxes. This process involves estimating the annual effective tax rate and the nature and
measurements of temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and accounting
purposes. These differences. and the NOL carryforwards. result in deferred tax assets and liabilities. In each
period. the Company assesses the likelihood that its deferred tax assets will be recovered from existing
deferred tax liabilities or future taxable income in each jurisdiction. To the extent the Company believes that it
does not meet the test that recovery is “more likely than not.” it estublishes a valuation allowance. To the
extent that the Company establishes a valuation allowance or changes this allowance in a period. it adjusts the
@x provision or tax benefit in the consolidated statement of operations. The Company uses its judgment to
determine the provision or benefit for income taxes. and any valuation allowance recorded against the deferred

[HEGHERTU LS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Note 7 — Income Taxes (continued)

The 2007 results reflect the establishment of valuation allowances related to NOL carryforwards and
other deferred tax assets in the U.S. The valuation allowances were recorded as an offset to the Company’s
deferred tax assets, relating to foreign tax credits and state NOL carryforwards. The Company recorded the
valuation allowance based on management’s analysis which concluded that it was not “more likely than not”
that the Company could realize the benefit of the foreign tax credit and State NOL carryforwards in future
periods. At December 31, 2007, the Company had $6.3 million of foreign tax credit carryforwards and had
$119.9 million of gross stale NOL carrylorwards. For tax purposcs, the foretgn tax credit carryforwards expire
over a 10 year period ending 2017 and the state NOL carryforwards expire over a 16 year period ending
December 31, 2014 through 2023. .

The 20606 and 2005 results reflect the reversal of valuation allowances related to NOL carryforwards and
other deferred tax assets in the U.S. The valuation allowances were originally recorded in accordance with
GAAP as an offset to the Company’s deferred tax assets, which consisted primarily of federal and state NOL
carryforwards. GAAP required the Company to record a valuation allowance unless it was “more likely than
" not” that the Company could realize the benefit of the NOL carryforwards and deferred tax assets in future
periods. Having returned to profitability in 2005, the Company determined that earnings performance should
allow the Company to benefit from the federal NOL carryforwards and that the valuation allowance for federal
NOL'’s was no longer required. The $29.5 million decrease in the NOL carryforward component of deferred
tax assets in 2005 is primarily due to utilization of NOL carryforwards in the Company’s 2005 federal income
tax return that was filed in 2006. The $56.0 million decrease in the valuation allowance component in 2005
was primarily due to expected utilization of gross NOL carryforwards. The $34 .8 million decrease in the
NOL carryforward component of deferred tax assets in 2006 is primarily due to the projected full utilization
of NOL carryforwards in the Company’s 2006 federal income tax retrn filed in 2007,

The Company also had a deferred tax asset related to state NOL’s which was recerded in the second
quarter of 2006 with a full valuation. These state deferred tax assets relate primarily to prior years operating
losses. GAAP required the Company to recognize a valuation allowance unless it was “more likely than not”
that the Company could realize the benefit of the state NOL carryforwards. During the year ended
December 31, 2006, the Company utilized $5.4 million related to state taxable income to be reported in its
2006 state tax return. In addition. during the fourth quarter 2006, the Company determined that it was “more
likely than not” that a valuation allowance was no longer needed, therefore the Company reflected a net state -
NOL benefit of $12.6 million. At December 31, 2006, the Company had $168 million of gross state NOL
carryforwards. For tax purposes, the state NOL carryforwards expire over a 15 vear period ending
December 31, 2015 through 2019,

Effective January 1, 2007, the company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Account-
ing for Uncertainty in Income Taxes™ (“FIN 487}, FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and a
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return, For those benefits to be recognized, a tax position must bhe
more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination by taxing uuthorities,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Note 7 — Income Taxes {continued)

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
In Millions

Balance at January 1,2007 .. .. ... $(49.3)
Additions based on tax positions taken during a prior period ... ... ... SN —

Reductions based on tax positions taken during a prior period ................ .. 38
Additions based on tax positions taken during the current period .. .............. (4.6)
Reductions based on tax positions taken during the current period ... ....... ... ..

Reductions related to settlement of tax Matters . ... ..........ooorore 36.3
Reductions related to a lapse of applicable statute of limitations. . .. ............. 7

Balance at Decemnber 31, 2007 . . ... .. . $313.1)

In many cases, the Company's uncertain tax positions are related to tax years that remain subject to
examination by tax authorities. The following describes the open tax years, by major tax jurisdiction, as of
December 31, 2007:

United States — Federal . . ... .. ... 1985-present
Bolivia. . ... 2000-present
Kazakhstan. ... . ... ....... e e e e 2002-present
MeXICO. . .o 2002-present
PapuaNew Guinea . ... . ... .. . . 2001 -present
RUSSIa .. 2005-present
New Zealand . ... ... 2002-present
Colombia . ... e e 2005-present

FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of tax positions taken in a tax return. For those benefits to be recognized, a tax
position must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. At December 31,
2007, the company had a liability for unrecognized tax benefits of $13.1 million (of which $11.0 million, if
recognized, would favorably affect the company’s effective tax rate).

We recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income rax expense. As of
January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007 we had approximately $52.5 million and $40.3 millicn of accrued
interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions, respectively. The Company recognized $5.7 million of
interest and a $17.9 million reduction related to penalties on unrecognized tax benefits for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

Note 8 — Saudi Arabia Joint Venture

A subsidiary of Parker Drilling Company is a 50 percent shareholder of Al-Rushaid Parker Drilling, a
Saudi Arabia limited liability company (“ARPD”), which has a six rig drilling contract with Saudi Aramco
(*SA Contract”). ARPD has obtained bank financing for $160 million of the cost of the six rigs, which loan is
secured by assignment of proceeds of the SA Contract and the personal puarantee of the Chairman of
Abdullah Rasheed Al-Rushaid Company for Drilling Oil and Gas Limited, our Saudi partner (“AR™). Qur
subsidiary and AR have each currently advanced $20.0 million in shareholder loans to fund construction costs
for the rigs. Although the joint venture can provide no assurance as to the final cost, due to construction
delays and cost overruns, including remedial work to correct problems with construction, integration of
components and rig specifications, the costs to complete construction of the rigs is anticipated to be
approximately $30.0 to $40.0 millicn over the next three to four months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Note 8 — Saudi Arabia Joint Venture {continued)

The first four rigs began drilling operations on April 21, 2007, July 17, 2007, October &, 2007 and
December 22, 2007, respectively. Due to the delays in commencement of operations under the rig contracts,
Parker’s subsidiary has accrued $13.8 million (50 percent of ARPD exposure) for potential liquidated damages
attributable to all six rigs through June 2008. ARPD’s customer, Saudi Aramco, initially suspended deducting
liquidated damages for six months, but began deducting liquidated damages in November of 2007 by
withholding 50% of the ARPD invoices for November and December 2007. At the request of ARPD, Saudi
Aramco has subsequently re-instituted its suspension of any further deductions for liquidated damages pending
resolution of this matter.

Parker Drilling’s subsidiary also incurred $9.8 million in losses related to rig operations attributable to its
50 percent interest in ARPD in 2007. These losses are primarily a result of cost overruns due to increases in
vendor costs, construction costs o renedy defects in rigs and components, equipment rentals incurred in order
to commence operation until equipment purchases were received and additional interest expense and
depreciation expense related to significant unanticipated rig construction costs. Qur subsidiary has also
reserved $3.5 million related to certain advances made to ARPD since the inception of the contract; these
reserves are not reflected on ARPD financial statements shown below.

Al Rushaid-Parker Drilling, LLC

Condensed Statement of Operations
(Dollars in Thousands})

{Unaudited)
Year Ended
) December 31,
2007
DrilliRg Tevenues . .. ... e e $ 12,287
Drilling operating CXpenses . . . ... ..ottt e 28,406
OhET EXPENSES . o . ot o e e 31,042
Total eXPenses . . . . . ... 59,448
= 60 $(47,161)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Note 8 — Saudi Arabia Joint Venture (continued)
Al Rushaid-Parker Drilling, LI.C

Condensed Balance Sheet
(Dollars in Thousands)

{Unaudited)
December 31,
2007
ASSETS
Total CURrent assets. .. ... ... L $ 325344
Net property, plant and equipment. . ... ... ... ... . ... 185,383
Total a8S€Is. . .. ... $217.927
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Total current debt .. ... .. L $ 8.785
Total other current liabilities . .. ... ... ... ... . 74.766
Long-term debt —third party . ........... ... .. ... . .. . ... 151.467
Long-term debt —related party. . . ... ... ... 29536
Toual stockholders’ equity .. ... .. e e (46,627)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity. .. .......... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... $217.927

Note 9 — Common Stock and Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock Offering — On January 23. 2006, we completed the public offering of 8.900.000 shares
of our common stock at a price of $11.23 per share, or a total of $99.9 million of net proceeds before
expenses, but after underwriting discount.

Stock Plans — The Company’s employee and non-employec director stock plans are summarized as
follows:

The 1991 Stock Grant Plan (1991 Grant Plan™) authorized 3,160,000 shares of common stock to be
issued to officers, key employees and non-employee directors of the Company and its affiliates who are
responsible for and contribute to the management, growth and profitability of the business of the Company.
The 1991 Grant Plan was frozen as of April 27, 2005, the date on which the 2005 Plan (as defined below) was
approved by shareholders. As of such date, there were 1,462,195 shares available for granting under the 1991
Grant Plan, which are now available for granting under the 2005 Plan. Any awards that are forfeited or expire
and would have been available for re-issuance under the 1991 Grant Plan are available for issuance under the
2005 Plan referenced below.

The 1994 Non-Employee Director Stock Incentive Plan (*1994 Director Plan™) provided for the issuance
of options to purchase up to 200.000 shares of Parker Drilling’s common stock. The option price per share is
equal to the fair market value of a Parker Drilling share on the date of grant. The term of each option was
10 years, and an option first becomes exercisable six months after the date of grant. The 1994 Director Plan
was frozen as of April 27, 2005. the date on which the 2005 Plan (as defined below) was approved by
shareholders. As of such date there were 15,000 shares available for issuance under this plan which are now
available for granting under the 2005 Plan. Any awards that are forfeited or expire and would have been
available for re-issuance under the 1994 Director Plan are available for issuance under the 2005 Plan
referenced below.

The 1994 Executive Stock Option Plan (1994 Executive Option Plan™) provided that the directors may
grant a maximum of 2,400,000 shares to key employees of the Company and its subsidiaries through the
granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights and restricted and deferred stock awards. The option price
per share could not be less than 50 percent of the fair market value of a share on the date the option is
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Note 9 — Common Stock and Stockholders’ Equity {continued)

granted, and the maximum term of a non-qualified option could not exceed 15 years and the maximum term
of an incentive option was 10 years. The 1994 Executive Option Plan was frozen as of Apnil 27, 2005, the
date on which the 2005 Plan (as defined below) was approved by shareholders. As of such date there were
1,037.000 shares available for granting, which are now available for granting under the 2005 Plan. Any awards
that are forfeited or expire and would have been available for re-issuance under the 1994 Exccutive Option
Plan are available for issuance under the 2005 Plan referenced below.

The Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Plan (1997 Plan™) authorized 8,800,000 shares to be available
for granting to officers and key employees who. in the opinion of the board of directors. were in a position 1o
contribute to the growth, management and success of the Company. This plan was approved by the board of
directors as a “broad-based” plan under the interim rules of the New York Steck Exchange and. as a result,
more than 50 percent of the awards under this plan have been made to non-executive cmployces. The option
price per share could not be less than the fair market value on the date the option was granted for incentive
options and not less than par value of a share of common stock for non-qualified options. The maximum term
of an incentive option was 10 years and the maximum term of a non-qualified option was 15 years. The 1997
Plan was frozen as of April 27. 2005. the date on which the 2005 Plan {as dcfined below) was approved by
shareholders. As of such date, the 1,435,939 shares available for granting are now available for granting under
the 2005 Plan. Any awards that are forfeited or expire and would have been available for re-issuance under the
1997 Plan are available for issuance under the 2005 Plan referenced below.

The 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2005 Plan™) was approved by the shareholders at the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders on April 27, 2005. The 20035 Plan authorizes the compensation comimittee or the
board of directors to issue stock options, stock grants and various types of incentive awards in cash or stock to
key employees. consultants and directors. As of the date of approval of the 2005 Plan on April 27, 2003, the
1991 Grant Plan, the 1994 Director Plan, the 1994 Executive Option Plan and the 1997 Plan (the "Frozen
Plans™) were frozen and the 3,950,134 shares that were available for granting immediately prior to the freezing
of the Frozen Plans are now available for granting under the terms of the 2005 Plan. In 2005. the Company
de-listed the shares of common stock that were listed and unissued under the Frozen Plans and filed a separate
listing application with the New York Stock Exchange. listing the 3.950.134 shares under the 2005 Plan. The
3,950,134 shares have also been registered under a Form $-8 filed with the Securities and Exchange )
Commission (“SEC™) on May 6. 2005.

The Company issued 755,000 restricted shares in 2003 to selected key personnel, of which 37,500 shares
reverted back 1o the Company. In March 2004, 377.500 shares vested alter the closing stock price of $3.50 per
share was met for 30 consecutive days resulting in $1.0 million of expense. In March 2005, the remaining
340,000 shares vested after the closing stock price of $5.00 per share was met for 30 consecutive days
resulting in $0.7 million of expense. In 2005, the Company issued 1.027.500 restricted shares to the board of
directors and selected key personnel, of which 22,500 shares reverted back to the Company. The amortization
expense in 2005 for the restricted shares issued in 2005 was $1.9 million. In 2006, the Company issued
753,500 restricted shares to setected key personnel. The amortization expense in 2006 for all issued and
outstanding restricted shares was $6.5 million.

In 2007, the Company issued 922,845 restricted shares to selected key personnel. [ncentive grants to
senior management members included in this issuance were based on the atlainment of specific goals. The
amortization cxpense in 2007 for 2007 awards and previously awarded outstanding resiricted shares was
$8.5 million.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Note Y — Common Stock and Stockholders' Equity (continued)

Information regarding the Company’s stock option plans is summarized below:

. 1991 Stock
Restricted
_ Shares
Outstanding at December 31,2006 ... .. ... ... ... ... ... . . . 100,000
Granted . ... —
Excreised . . ... {100.000)
Cancelled. . .. ... —
Qutstanding at December 31,2007 ... ... .. ... . . —
1994 Non-Employee
Director Stock Incentive Plan
Weighted
Average
Exercise Intrinsic
Shares Price Value
Outstanding at December 31.2006. ... ... .. ... ... ... ... 84.000 $9.047
Granted . . .. .., — —
Exercised ... . . ... (30.000) 8.875 $33,150
Cancelled . ... ... .. . . . (40.000) 8.984
Outstanding at December 31,2007 . .. ... ... . ... ... ..... 14,000 9573
1994 Executive Stock Option Plan
Incentive Options Non-Qualified Options
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic
Shares Price Value Shares Price Value
Outstanding at December 31,
006........... ... ... 101,403  S$8.875 618,597  $8.875
Granted . ................ —_ — — —
Exercised ... ............. (101.403) R.875  $147.203 (618.597) 8.875  $890.677
Cancelled .. ... ........ ... o — — —
Outsianding at December 31,
2007, ... L — § — - 5§ —
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Note 9 — Common Stock and Stockholders’ Equity {continued)
1997 Stock Plan

Encentive Options Non-Qualified Options
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Restricted Intrinsic
Shares Price Value  Shares Price Shares Value
Ouistanding at December 31,
2006 ... ... 731,182 $10.547 1,678,618  $5.623 —
Granted. . .. ........... — — — — —
Exercised .. ........... (342,942) 8.875 $521,567 (749,558 7.897 — $1.917.413
Cancelled . . ... ... ..... (342,000 12.188 (7,500 6.070 —
Outstanding at December 31,
2007 ... L. 46,240  $10.813 921,560 $3.770

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan
Nen-Qualified Options

Weighted

Average

Exercise  Intrinsic  Restricted

Shares Price Value Shares

Ouwstanding at December 31,2006 . ......... .. 25,000 $8.875 1,458,151
Granted . .. ......... ... ... ... .. ... . ... — — 922,845
Exercised. .. ... ... . .. .. e (25,000) 8.875 $33,025 (819,343)
Cancelled. . ... ... .. .. . . . .. ... — — (59,061)
Qutstanding at December 31,2007 .. ... ... ... — $ — 1,502,592
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The following tables summarize the information regarding stock options outstanding and exercisable as of

December 31, 2007;

Qutstanding Options

Weighted
Average Weighted
Remaining Average Aggregate
Number of Contractual  Exercise Intrinsic
Plan Exercise Prices Shares Life Price Value
1994 Non-Employee Director
Incentive Plan :
Non-qualified. . ... ... ... .. $3.280 4,000 1.01 years $ 3.280 $ 17,080
Non-qualified. . ... ... ..... $12.090 10,000 0.01 years $12.000  § —
1994 Executive Stock Option
Plan
Incentive option . . ... ... .. $8.875 — $ — 3 -—
Non-qualified. ... ... ...... $8.875 — 5 — 3 —
1997 Stock Plan
Incentive option .. . ... ..... $10.813 46,240 0.23 years $10.813 5 —
Non-qualified. .. ... ....... $1.990-$5.350 917,800 £.31 years $ 3741 $3.496,818
Non-qualified. .. .......... S10.810 3,760 0.23 years 510.810 $ —
2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan
Non-qualified. . .... ... ..., $8.875 — 5 — h) —
Exercisable Options
Weighted
Average Aggregate
Number of  Exercise Intrinsic
Plan Exercisé Prices Shares Price Value
1994 Non-Employee Director Incentive Plan
Non-qualified. .. ............ .. ..... .. $3.280 4,000 $3280 § 17.080
Non-qualified. . ...... ... ... ........ $8.875- $12.090 10,000 $12.090 $ —
1994 Executive Stock Option Plan
Incentive option . ... ........... D $8.875 — $ — 8 —
Non-qualified. . ....... ... . ... ... .. .. $8.875 — S — $ —
1997 Stock Plan
Incentive option . . . ........ ... .. ....... $10.813 46,240 $10.813 A —
Non-qualified. . .. ... ... ... ... ...... $1.990-35.350 917.800 $ 3.741 53,496,818
Non-qualified. . .. ... ... .. ... ... .. ... $10.810 3,760 $10.810 $ —
2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan .
Non-qualified. .............. .. ... .. .. $8.875 — $ — 3 —

The Company had 1,143,360 and 838,875 shares held in Treasury stock at December 31, 2007 and 2006,

respectively.
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Stock Reserved for Issuance — The following is a summary of common stock reserved for issuance:

December 31,

2007 2006
SIOCK PIANS « o .ottt e 2.118.080 5,372,934
Stock bonUS Plan. . . ..o o 304,402 87.983
Total shares reserved fOF ISSUANCE . . . .o it i e et i mie e 2422491 5460917

Stockholder Rights Plan — The Company adopted a stockholder rights plan on June 25, 1998, to assure
that the Company’s stockholders receive fair and equal treatment in the event of any proposed takeover of the
Company and to guard against partial tender offers and other abusive takeover tactics to gain control of the
Company without paying all stockholders a fair price. The rights plan was not adopted in response to any
specific takeover proposal. Under the rights plan, the Company's board of directors declared a dividend of one
right to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of a new series of junior participating preferred stock for each
outstanding share of common steck. The plan was amended on September 22, 1998, to eliminate the restriction
on the board of directors’ ability to redeem the shares for two years in the event the majority of the board of
directors does not consist of the same directors that were in office as of June 25, 1998 (“Continuing
Directors™), or directors that were recommended to succeed Continuing Directors by a majority of the
Continuing Directors.

The rights may only be cxercised 10 days following a public announcement that a third party has
acquired 15 percent or more of the outstanding common shares of the Company or 10 days following the
commencement of. or announcement of, an intention to make a tender offer or exchange offer. the
consummation of which would result in the beneficial ownership by a third party of 15 percent or more of the
common shares. When exercisable, each right will entitle the holder to purchase one one-thousandth share of
the new series of junior participating preferred stock at an exercise price of $30, subject to adjustment. If a
person or group acquires 15 percent or more of the outstanding common shares of the Company. each right, in
the absence of timely redemption of the rights by the Company, will entitle the holder, other than the acquiring
party. to purchase for $30, common shares of the Company having a market value of twice that amount.

The rights, which do not have voting privileges, expire June 30, 2008, and at the Company’s option, may
be redeemed by the Company in whole, but not in part, prior to expiration for $0.01 per right. Until the rights
become exercisable, they have no dilutive effect on eamnings per share.
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Note 10 — Reconciliation of Income and Number of Shares Used to Calculate Basic and Diluted

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS:

Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations . ... ... ... ..

Netincome. . ... ............ .....

Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock” options and restricted stock . . . ..

Diluled EPS:

Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations .. .. ..... ...

Netincome. . .................. ..

. Basic EPS:

Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations ... ...... ...

Netincome. . ................ ... .

Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options and restricted stock . . . ..

Diluted EPS:
Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations ... ... ...., .

Netincome. ... ... . ... ... ....

....... $104,078,000

....... 381.026.000 108,138,383

....... $81.026.000

For The Year Ended December 31, 2007

Income Shares Per-Share
{Numerator) (Denominator) Amount

....... $104.078,000 109,542,364 $095
....... 51 04.078,0; $L:9_5_
....... 1,314,330 $(0.01)
....... $104.078,000 110.856.694 5054
w s0ss

For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

Income Shares Per-Share
{Numerator} (Denominator) Amount

....... $81.026.000 106,552,015 $0.76
....... $81.026.000 $0.76
....... 1.586.368
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—
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—

o
<
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Note 10 — Reconciliation of Income and Number of Shares Used to Calculate Basic and Diluted
Earnings Per Share (EPS) (continued)
For The Year Ended December 31, 2005

Income (Loss) Shares Per-Share
(Numerator) {Denominator} Amount

Basic EPS:
Income from continving operations . . . .. ..... $98,812.000 95.818.893 $1.03
Discontinued operations .. ................ 71,000 =
Netincome. .. ......... .. ......oovao... $98.883,000 $1.03
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and restricted stock .. .. .. ... .. 1.389.452 SO0
Diluted EPS:
Income from continuing operations . .. ..... .. $98.812,000 97,208,345 5102
Discontinued operations .. ................ 71,000 —
Net income. .. ... oooveniii $98,883.000 $ 102

For the year ended December 31, 2007, options to purchase 60,000 shares of commen stock at prices
ranging from $10.81 to $12.09 were outstanding during the period. were not included in the compulation of
diluted EPS because the options’ exercise prices were greater thun the average market price of the common
shares. Options to purchase 2,135,166 shares of common stock with exercise prices ranging from $8.875 to
$12.188 per share were outstanding during the year ended December 31, 2006, but were not included in the
computation of diluted EPS because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of
the common shares. For the year ended December 31, 2003, options to purchase 2,796,000 shares of common
stock at prices ranging from $8.875 to $12.188, which were outstanding during the period, were not included
in the computation of diluted EPS because the assumed exercise of the options would have had an anti-dilutive |
effect on EPS because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common
shares.

Note 11 — Employee Benefit Plan

The Company sponsors a defined contribution 401(k) plan (“Plan™) in which substantially all U.S. employ-
ees are eligible to participate. Company matching contributions to the Plan are based on the amount of
employee contributions and are made in Parker Drilling common stock. but to encourage diversity of
investment, Parker Drilling common stock is not an investment option for voluntary contributions. The
Company issued 283.581. 219,204 and 205,011 shares to the Plan in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. with
the Company recognizing expense of $2.5 million, $1.8 million and $1.4 million for each of the respective
periods.

Noate 12 — Business Segments

The Company is organized into three primary business segments: U.S. drilling operations. international
drilling operations, and rental tools. This is the basis management uses for making operating decisions and
assessing performance.
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Note 12 — Business Segments (continued)

Year Ended December 31,

Operations by Industry Segment 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in Thousands}
Drilling and rental revenues:
US.drilling(1). . ..o $ 231,139 $191.225  $128,252
International drilling(1). . ....... ... ... .. ... .. ... . ...... 285,403 273216 308.572
Rental wols(l) . ... .. .. 138.031 121.994 94,838
Total drilling and rental revenues .. ........... ... ... ... ...... 654.573 586,435 531,662
Drilling and rental operating income (loss):
US.dnlling(2)y. ... 99514 83.370 41,739
International drilling(2). .. ...... ... ... . ... .. .. ... e 41943 27.465 40.281
Rental tools(2) . ... ... ... . . 59.264 56.704 40.239
Total drilling and rental operating income................. ... ... 200.721 167,539 122,259
General and administrative expense ... ... ... ... .. ... ... (24,708} (31,786) (27.830)
Provision for reduction in carrying vilue of certain assets . .......... (1.462) — (4,884)
Gain on disposition of assets. net . .. .................. .. .. ..., 16432 7.573 25.578
Total operating income. . ........ ... ... ... .. . .. .. 160,983 143,326 115,123
Interest eXpense . .. ... .o . (25,157) (31,598) (42,113
Changes in fair value of derivative positions . . ..... ... ... ...... (671) 40 2.076
Loss on extinguishment of debt .. ... .. ... . ... .. . ... . .. . .. .. .. (2.396) (1.912) (8.241)
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint venture and related charges . . . . . (27.101) — —
Minority interest . ... ... .. ... (1.000) (229) 1.905
Other. . ... 7.143 7.808 1.478
Income from continuing operations before income taxes . ........... $ 141801  $117435 $ 70,228
Identifiable assets:
US.drilling. ... $ 235030 8255275
International drilling. . .. ... ... .. . . . .. . L, 441,282 318,767
Remal twools .. ... . .. 177.033 166,270
Total identifiable assets .. ........ . ... ... . . .. .. 853.345 740.312
Corporate assets. ... ... ... ... 223,642 161),989
Total assets ... ... $1.076.987  $901.301

(1) In 2007, ExxonMobil accounted for approximately 11 percent of the Company's totl revenues. appreximately $63.0 million of the
Company’s intermational drilling segment revenues and approximately $11.4 million of the Company’s rental tools segment revenues.
tn 2606, ExxenMobil accounted for approximately 14 percent of the Company's 1o1al revenues. ExxonMobil aceounted for approxi-
mately $65.8 million of the Company's international dritling segment revenues and approximately $19.0 million of the Company's
rental tools segment revenues. In 2005, ExxonMobil and Chevron accounted for approximately 14 percent and 11 percent of the Com-
pany’s 1o1al revenues. respectively, ExxonMobil accounted for approximately $54.8 million of the Company's international drilling
segment revenucs and approximately $18.2 miltion of the Company’s remal tools segment revenues. Chevron accounted for approxi-
mately $50.6 million of the Company’s international drilling segment revenues and approximately $9.2 million of the Company’s

—
2

rental ools ACgment revenues.

Drilling and rental operating income — drilling and rental revenues less direct drilling and rental operating expenses, including depre-

ciation and amortization expense.
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Year Ended December 31,
Operations by Industry Segment 2007 2006 2005

(Dollars in Thousands)

Capital expenditures:

U.S.drilling . ........ e $ 32563 § 72373 $16,724
International drilling. .. ... ... ... .. ... .. ... . 144,984 75,448 23,524
Rental t001s . ... e e 62,011 40,773 27,962
Corporate. .. .. ..ot i e 2,540 0,428 1,282
Total capital expenditures. . ......... ... . o $242,098  $195022  $69,492
Depreciation and amortization:
US. dilling. . ..o $ 32,102 $ 23867 $19,354
International drilling. . . ... ... ... ... .. .o 26,785 25,290 30,330
Rental to01s © . o .ot e 23,715 18.501 16,142
COrporate. . . .. oo e e 3,201 1,612 1,378
Total depreciation and amortization .. .................... $ 85,803 § 69270 $67,204
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Year Ended December 31,
Operations by Geographic Area 2007 2006 2005

{Dollars in Thousands)

Drilling and rental revenues:

United States ... ... .. ... .. $369.170 $309,757 $218,056
Latin America . .......... . ... .. ... ... .. ... .. ... .. 75,683 31,466 67,954
Asia Pacific ... ... o o L 67,037 79,665 58,623
Africa and Middle East . .......... .. ... ...... ... .. .. 14,580 24,219 33,377
CIS 128,103 141,328 153,652
Total drilling and rental revenues . . ... ......... ... . ... .. . 654,573 586,435 531,662
Driiling and rental operating income (loss):
United States(1) .. ... ... .. ... 158,778  136.690 77,560
Latin America(l) . ... ... .o 26,825 (5,679) 4,018
Asia Pacific(). ... ... .. o © 10,670 19,884 14,353
Africa and Middle East(1) ......... . ... ............ .. {14,466) (2,594) (834)
CIS() . 18,914 19,238 27,162
Total drilling and rental operating income. .. ................ 200,721 167,539 122,259
General and administrative expense .. ..................... (24,7708) (31,786) (27,830)
Provision for reduction in carrying value of certain assets . . . . . . . (1.462) — (4,884)
Gain on disposition of assets, net .. ... ... ... ..., . ... .. 16,432 7,573 25,578
Total operating income. . . ........... ... ... .. ... . .. ..... 150,983 143326 115,123
[nterest eXpense . . ... ... (25,157)  (31,598) (42,113)
Changes in fair value of derivative positions. . . .............. (671) 40 2,076
Loss on extinguishment of debt .. ................ .. .. ... . (2,396) {1.912) (8,241
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint venture and related
charges .. ... (27,101) — —_
Minority interest .. ..., .. . (1,000) (229) 1,905
Other. ... o 7,143 7.808 1.478
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes ... $141.801 $117435 $ 70,228

Long-lived assets:(2)

United States . .. ... ... .. . .. $447.235 $401,349
Latin America . ... ... ... 54 415 17,217
Asia Pacific .. ... ... 29,200 24,420
Africaand Middle Bast .. .. ... . ... ... .. ... ... ..., .. 59,067 2,412
CIS 96,286 90,389
Total long-lived assets ... ........ ... .. . . . . . . o . $686,203 $535,787

(1) Drilling and rentai operating income — dritling and rental revenues less direct drilling and rental operating expenses. including depre-
ciation and amortization expense.

(2) Is primarily comprised of pfoperty, plant and equipment. net and goodwitl and excludes assets held for sale,
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Note 13 — Commitments and Contingencies

At December 31, 2007, the Company had a $60.0 million revolving credit facility available for general
corporate purposes and to support letters of credit. As of December 31, 2007, $12.9 million of availability has
been reserved (o support letiers of credit that have been issued and $20.0 million of loans outstanding under
the facility.

The Company has various lease agreements for office space, equipment, vehicles and personal property.
These obligations extend through 2012 and are typically non-cancelable. Most leases contain renewal options
and certain of the leases contain escalation clauses. Fulure minimum lease payments at Decernber 31, 2007,
under operating leases with non-cancelable terms are as follows (dollars in thousands):

2008 . . e $4.450
2000 . L e e e e 2,260
2000 .« o e e 8§73
(1) 0 O SO 767
4] /O 152

Total .. e e $8.502

Total rent expense for all operating leases amounted to $10.1 million for 2007, $9.0 million for 2006 and
$10.2 million for 2005.

The Company is self-insured for certain losses relating to workers™ compensation. employers” liability.
general liability (for onshore liability). protection and indemnity (for offshore liability) and property damage.
The Company's exposure (that is, the retention or deductible) per occurrence is $250,000 for worker’s
compensation. employer’s liability, general liability, protection and indemnity and maritime employers’
liability (Jones Act). In addition. the Company assumes a $750.000 annual aggregate deductible for protection
and indemnity and maritime employers” liability claims. The annual aggregate deductible is croded by every
dollar that exceeds the $250,000 per occurrence retention, The Company continues to assume a straight
$250,000 retention for workers™ compensation, employers” liability, and general liability losses. The self-
insurance for automobile liability applics to historic ¢laims only as the Company is currently on a first dollar
policy. with those reserves being minimal, For all primary insurances mentioned above, the Company has
excess coverage for those cluims that exceed the retention and annual aggregate deductible. The Company
maintains actuarially-determined accruals in its consolidated balance sheets to cover the self-insurance
retentions.

The Company has sell-insured retentions for certain other losses relating to rig. equipment, property.
business interruption and political, war, and terrorism risks which vary according to the type of rig and line of
coverage. Political risk insurance is procured for international operations. This coverage may not adequately
protect the Company against liability from all potential consequences.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company's gross sclf-insurance accruals for workers’ compensation,
employers’ liability. general liability. protection and indemnity and maritime employers’ liability totaled
$8.2 million and the related insurance recoveries/receivables were $3.0 million.

The Compuny has entered into employment agreements with terms of one to three years with certain
members of management with automatic one or two year renewal periods at expiration dates. The agreements
provide for. among other things. compensation. benefits and severance payments. They also provide for lump
sum compensation and benefits in the event of a change in control of the Company.

The Company is a party to various lawsuits and claims arising out of the ordinary course of business.
Management, after review and consultation with legal counsel, does not anticipate that any liability resulting
from these matters would materially affect the results of operations, the financial position or the net cash flows
of the Company, but there can be no assurance that an adverse ruling not anticipated by the Company will not
have a material adverse effect on the results of operations or the financial position of the Company.
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Kazakhstan Tax Claims

On October 12, 2005, the Kazukhstan Branch ("PKD Kazakhstan™) of Parker Drilling's subsidiary, Parker
Drilling Company International Limited ("PDCIL"). received an Act of Tax Audit from the Ministry of
Finance of Kazakhstan ("MinFin™) assessing PKD Kazakhstan an amount of KZT (Kazakhstan Tenge)

14.9 billion (approximately $125.8 million). Approximately KZT7.5 billion or $63.3 million was assessed for
import Value Added Tax (“VAT"). administrative fines and interest on cquipment imported 1o perform the
drilling contracts (the "VAT Assessment™) and approximately KZT7.4 billion or $62.5 million for corporate
income tax. individual income tax and social 1ax. administrative fines and interest in connection with the
reimbursements received by PDCIL from a client for the upgrade of Barge Rig 257 and other issues related to
PKD Kazukhstan's operations in the Republic of Kazakhstan (the “Income Tax Assessment”).

On May 24. 2006, the Supreme Court of the Repubiic of Kazakhstan ("SCK™) issued a decision
upholding the VAT Assessment. Consistent with its contractual obligations. on November 20, 2006. the client
advanced the actual amount of the VAT Assessment and this amount has been remitted to MinFin. The client
has also contractually agreed to reimburse PKD Kazakhstan for any tncremental income taxes that PKD
Kazakhstan intcurs from the reimbursement of this VAT Assessment

Contrary to two previous rulings on this precise issuc. the May 24, 2006. ruling of the SCK affirmed the
Income Tax Assessment. The SCK stayed enforcement and supervisory review Lo allow the Competent
Authorities from the U.S. and the Republic of Kuzakhstan to address this matter under the Mutual Agreement
Procedure ("MAP™) of the U.S.-Kazakhstan Tax Treaty (the “Tax Treaty™). but when the Competent
Authorities met on March 20-22, 2007, they were unable to achieve mutual agreement as to which country
may tax the income in issue under the Tax Trealy.

On July 30. 2007. the supervisory panel of the SCK affirmed the May 24. 2006 ruling upholding the
income tax assessment of MinFin and on August 7, 2007. MinFin issued a notice of assessment of corporate
income taxes of approximately US$40 million and interest of approximately US$33 million. PKD Kazakhstan
immediately filed a Complaint Against the Notice (“Complaint™) and MinFin acknowledged receipt of this
Complaint and that no enforcement action would occur pending resolution of the Complaint pursuant (o the
MAP of the Tax Treaty. The Competent Authorities re-convened on Qctober 8-11. 2007, o address the double
taxation issue. but has not issued a protocol of resolution under the Tax Treaty.

On December 12, 2007. PKD Kazakhstan paid the tax portion of the Income Tax Assessment. net of any
pre-paid taxes. In January 2008. PKD Kazakhstan filed an appeal against the interest portion of the notice of
assessment. Sce ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations. "Overview and Outlook™, Recent Events.

The full amount of the interest has been accrued pursuant to FIN 48. See Note 7. “Income Taxes”.

Bangladesh Claim

In September 2005. a subsidiary of the Company was served with a lawsuit filed in the 52nd District
Court of Harris County State of Texas on behalf of numerous citizens of Bangladesh claiming $250 million in
damages due (o various types of property damage and personal injuries (nonc involving loss of life) arising as
a result of two blowouts that occurred in Bangladesh in January and June 2005. although only the June 2005
blowout involved the Company. The court dismissed the case on the basis that Houston. Texas. is not the
appropriate location for this suit to be filed. The plaintiffs have appealed this dismissal; however, the Company
believes the plaintiffs’ prospects of being successful on appeal are remote,

Asbestos-Related Claims

In August 2004, the Company was notified that certain of its subsidiaries have been named, along with
other defendants, in several complaints that have been filed in the Circuit Courts of the State of Mississippi by
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several hundred persons that allege that they were employed by some of the named defendants between
approximately 1965 and 1986. The complaints name as defendants numerous other companies that are not
affiliated with the Company, including companies that allegedly manufactared drilling- related products
containing asbestos that are the subject of the complaints.

The complaints aliege that the Company’s subsidiaries and other drilling contractors used asbestos-
containing products in offshore drilling operations, land-based drilling operations and in drilling structures,
drilling rigs, vessels and other equipment and assert claims based on, among other things, negligence and strict
liability and claims under the Jones Act and that the plaintiffs are entitled to monetary damages. Based on the
report of the special master, these complaints have been severed and venue of the claims transferred to the
county in which the plaintiff resides or the county in which the cause of action allegedly accrued. Subsequent
to the filing of amended complaints, Parker Drilting has joined with other co-detendants in filing motions to
compel discovery to determine what plaintiffs have an employment relationship with which defendant,
including whether or not any plaintiffs have an employment relationship with subsidiaries of Parker Drilling.
Out of 668 amended single-plaintiff complaints filed to date, sixteen (16) plaintiffs have identified Parker
Drilling or one of its affiliates as a defendant. Discovery is proceeding in groups of 60 and none of the
plaintiff complaints naming Parker are included in the first 60 (Group ). The initial discovery of Group I
reaped dismissals with prejudice, two dismissals withowt prejudice and two withdraws from Group 1, leaving
only 40 plaintiffs remaining in Group 1.

The subsidiaries named in these asbestos-related lawsuits intend to defend themselves vigorously and,
based on the information available to the Company at this time, the Company does not expect the outcome to
have a material adverse effect on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows: however, the
Company is unable to predict the ulimate outcome of these lawsuits, No amounts were accrued al
December 31, 2007.

Gulfco Site

Several years ago the Company received an information request under the Comprehensive Environmental
Response. Compensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA™) designating Parker Drilling Offshore Corporation. a
subsidiary of Parker Drilling as a potentially responsible party with respect to the Gulfco Marine Maintenance,
Inc. Superfund Site in Freeport, Texas (EPA No. TX (55144539). The subsidiary respended to this request in
2003 with documents. In January, 2008 the subsidiary received an administrative order Lo participate in an
investigation of the site and a study of the remediation needs and alternatives. The EPA alleges that the
subsidiary is successor to a party who owned the Gulfco site during the time when chemical releases took
place there. Two other parties have been performing that work since mid-2005 under an earlier version of the
same order. The subsidiary believes that it has a sufficient cause to decline participation under the order and
has notified the EPA of that decision. Non-compliance with an EPA order absent sulficient cause for doing so
can result in substantial penalties under CERCLA. The subsidiary is confinuing to evaluate its relationship to
the site and intends to confer with the EPA in an effort to resolve the matter. The Company has not yet
estimated the amount or impact on our operations, financial position or cash flows of any costs related to the
site. The EPA and the other two parties have spent over $2.5 million studying and conducting initial
remediation of the site, and it is anticipated that an additional $1.3 million will be required to complete the
remediation. The Company does not believe we have any obligation with respect to the remediation of the
property, and accordingly no accrual was made as of December 31. 2007. See Business, Environmental
Considerations in Part 1. [tem 1 of this Form 10-K.

Freight Forwarding and Customs Agent Request

During the third quarter of 2007, the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) requested that the Company
provide certain information regarding its utilization of the services of a freight forwarding and customs agent
during the past five years to verify il the services provided by this agent were in compliance with the Foreign
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Note 13 — Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Corrupt Practices Act. In response to this request, the Company has provided the requested information to
DOJ. In January 2008, the Securities and Exchange Commission (*SEC™) requested the same information that
the Company provided to DOJ. and the Company has also provided certain information 1o the SEC pursuant to
the SEC’s request. The Company is fully cooperating with both DOJ and SEC with regard to this matter.

Saudi Arabia Joint Venture

The commitments and contingencies attributable to the Saudi Arabia Joint Venture are addressed in
Note 8 — Saudi Arabia Joint Venture.

Note 14 — Related Party Transactions
Consulting Agreement

In connection with the retirement of Robert L. Parker Sr. as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company, effective April 28, 2006, the Company cntered into a Consulting Agreement with Mr. Parker Sr. on
April 4, 2006 (the “Consulting Agreement™). The Consulting Agreement has a term of two years. and provides
for

(i) A consulting contract and severance agreement,
(ii) Payment of unpaid vacation pay that has accrued through April 30, 2006,
(iii) A lump sum payment of $397.500 on November 2. 2006,

(iv} Monthly payments of $37.500 and $28.750 commencing on May 1. 2006. for two years related to
the severance agreement and the consulting agreement. respectively, and

(v) Medical coverage under the Company’s medical plun for Mr. Parker Sr. and his spouse through
April 30, 2008,

If Mr. Parker Sr. should die before the end of the term. the payments shall continue to be made to his
spouse. if she survives him, and if she does not survive him, 10 Mr. Parker's estate.

The Consulting Agreement requires Mr. Parker Sr. to provide certain services 1o the Company during the
term of the Consulting Agreement, including without limitation, assisting with projects on which Mr. Parker
Sr. worked while Chairman of the Company. bridging relationships with customers. and assisting with
marketing efforts utilizing relationships developed during Mr. Parker Sr.’s tenure with the Company.

During the term of the Consulting Agreement, Mr. Parker Sr. will maintain the confidentiality of any
information he obtains while an employee or consultant and will disclose to the company any ideas he
conceives and will assign to the company any inventions he develops. For one year after the termination of the
Consulting Agreement, Mr. Parker Sr. will be prohibited from soliciting business from any of the Company’s
customers or individuals with which the Company has donc business. will not become interested in any
business that competes with the Company and will be prohibited from recruiting any employees of the
Company.

Lease Agreements

The Company has leased ranch facilities (three ranches covering a total of 9,369 acres) that provide
lodging and conference rooms and for hunting. fishing and other outdoor activities used in connection with
marketing and other business purposes. from Robert L. Parker Jr. and Robert L. Parker. Sr.. through a Parker
famity trust. Lease payments to the trust for unlimited access 1o the ranches including payments for
maintenance personnel were $0.9 million per year in 2005 and 2006. The leases were terminated effective
December 31, 2006.
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Effective January 1, 2007, the Company entered into a Ranch Lease Agreement under which the
Company agreed to pay a daily usage fee/person for utilization of the ranches. During 2007, the Company
incurred fees of $33,000 pursuant to the Ranch Lease Agreement. These fees were paid in early 2008.

Other Related Party Agreements

During 2007, one of the Company’s directors held the position of executive vice president and chief
financial officer of Apache Corporation (“Apache™). During 2007, subsidiaries of the Company recognized
$14.0 million in gross revenues for performance of drilling services and provision of rental tools for a
subsidiary of Apache.

Note 15 — Supplementary Information

At December 31, 2007, accrued liabilities included $12.3 million of deferred mobilization fees, $6.7 mil-
lion of accrued interest expense, $7.0 million of workers’ compensation liabilities and $21.7 million of accrued
payroll and payroll taxes. Other long-term obligations included $1.5 million of workers’ compensation
liabilities as of December 31, 2007.

At December 31, 2006, accrued liabilities included $8.1 million of deferred mobilization fees, $4.9 million
of accrued mobilization costs, $6.2 million of accrued interest expense, $7.9 million of workers’ compensation
liabilities and $22.3 million of accrued payroll and payroll taxes. Other long-term obligations included
$2.0 million of workers’ compensation liabilities as of December 31, 2006.

Note 16 — Selected Quarterly Financial Data

Quarter
Year 2007 First(2) Second(2) Third(2) Fourth{2) Total({2)
' (Dollars in Thousands Except Per Share Amounts)
(Unaudited)
Revenues. ... ... ... . e $151,273 $150,277 $172,197 $180,826 $654.573
Drilling and rental operating income. . .. ... $ 49,507 $ 42881 $ 57,394 $ 50,939  $200,721
Operaling income. .. ... ... $ 60,023 $ 36,904 $ 50,600 $ 43.456 $190,983
Income from continuing operations. . . ... .. $ 29,994 $ 16,860 $ 22,653 % 34,571 $104,078
Discontinued operations . . . ... .......... $ — S — $ — 5 — 8 —
Netincome . .....ovviiinennenneann.. $ 29994 % 16,860 $ 22,653 $ 34,571 $104,078
Basic earnings per share:(1) :
Income from continuing operations. . .. .. $ 028 % 015 $ 021 $ 031 % 095
Discontinued operations . . .. .......... $ — 8 — 5 — 5 — 3 —
NetinCome ... .oovivieninnnnnennn. $§ 028 $ 0I5 5 021 $ 031 $§ 095
Diluted earnings per share:(1)
Income from continuing operations . . . . .. $ 027 $ 015 $ 020 § 03] $§ 094
Discontinued operations . ............. $ — 5 — 3 — % —  $ —_
Net income .. .......ooonerneeenn. $ 027 $ 015 $ 020 $ 031 $ 094

(1) As a result of shares issued during the year, earnings per share for the year's four quarters, which arc based on weighted average
shares outstanding during each guarter, may not cqual the annuual carnings per share, which is based on th¢ weighted average shares
outstanding during the vear.

(2) Total operating income and net income includes o gain of $15.1 million related 10 the sale of two barge rigs in the first quarter. Also
included is a provisien for reduction in carrying value of certain assets of $1.1 million recorded in the third quarter, and an equity loss
in an uncensotidated joint venture of $t.1 million and $26.0 million in the third and fourth quarters. respectively. See Note 8 tor fur-
ther information on our joint venwre. Net income in the first quarter included income tax expense of $7.0 million related to the sale
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of the two barge rigs and $1.4 mitlion related 10 interest on tux uncertainties recorded. Net income in the second quarter included
income tax expense of $4.0 million inlerest on tax uncertainties recorded. Net income in the fourth quarter included an income tax

benefit of $25.6 million related to the settlement of wx matters related to FIN 48. See Note 7 for further detail.

Quarter
Year 2006 First Second Third(2) Fourth(2) Total(2)
(Dollars in Thousands Except Per Share Amounts)
(Unaudited}
Revenues. ......... ... ... ... ......... S147.334 0 $145,988  $146,783 5146330 $586,435
Drilling and rental operating income . ... . .. $ 41.065 S 39,636 $ 44217 $ 42,621 $167,539
Operating income . ... ................. $ 33819 $ 34,186 $ 40,553 $ 34,768 $143,326
Income from continuing operations ........ $ 11458 % 13761  $ 18,639  $ 37.168 S 81,026
Discontinued operations . .. ... ......... .. $ — % — — 5 — 5 —
Netincome ........................ .. $ 11,458  $ 13761  $ 18639 & 37.168 $ 81.026
Basic earnings per share:(1)
Income from continuing operations. . . . ... $ oot % 013 % 017 $ 035 § 076
Discontinued operations ., .. ........... $ — 3 — 5 —  § $ —
Netincome ........................ $ 01l $ 043 $ 017 $ 033 % 076
Diluted eamingS per share:(1)
Income from continuing operations. . . . . . . $ 011§ o013 $ 017 $ 034 $ 075
Discontinued operations . . .. .. ... .. ... 3 —  § — 3 — 3 — 3 —
Netincome .. .............. .... ..., $ o1t % 013 % 017 § 034 35 075

(1) As a result of shares issued during the year, carnings per share for the yew's four quariers. which are hased on weighted average
shares outstanding during exch quarter, may not equal the anaual earnings per share. which is based on the weighted average shares
outstanding during the year.

(2) Total operating income and net income includes a $1.9 million gain in the third quarter of 2006 related 1o the receipt of insurance pro-
ceeds for a damaged rig discussed in Note 2. Also included is 2 gain on the disposition of asscts for barge rigs in Nigeria, Barge Rig
57, Barge Rig 255, and certain other equipment of $2.1 million and $4.3 millien in the second and third quarters of 2006, respectively.
Net income in the fourth quarter includes the reversal of the remaining $12.6 million valustion allowance related to net operating loss
state carryforwards. See Note 7 in the notes to the consolidated financial statement.

Note 17 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, “Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Finuancial
.Liabilities™, which permits an entity to choose, at specified election dates, to measure eligible financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at lair value.
Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings
at each subsequent reporting date. Uplfront costs and fees related to items for which the fair value option is
elected are recognized in carnings as incurred. SFAS No. 139 is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007,

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, “Business Combinations.”* which changes how
business acquisitions are accounted. SFAS No. 4R requires the acquiring entity in a business combination to
recognize all the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction and establishes the acquisition-date
fair value as the measurement objective for alf assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business
combination. Certain provisions of this standard will, among other things, impact the determination of
acquisition-date fair value of consideration paid in a business combination (including contingent consider-
ation); exclude transaction costs from acquisition accounting; and change accounting practices for acquired
contingencies, acquisition-related restructuring costs, in-process research and development, indemnification
assets, and tax benefits. SFAS No. 141R is effective for business combinations and adjustments fo an acquired
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entity’s deferred tax asset and liability balances occurring after December 31, 2008. The Company is currently
cvaluating the future impacts and disclosures of this standard.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51,” which establishes new standards governing the accounting for and
reporting of noncontrolling interests (NCI) in partially owned consolidated subsidiaries and the loss of control
of subsidiaries. Certain provisions of this standard indicate, among other things, that NCI's (previously referred
to as minority interests) be treated as a separate component of equity, not as a liability; that increases and
decrease in the parent’s ownership interest that leave control intact be treated as cquity transactions, rather
than as step acquisitions or dilution gains or losses; and that losses of a partially owned consolidated
subsidiary be allocated to the NCI even when such allocation might result in a deficit balance. This standard
also requires changes to certain presentation and disclosure requirements. SFAS No. 160 is effective beginning
January 1, 2009. The provisions of the standard are to be applied to all NCI's prospectively, except for the
presentation and disclosure requirements, which are to be applied retrospectively to all periods presented. The
Company is currently evaluating the future impacts and disclosures of this standard.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On March 15, 2007, the Audit Commitiee of the Board of Directors of the Company engaged KPMG
LLP (“KPMG?") effective March 15. 2007 1o serve as the Company’s independent registered public accounting
firm to audit the Company's financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007. During the
Company’s two most recent years ended December 31, 2006, and through KPMG’s appointment, the Company
did not consult with KPMG with respect to either (i) the application of accounting principles to a specified
transaction. either completed or proposed, or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on the
Company’s financial statements, and neither a written report was provided to the Company or oral advice was
provided that KPMG concluded was an important factor considered by the Company in reaching a decision as
to the accounting. auditing or financial reporting issue; or (2) any matter that was either the subject of a
disagreement, as that term is defined in Item 304(a) 1)iv) of Regulation S-K and the related instructions to
Item 304 of Regulation S-K, or a reportable event, as that term is defined in Item 304(a)(1(v) of
Regulation S-K.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures — The Company's management, under the supervi-
sion and with the participation of the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, carried out an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures (as such term is defined in Rules |32a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e) under the Securitics Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™), as of December 31, 2007. In designing and evaluating the disclosure
controls and procedures. management recognized that disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance of achieving the desired control
objectives, and management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit
relationship of possible disclosure controls and procedures. Based on the evaluation. the chief executive officer
and chief financial officer have concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective 1o ensure
that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports it files or submits its periodic filings
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in
the SEC’s rules and forms and such information is accumulated and communicated 1o management as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting — The Company’s munagement is
responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). The Company’s internal control over financial
repotting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generalty
accepted in the United States. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that:

* pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company:

* provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authoriza-
tion of management and directors of the Company: and

* provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or Jetect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.




The Company’s management with the participation of the chief executive officer and chief financial
officer assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007 based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Management's assessment included evaluation of the
design and testing of the operational effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Management reviewed the results of its assessment with the audit committce of the board of directors.

Based on that assessment and those criteria, management has concluded that the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

KPMG LLP, the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm that audited the consolidated
financial statements included in this Form 10-K, has issued a report with respect to the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. N

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting — There were no changes in the Compuny’s
internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2007. that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect. the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information with respect to directors can be found under the caption; “ltem 1 — Election of Directors”
and “Board of Directors"’ of the Company’s 2008 Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to
be held on April 24, 2008. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.

Information with respect 10 executive officers is shown in Item | of this Form 10-K.

Information with respect to the Company’s audit committee and audit committee financial expert can be
found under the caption; “The Audit Committee” of the Company’s 2008 Proxy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 24, 2008 and is incorporated herein by reference.

The information in the Company’s 2008 Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be
held on April 24, 2008 set forth under the caption; “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance™ is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has adopted the Parker Drilling Code of Corporate Conduct ("CCC™ which includes a code of
ethics that is applicable to the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, controller and other senior financial
personnel as required by the SEC. The CCC includes provisions that will ensure compliance with code of ethics
required by the SEC and with the minimum requirements under the corporate governance listing standards of the
NYSE. The CCC is publicly available on the Company’s website at hitp://www.parkerdrilling.com. If any waivers
of the CCC occur that apply to a director, the chief executive officer. the chief financial officer. the controller or
senior financial personnel or if the Company materially amends the CCC. the Company will disclose the nature of
the waiver or amendment on the website and in a report on Form 8-K within four days,

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information under the captions “Executive Compensation,” “Fees and Benefit Plans for Non-
Employee Directors.” 2007 Director Compensation Table,” “Option/SAR Grants in 2007 to Non-Employee
Directors,” “Compensation Committee Intertocks and Insider Participation™ and “Compensation Committee
Report” in the Company’s 2008 Proxy Statememt for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on
April 24, 2008 is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the information appearing
under the captions “Security Ownership of Officers, Directors and Principal Shareholders™ and “Equity
Compensation Plan Information” in the Company’s 2008 Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on April 24, 2008.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference 1o such information appearing
under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions” and “Director Independence
Determination” in the Company’s 2008 Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held
April 24, 2008, to be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the end of the Company’s year ended
December 31, 2007.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the information appearing
under the caption “Audit and Non-Audit Fees” and “Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and
Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in the Company’s 2008
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of the Shareholders to be held April 24, 2008.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
{a} The following documents arc filed us part of this report:

(1) Financial Statements of Parker Drilling Company and subsidiaries which are included in Part 1.
Item 8:

PAGE
Report of KPMG LLP — Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ... ... ... .. 47
Report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP — Independent Registered Public Accounting
230333 T G 49
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the years ended December 31. 2007, 2006 and
00 . e e 49
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. ... ... ... ... ... 50
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 200 . 32
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders™ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005 . e e 54
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ... ... .. .. o o oL 55
(2y Financial Statement Schedule:
Schedule 11 — Valuation and qualifying accounts . . ... ... .. oL 103
(3) Exhibits:
EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION
3(a) — Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as amended on May 16, 2007 (incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 3.1 1o the Company’s Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 20, 2007).

3(b) — By-Laws of the Company. as amended on January 31, 2003 (incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Form 10-K/A dated September 25, 2003).

4(a) — Rights Agreement dated as of July 14, 1998, between the Company and Norwest Bunk Minnesota,
N.A., as rights agent (incorporated by reference to Form 8-A filed July 15. 1998).

4(by — Amendment No. | to the Rights Agreement dated September 22, 1998, between the Company and

Norwest Bank Minncsota, N.A., as rights agent (incorporated by reference o Exhibit 3(a) of
Form 10-K dated March 17. 2003).

4(¢)  — Indenture dated as of October 10, 2003 between the Company, as issuer. cerfain Subsidiary
Guarantors (as defined therein) and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as Trustee, respecting the
9.625% Senior Notes due 2013 (incorporated by reference to the Company’s S-4 Registration
Statement No. 333-110374 dated November 10. 2003). Supplemental Indentures

4(dy — Credit Agreement among Parker Drilling Company, as Borrower, the Several Lenders Parties
thereto. Lehman Brothers. Inc.. as Sole Advisor. Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner. Bank
of America. N.A.. as Syndication Agent and Lehman Commercial Paper. Inc. as Administrative
Agent dated December 20. 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K dated
December 27, 2004).

4(e} — First Amendment to the Credit Agreement dated December 20, 2004 among Parker Drilling
Company. as Borrower. the Several Lenders Parties thereto, Lehman Brothers. Inc.. as Sole
Advisor, Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner, Bank of America. N.A.. as Syndicalion Agent
and Lehman Commercial Paper. Inc.. as Administrative Agent dated March t, 2006.

410 Second Amendment 1o the Credit Agreement dated December 20, 2004 among Parker Drilling. as
Borrower, the Several Lenders Parties thercto, Lehman Brothers, Inc.. us Sole Advisor, Sole Lead
Arranger and Sole Bookrunner. Bank of America. N.A.. as Syndication Agent dated February 9.
2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{¢) to annual report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006).
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EXHIBIT

NUMBER

4(g)

4h)

4(i)
44j)

10(u)

10¢b)
1{¢)
10{ct)
[0(e)

10(H)

10(g)

{0h)

10(1)

10G)
10(K)

10(1)

DESCRIPTION

— Indenture dated as of September 2, 2004, between the Company and J P-Morgan Chase Bank, as

trustee. respecting the $150.0 million Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2010 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K. dated September 7, 2004).

Indenture, dated as of July 5. 2007, among Parker Drilling Company. the guarantors from time to
time party thereto. and The Bank of New York Trust Company. N.A.. with respect o the

2.125% Convertible Senior Notes due 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 5, 2007)

Form of 2,125% Convertible Senior Note due 2013 (included in Exhibit 4(h))

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. dated as of September 20, 2007, among Parker Drilling
Company. as Borrower. the several lenders from time to time thereto. Lehman Brothers Inc.. as
Sole Advisor, Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner, Bank of America N.A.. as Syndication

. Agent. and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc.. as Administrative Agent {incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to report on Form 8-K dated September 25, 2007).

— Amended and Restated Parker Drilling Company Stock Bonus Plan, effective as of January 1,

1999 (incorporated hercin by relerence to Exhibit 10(a) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 1999) %

— 1994 Parker Drilling Company Limited Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10(h) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended August 31, 1995).*

— 1994 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(1)

to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended August 31, 1995).%

— 1994 Executive Stock Option Plan {incorporated hercin by reference to Exhibit 10(j) 10 Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended August 31, 1995).*

Parker Drilling Company and Subsidiaries 1991 Stock Grant Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit [0(c) to Form 10-K dated November 2, 1992) %

— Third Amended and Restated Parker Drilling 1997 Stock Plan effective July 24, 2002

{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(e) 1o Annual Report on Form 10-K dated
March 20, 2003).*

— 2005 Long Term Incentive Plan (2005 LTIP™) (incorporated by reference o the Company’s 2005

Proxy Statement dated March 22, 2005).*

— Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into between Parker Driliing Company and each

director and executive officer of Parker Drilling Company. dated on or about October 15, 2002
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(g) to Form 10-K dated March 12, 2004).*

— Form of Employment Agreement entered into between Parker Drilling Company and certain

executive and other officers of Parker Drilling Company. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(h) to Form 10-K dated March 17. 2003).* ‘

— Form of Stock Option Award Agreement to the Third Amended and Restated Parker Drilling 1997

Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(m) to Form 10-K dated March 14, 2005).*

—— Form of Stock Grant Award Agreement to the Third Amended and Restated Parker Drilling 1997

Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(n) to Form 10-K dated March 14, 2005).*

— Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2005 LTIP {incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K dated May 1, 2005).*

10Gm)  — Form of Performance Based Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2005 LTIP

10(n)

10}

10(p)

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K dated May 1. 2005).*

— Form of Lease Agreement between Parker Drilling Management Services, Inc. entered into by the

Robert L. Parker Sr. Family Limited Partnership and Robert L. Parker Jr. dated January 1, 2004
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a) to the Form 10-Q dated August 6, 2004).*

— Form of Personnel Services Contract between Parker Drilling Management Services, Inc. and the

Robert L. Parker Sr. Family Limited Partnership and Robert L. Parker Jr. duted January 1, 2004
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b) to the Form 10-Q dated August 6, 2004).*

~— Consulting Agreement between Parker Drilling Company and Robert L. Parker Sr. dated April 12,

2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K dated April 12, 2006).*
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (Continued)

EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION
10(q) — Termination of Split Doltar Life Insurance Agreement between Parker Drilling Company, Robert

L. Parker Sr.. and Robert L. Parker Sr. and Catherine Mae Parker Family Trust under Indenture
dated the 23rd day of July 1993, dated April 12, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to the Form 8-K dated April 12, 2006) *

10(r) — Confirmation of Convertible Bond Hedge Transaction. dated as of June 28, 2007, by and between
Parker Drilling Company and Bank of America. N.A (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 5, 2007)

10{s) — Confirmation of Convertible Bond Hedge Transaction, dated as of June 28, 2007, by and between
Parker Drilling Company and Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 5, 2007).

10() — Confirmation of Convertible Bond Hedge Transaction, dated as of June 28, 2007, by and between
Parker Drilling Company and Lehman Brothers OTC Derivatives Inc. (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 5, 2007)

10(u) — Confirmation of Issuer Warrant Transaction dated as of June 28. 2007. by and between Parker
Drilling Company and Bank of America. N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 5. 2007)

10(v) — Confirmation of Issuer Warrant Transaction, dated as of June 28, 2007, by and between Parker
Drilling Company and Deutsche Bank AG. London Branch (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 5, 2007).

10(w) - Confirmation of Issuer Warrant Transaction dated as of June 28, 2007, by and between Parker
Drilling Company and Lehman Brothers OTC Derivatives Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 10 the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 5. 2007).

10(x) — Amendment 1o Confirmation of Issuer Warrant Transaction dated as of June 29, 2007, by and
between Parker Drilling Company and Bank of America. N.A. (incorporated by reference 10
Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K fited on July 5, 2007).

10(y) — Amendment to Confirmation of Issuer Warrant Transaction. dated as of June 29. 2007, by and
between Parker Drilling Company and Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 5, 2007).

10(z) — Amendment to Confirmation of Issuer Warrant Transaction, dated as of June 29, 2007, by and
between Parker Drilling Company and Lehman Brothers OTC Derivatives Inc. {incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 5, 2007)

21  — Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23.1 — Consent of KPMG LLP — Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

232 — Consent of PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLP — Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

24.1 — Report on schedule of KPMG LLP — Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

311 — Robert L. Parker Jr., Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
Certification.

312 — W. Kirk Brassfield. Scnior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Rule 13a-14{a)/15d-14(a)
Certification.

121  — Robert L. Parker Jr., Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Section 1350 Certification.
327 _— W Kirk Brassfield. Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Section 1350 Certification.

* _ Management Contract, Compensatory Plan or Agreement
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PARKER DRILLING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE IT — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(Dollars in Thousands)

Balance Charged

at to cost Charged Balance
beginning and to other at end of
Classifications of year expenses  accounts  Deductions year
Year ended December 31, 2007
Allowance for doubtful accounts and
NOWCS . . L S 1.481 $1.975 S — S 304 $3.152
Reduction in carrying value of rig
materials and supplies .. .. ... ... ... $ 4.337 $(590) § — $ 1140 $2,607
Deferred tax valuation allowance . ... . .. S — $6.391 5 - 5 — $6.391
Year ended December 31, 2006:
Allowance for doubtful accounts and
NOWCS . .o $ 1.639 $ — $ - $ 158 $1.481
Reduction in carrying value of rig
materials and supplies .. ......... .. $ 3.451 $1.200 § - $ 314 $4.337
Deferred tax valuation allowance . . . . . .. $ — $ — $18.026(1)  $18.026(2) $ —
Year ended December 31. 2005:
Allowance for doubtful accounts and
MRS . $ 3.591 $ 613 5 — $ 2.565 $1.639
Reduction in carrying value of rig '
materials and supplies ... .. ... ... .. 3 6,468 $1.200 § — S 4217 $3.451
Deferred tax valuation allowance . . ... .. $56.003 5§ — S15494(3) $71497() § —

¢1) During 2006 and prior to the reversal of the state valuation allowance. the Company completed 2 process of reconciling its Louisiana
stale income tax balance sheet for the purpose of properly adjusting its deferred tax assets and lisbilities. As u result of this process,
the Company recognized an additional net deferred tax asset of approximately $18.0 millien. Additionally, the Company increased its
valuation allowance by $18.0 million resulting in no impact 1o the net deferred tax asset,

{2) This deduction relates to the reversal of the vatuation allowance related o Louisiana state net operating loss carryforwards and other
deferred tax assets resulting from the Company's reiurn to profitabikity in Louisiana and expecied future carnings performunce.

(3) During 2005 and prior to the reversal of the valumion allowance, the Company completed a process of reconciling its United States
federal income tax halance sheet for the purpose of properly adjusting its deferred tax assets and liabilities. As a result of this process.
the Company recognized an additional net delerred tax asset of approximately $15.5 million, Additionally. the Company increased its
valuation allowance by $15.5 million resulting in no impact to the net deferred tax asset.

{4) This deduction relates to the reversal of the valuation allowance related 1o net operating loss carrylorwards and other deferred tax
assets resuliing from the Company’s return to profitability and expected future camings performance.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report 10 be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

PARKER DRILLING COMPANY

By: /s/ Robert L. Parker Jr.

Robert L, Parker Ir.
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Date: February 29, 2008

Pursuant to the requircments of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report hus been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
By: /s/  Roben L. Parker Jr. Chairman, Chief Executive Officer February 29. 2008
Robert L. Parker Jr. and Director (Principal Executive
Officer)
By: /s/ James W, Whaten Vice Chairman of the Board and February 29, 2008
James W, Whalen Director
By: /s/  David C. Mannon President and Chief Operating Officer  February 29. 2008
David C. Mannon
By: /s/  W. Kirk Brassfield Senior Vice President and Chief February 29. 2008
W. Kirk Brassfield Financial Officer (Principal Financial
Officer) .
By: /s/  Lyon G. Cullom Controller (Principal Accounting February 29. 2008
Lynn G. Cullom Officer)
By: &/ George J. Donrelly Director February 29, 2008

George J. Donnelly

By: /s/ John W. Gibson, Jr. Director February 29. 2008
John W. Gibson, Ir.

By: /s/ Robert W. Goldman Director February 29, 2008
Robert W. Goldman

By: /s/ Robert E. McKee 1] Director February 29, 2008
Robert E. McKee 111

By: /s/  Roger B. Plank Director February 29, 2008
Roger B. Plank

By: /s/ R. Rudolph Reinfrank Director Febriary 29, 2008
R. Rudolph Reinfrank
. |




Exhibit 31.2

PARKER DRILLING COMPANY
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification

1. W. Kirk Brassfield, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31 2007. of Parker
Drilling Company (“the registrant”):

!~J

Based on my knowledge. this report does not contain any untrue statement of 4 material Fact or omit 1o
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made. in light of the circumstances under which such
ctatements were made. not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report:

1. Based on my knowledge. the financial statements. and other financial information included in this report.
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition. results of operations and cash tlows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report:

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a— 15¢¢) and 15d -—— 15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules |3ua-15(f) and 15d-15(1)) for the
registrant and have:

() Designed such disclosure controls and procedures. or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, 10 ensure that mauterial information relating to the registrant.
including its consolidated subsidiaries. i« made known to us by others within those cntities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared:

{h) Designed such internal control over financial reporting. or caused such imernal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision. to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

(¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls und procedures. as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation: and

(d) Disclosed in this report any chunge in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected. or is reasonably likely to materially affect. the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting: amd

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and T have disclosed. based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting. to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrunt’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent funclions):

(2) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design of operation of internal contro! over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely aftect the registrunt’s ability to record,
process. summarize and report financial information: and

by Any fraud. whether or not material. that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal conirol over financial reporting.

Date: February 29. 2008

fsi W. KIRK BRASSFIELD
W. Kirk Brassiield
Senior Vice President and Chiel Financiul Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, the undersigned officer of Parker Drilling Company (the “Company™)
hereby certifies, to such officer’s knowledge, that:

1. The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 (the “Repont™)
fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable. of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and resuit of operations of the Company,

Dated: February 29, 2008

/s/  ROBERT L. PARKER Jr.

Robert L. Parker Jr.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursvant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is not being filed
as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure statement.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

Pursuant to 18 U.S5.C. Section 1350, the undersigned officer of Parker Drilling Company (the “Company™)
hereby certifies. to such officer’s knowledge. that:

1. The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31. 2007 (the “Report™)
fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or [5(d), as applicable, of the Sccurities
F\(Lhange Act of 1934; and

. The information contained in the Report fairly preseme in all material rcspecl% the financtal condition
and result of operations of the Company.

Dated: February 29, 2008

Is/ W, KiIrk BRASSFIELD
W. Kirk Brassfield
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is not being filed
as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure statement.




STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders
will be held at 10 a.m. Central Daylight
Savings Time on Thursday, April 24,
2008 at:

Westlake Club
570 Westlake Park Boulevard
Houston, Texas

COMMON STOCK

Shares of Parker Drilling Company
are listed and traded on the New York
Stock Exchange. The trading symbaol
is PKD.,

PKD

LISTED

NYSE

STOCKHOLDER INQUIRIES
Stockholders should refer specific
guestions concerning stock
certificates in writing directly to the
stock agent and registrar. Wells Fargo
Bank N.A., at the address shown
helow.

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
Shareowner Services
P.0. Box 64854

St. Paul, MN 55164-0854
Toll Free, (800} 468-9716
Or (651} 450-4064

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
KPMG LLP

700 Louisiana, Suite 3000
Houston, Texas 77002

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Parker Drilling Company

1401 Enclave Parkway, Suite 600
Houston, TX 77077 USA

Phane (281} 406-2000

Fax (281} 406-2001

e ]

STOCKHOLDER

INFORMATION REQUESTS

Copies of the Company’s annual
report to stockholders, the Form 10-K
annual report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC), the Form
10-Q quarterly reports, and quarterly
earnings releases are available on
www.parkerdrilling.com, or by writing
to Investor Relations Department,
Parker Drilling Company, 1401 Enclave

Parkway, Suite 600, Houstan, TX 77077,

Email requests to
david.tucker@parkerdrilling.com
or call {281) 406-2370.

PARKER DRILLING ON THE INTERNET
Recent news releases issued by the
Company and other information are
available at

http://www parkerdrilling.com.

GFFICES AROUND THE WORLD

United States Offices
Houston, Texas
Odessa, Texas
Texarkana, Texas
Victoria, Texas

New Iberia, Louisiana
Evanston, Wyoming

International Offices

Algiers, Algeria

Bogota, Colombia

Jakarta, Indonesia

Aksai, Kazakhstan

Almaty, Kazakhstan

Atyrau, Kazakhstan

Kuwait City, Kuwait

Villahermosa, Mexico

The Hague, Netherlands

New Plymouth, New Zealand

Port Moresby, Papua New Guinea
Moscow, Russia
Yuzhno-Sakhalinsk, Russia
Al-Khobar, Kingdom of Saudi Arahia
Singapare

Balkanabat, Turkmenistan

INFORMATION

PARKER DRILLING VISION
Parker Drilling’s Values

* Integrity
+ Innovative Spirit
* Superior Service to Qur Customers
» Respect for People and
the Environment

Parker Drilling's Mission

We are a worldwide service company
providing contract drilling and rental
tool services to the energy industry.

We aspire to be the industry leader
and contractor of choice, providing
efficient and dependable drilling
perfarmance, innovative drilling
solutions and differentiated rental
tool services in our markets. We
strive to exceed the expectations
of our customers, shareholders and
employees.

Parker Drilling's Goals
Customer Goal
Exceed customer expectations

People Goal
Encourage and enable people
to achieve their highest potential.

Operations Goal
Provide technological leadership
and operational efficiency.

Health, Safety, Environment Goal
Provide the safest workplace
and protect the environment.

Shareholder Goal

Maximize shareholder value

by achieving consistent profitability
and growth.

Annual CED Certification

The annual CEO Certification required
by Section 303A.12(a) of the

New York Stock Exchange Listed
Company Manual was provided to the
New York Stock Exchange on or about
May 22, 2007.
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